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WFO 137-5692

D. RESIDENCE ADDRESS

2122 P Street, N.W., Washington, D.C.

E. DESCRIPTION J
?

Name:
EARL ROBERT MERRITT, JR. I

Aliases: JAMES ROBERT CHANDLER, JR. ?
ROBERT COCHRAN I
ROBERT OCTAVIO CHEVALIER. J

JAMES R. MONROE -
“BUTCH’ ’ • 1

Race: White s
Sex: Male ' f
Age: 27 I

Date of Birth: 6/22/44 ?

Place of Birth: Charleston, West Virginia
Height: 5 feet 11 inches
Weight: 175 pounds
Build: Medium
Complexion: Fair
Scars and Marks: • None »

’ Marital Status: Single
Employment: Currently unemployed but ;

- seeking work - the source
* has been employed in the past |

in clerical capacities with j
hospitals and medical insurance*

companies.
Social Security Number:
Education: . Four years high school, 

Charleston, West Virginia
Parents:

Father: EARL ROBERT MERRITT, SR.

Mother:
Richmond, Virginia 
REBECCA BLANCH FRISBY
Charleston, West Virginia

Stepfather: CARL P. FRISBY
Charleston, West Virginia

- 2 -
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WFO 137-5692

F. DATE DESIGNATED AS INFORMANT

11/30/71

' G. ESTIMATE OF RELIABILITY

There has been insufficient contact with the informant 
to determine reliability. Nothing has been developed, however, 
to indicate that the informant has furnished other than reliable 
information. - (

H. EMPLOYMENT ' •

The source is not employed at this time. He has talked 
with persons at the Institute for Policy Studies (IPS), 1520 
New Hampshire Avenue, N.W.', Washington, D.C., who have stated 
that he is being considered for a job at IPS. These persons are 
MARCUS RASKIN and ARTHUR IRWIN WASKOW. IPS, RASKIN and WASKOW 
are subjects of WFO files set forth later in this communication.

The source has been employed in the past as a hospital 
and medical insurance company clerical employee.

' J* PAST ACTIVITIES' ’

The source has in the past furnished information, to 
the Metropolitan Police Department (Intelligence Division and 
Second District), Washington, D.C., and the Alcohol, Tobacco 
and Firearms Division of the. Internal Revenue Service.

The source has been in the Washington, D.C. area, 
primarily in the vicinity of Dupont Circle, for more than six 
years. .

During the Spring, 1971, the source became associated 
with JOHN RANKIN DAVIS (WF 100-48582) and others associated with 
the planning of the May, 1971, demonstrations in Washington, D.C. 
Following his association with these persons, the source began 
to take part in activities held at IPS and to become acquainted 
with persons at IPS such as RASKIN, WASKOW and JOANN MALONE.

NW 68262 Docld:32989698 Page 6
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WFO 137-5692 - .

The source advised that he has never been arrested 
although he has been detained by law enforcement personnel on 
several occasions. A search of the files of the Metropolitan 
Police Department and U.S. Park Police disclosed no record 
identifiable with the source under his true name or any of his 
aliases. A check of NCIC reflected no warrants for the source 
under his true name or aliases. ‘

A review of WFO indices reflects that the'source was 
the subject of WF 87-18178. Under the name JAMES R. MONROE, 
the source had, during May, 1970, cashed three checks totalling 
$225.00 at Charleston, West Virginia, on a bank in Washington, 
D.C. The checks were returned to the Charleston Bank. Prosecu­
tion in this matter was declined on 2/23/71, by AUSA ROBERT B. 
KING,' Southern District of West Virginia, because the amount 
of money involved and evidence available did not justify further 
investigative efforts to locate and interview MERRITT.

The source explained that he had at one time cashed 
several checks amounting to a little over $200 while he visited 
Charleston, West Virginia, during the Spring, 1970. He stated 
that he has made efforts to negotiate payment of these checks 
and that he has at no other time and will never again engage 
in this practice. '

J. IDENTIFICATION RECORD .

A request for an Identification Record was made on 
11/8/71. No criminal or civil file identifiable with the source 

under his true name or aliases was located.

K. CRIMINAL ASSOCIATES ■

The source is in regular contact with a number of 
persons engaged in criminal activity. He is an admitted homo­
sexual and this has brought him into contact with other homo­
sexuals who engage in various types of criminal activities. The 
source has in the past furnished information concerning persons 
involved in a homicide, narcotics, armed robberies, burglaries 
and other crimes to the Metropolitan Police Department.

' - 4 -
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WFO 137-5692

. The source spends time in the Dupont Circle area,
Georgetown, downtown Washington, 14th and U Streets, N.W., • 
14th Street and Columbia Road, N.W., and several other sections 
of Washington, D.C.

L. INFORMATION FURNISHED IN THE PAST .

The source has furnished information regarding the 
captioned cases set forth below:

• Institute for Policy Studies (IPS)

IS-NEW LEFT
(OO:WFO) .
(Bufile 100-447935) . ‘
(WFOfile 100-46784)

IPS is located at 1520 New Hampshire Avenue, N.W., 
Washington, D.C. •

The source has furnished information concerning IPS 
on a continuing basis. On 10/5/71, the source advised that he 
had attended a meeting regarding prisons held at IPS on 9/21/71. 
This meeting was dominated by ARTHUR-IRWIN WASKOW and JOANN 
MALONE. These two persons are the subjects of WFO file 
105-50397 (Bufile 105-114241), captioned "ARTHUR IRWIN WASKOW, 
SM-NEW LEFT" and WFO file 100-49419 (Bufile 454221), captioned 
“JOANN MALONE, SM-NEW LEFT." The source also furnished infor­
mation on 10/6/71 concerning another meeting involving the 
prison issue held at IPS on 10/5/71. This meeting, too, was 
dominated by WASKOW and MALONE.

On 10/13/71, the source advised that sometime during 
September, 1971, MALONE had discussed the subject of FBI 
surveillance of IPS with him. She told the source that she 
and others at IPS believed the FBI was watching them from a 
building across the street, from a room in the Dupont Plaza 
Hotel (to the right of the IPS building) and possibly from the 

building on the other side of the IPS building. It was further 
believed that the IPS building was "bugged" and that the FBI 
was using sophisticated electronic equipment to pick up con­
versations in and around IPS. Because of these suspicions,

- 5 -

NW 68262 Docld:32989698 Page 8 .



WFO 137-5692

persons associated with IPS discuss important matters outside 
the building.

The source provided a description on 10/13/71 of that 
part of the IPS building with which he is familiar.

On 10/20/71, the source advised that WASKOW had talked 
with him about the possibility of working for IPS or persons 
associated with IPS. WASKOW was not specific about the job 
and during subsequent contacts the source advised that he was 
having difficulty locating WASKOW at IPS and that when he did 
talk with him WASKOW was still noncommittal concerning the job.

On 11/16/71, the source advised that he had spoken 
with MARCUS RASKIN at IPS. RASKIN is the subject of WF 100-45298 
(Bufile 100-454040) captioned ’’MARCUS GOODMAN RASKIN, SM-NEW 
LEFT." RASKIN told the source on 11/15/71 that the source was 
being considered for a job which would involve assisting WASKOW 
and others at IPS. RASKIN said that further thought was being 
given this possibility and that the source should return to see 
him at 1:00 p.m., 11/23/71. .

. On 11/9/71, the source advised' that MALONE had commented
upon the apathy toward the prison issue and the fact that a 
meeting would be held on the evening of 11/11/71 to renew 
interest in the issue. On 11/10/71, the source stated that 
MALONE had again expressed her concern concerning lack of interest 
in the prison issue and had set forth her ideas as to what 
course of action should be undertaken to better publicize and 
renew .interest in the issue. MALONE said that she was disappointed 
in the response of the black community to the prison issue.

WEATHFUG
(00:CHICAGO) 
(WF 176-265) 
(Bufile 176-1594)

■Information has been received from a reliable source 
that MICHAEL LOUIS SPIEGEL, aka-FUGITIVE, 10 #4360, ARL-CONSPIRACY, 
OQ:CHICAGO, visited IPS while a fugitive during December, 1970.

- 6 -
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WFO 137-5692

Although the source has not observed nor heard anything of 
SPIEGEL, it is believed that the fact that the source is 
occasionally in the IPS building will enable him to be in an 
advantageous position to observe SPIEGEL or any other of the 
New Left fugitives should they make contact with persons at 
IPS.

' WILLIAM LUTHER PIERCE, aka
EM-NYA 
(OO:WFO) .
(WF 157-2396) ’

• (Bufile 157-13485) . • '

HAMILTON MICHAEL BARRETT, aka • '
‘ EM-NSWPP

(00:ALEXANDRIA)
(WF 157-3700) .

. JERRY DUNLAP ‘ •
' EM-NYA .

(WF 157-4463)

. On 10/29/71, the source advised that a friend, JERRY
DUNLAP, had offered to sell him four incendiary devices. DUNLAP, 
a homosexual, said that dynamite, dynamite caps, fragmentation 
and smoke grenades and stink bombs were also available. The 
source had previously purchased two incendiary devices from

. DUNLAP while the source was furnishing information to the 
Intelligence Division, Metropolitan Police Department (MPD), 
Washington, D.C.

DUNLAP stated that he could obtain these items from 
a MIKE (LNU) who works with DUNLAP at the Columbia Plaza 

Apartments, Washington, D.C. MIKE was described by DUNLAP as 
a former member of the National Socialist White Peoples Party 
(NSWPP) and currently affiliated with Dr. WILLIAM PIERCE and 
the National Youth Association (NYA). PIERCE was also formerly 
associated with the NSWPP. MIKE (LNU) is believed to be 
identical with HAMILTON MICHAEL BARRETT. The source subsequently, 
met MIKE and advised that he greatly resembled a photograph of 
BARRETT. '

- 7 -
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WFO 137-5692

PIERCE was described as the person from whom MIKE 
obtained the incendiaries and explosives and DUNLAP also 
said that MIKE had indicated that PIERCE was a chemist and had 
constructed incendiary devices.

This information was furnished to the Alcohol, Tax 
and Firearms Division, Internal Revenue Service, which is 
conducting investigation regarding firearms and explosives 
violations on the part of PIERCE and certain of his associates.

UNSUB; aka . ’
MIKE, ’ •
Mrs. ROMONA BANUELOS-VICTIM '
PROPOSED KIDNAPPING • ’
(OO:WFO) • . . ■ ■

' (WF 7-1053)

Based on the following information WFO instituted 
investigation in this matter. •

. On 11/3/71, the source advised that JERRY DUNLAP had
told him that MIKE (LNU), the NY A member working at the 
Columbia Plaza Apartments, had been talking of planning the kid­
napping of the woman who was to be appointed to a high position 
in' the U.S. Treasury. The name of this woman was not mentioned. 
This kidnapping was to be carried out at the Columbia Plaza 
Apartments. It was subsequently determined that Mrs. ROMONA 
BANUELOS had gone to the Columbia Plaza Apartments to inquire 
about an apartment during late September, 1971. Mrs. BANUELOS 
is the unconfirmed Treasurer-of the United States. Investigation 
is continuing in this matter.

This information has been disseminated to appropriate 
Federal agencies.

EDWARD SCOTT COLEMAN, aka -
EID 
(00:WFO) 
(WF 174-382) ’ .

‘ . - 8 -
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WFO 137-5692

On 10/27/71, the source advised that he had met an 
individual named MICHAEL HALL, a. homosexual, who claimed to 

' have lived with "RANDY" COLEMAN (EDWARD SCOTT COLEMAN), ' 

reportedly a homosexual, when COLEMAN was arrested by the MPD 
in connection with fire bombing of financial institutions in the 
northwest area of Washington, D.C. The two were supposed to have 

. lived together at 2120 0 Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. ■

This information was furnished to the Alcohol, Tax 
and Firearms Division (ATFD), which is investigating the fire 
bombings. It is also noted COLEMAN has been indicted on 
charges of attempting to bomb four Washington, D.C. businesses 
and banks in September, 1971, by Federal Grand Jury, Washington, 

• D.C. • .

JAMES HENRY ROLLINS, aka-FUGITIVE
UFAC-DISPENSING NARCOTICS
(00:KC)
(WF 88-7798) ■

. On 11/19/71, the source advised that he had seen a 
person resembling ROLLINS at a meeting concerning prisons held 
at IPS on-the evening of 9/21/71. This individual was accompanied 
by two Negro females and was later observed by the source on 
one or two occasions in Dupont Circle, Washington, D.C.

MISCELLANEOUS •

The source has .furnished information regarding 
demonstrations held in Washington, D.C., during the Fall, 1971.

The source advised on 11/2/71 that he had observed an 
individual resembling a man named WOODRUFF being sought by the 
U.S. Postal Inspectors. This person was observed in the 
vicinity of 2116 P Street, N.W., Washington, D.C.

The Postal Inspection’s Office, Washington, D.C., 
confirmed that they were seeking a fugitive named WOODRUFF and 
requested that they be advised if the man was observed in the 
future. The source has been attempting to ascertain the 
residence of this person.

- 9 -
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WFO 137-5692

The information furnished by the source regarding' 
IPS and persons associated with IPS has been of value as intelligence 
data. The source is one of only a few sources in a position to 
furnish information concerning IPS which is described as the 
“think tank” of the New Left. ■

Information regarding Dr. WILLIAM PIERCE and HAMILTON 
MICHAEL BARRETT is of value from an intelligence standpoint 
and has substantially aided the ATFD in its investigation of 
possible firearms and explosives violations on the part of these 
persons. , ... .

The source spends much time in many areas of Washington, 
D.C., particularly Dupont Circle, and this enables him to be 
observant concerning fugitives and for the matters of interest 
to the Bureau. The fact that he is a homosexual permits him 
to furnish information of value to the Bureau concerning -■ 
persons in the homosexual community, and enable. WFO to fulfill 
its responsibilities for identifying homosexuals in government.

' M. EMOTIONAL STABILITY ' .

During contacts with this informant the informant has 
exhibited no traits of emotional instability or unreliability, 
nor is it know that the informant has furnished any false infor­
mation. ’

f

- 10 -
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SAC, Washington Field (137-5692)

REG-2

Reurlet 12-7-71

12-9-71

In accordance with facts set forth in referenced . 
letter, you are hereby granted authority to. expend on a 
strictly C.O.D. basis the sum of up to but not to exceed 
$400 in accordance with provisions set forth in Section 108J 2, 
Manual of Instructions.

You should follow the development of this source 
very closely. If it appears that he could be more valuable 
in the security field, he should be converted to a security . 
type informant.

M. F. Row, 6221 IB

MAILED 20.

DECO “1971

FBI

NOTE: This is 
Field Office.

a newly converted, source of the Washington 
He recently gave information on a gambling

operation and seven other cases of a security nature which 
’ are of great interest to that division. In view of the
above, it is recommended that an additional SAC authority

Tolson 
Felt______  
Rosen ____  
Vohr______  
Bishop___  
Miller. E.S.

Casper  
Conrad 
Dalbey 
Cleveland _ 
Fonder  
Oates 
Tavcl 
Wallers___  
Soyar^I_r 
TeleJ^ot 
Hol mitt _ V 
Gandy^__

be approved.
Supervisor E.

FF:djf.Cm>

(5)

MAIL^dOM TELETYPE UNIT I I

: I

This response has been coordinated with 
Grigalus, Division Five.

V'a J

i^rr dia'.
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. UNITED STATES GOVEI^IENT

Memorandum
DIRECTOR, FBI date: 12-7-71

FROM

TO

w.

CI

WFO (137-5692)(P)

ReWFOlet to the Bureau, 11-30-71.

. An extra copy of this letter is furnished for the
Domestic Intelligence Division because the informant furnishes 
information of value in the security field.

■RECOMMENDATION

The purpose of this letter is.to recommend
authority to expend an additional $400.00 
the informant under provisions of Section

in payments to 
108-J, 2, Manual

of Instructions.

he
. He 
no

During the period the informant has been contacted
has shown no signs of-emotional instability or unreliability 
has maintained very regular contact and there has been 
indication that he has furnished any false information.

This informant has been paid a total of $400.00 
under SAC authority; these payments made between the period 
10-13-71 to 12-1-71. .

DATE

10-13-71 
10-20-71 
10-28-71 
11-3-71 
11-12-71
11-18-71 
11-26-71 
12-1-71

3 - Bureau
1 - WFO

TTO:ctw 
(4)

. $60.00

$20.00

AMOUNT

DEC 13 1971

-4

$60.00

Buy U.S. Savings Bonds Regularly on the Payroll Savings Plan
NWW62 DocM:3298M08 Page 15* °



WFO 137-5692

CASES ON WHICH INFORMATION HAS BEEN FURNISHED

ReWFOlet set forth certain information provided 
by the source. Set forth below is additional information 
for which the source was paid during the period 10-13-71, 
to 12-1-71:

INSTITUTE FOR POLICY STUDIES (IPS)
IS - New Left
(00: WFO) ' '
WF 100-46784
Bufile 100-447935

ARTHUR IRWIN WASKOW .
'■ SM - New Left

(OO:WFO)
WF 105-50397

’ Bufile 105-114241

MARCUS GOODMAN RASKIN
■SM - New Left
(00:WFO) __ ■
WF 100-45298
Bufile 100-454040

JOANN MALONE ’
SM - New Left
(00:WFO)
WF 100-49419
Bufile-100-454221

On 11-22-71, advised that in speaking with DIANE 
(LNU) at the Red House Collective, Washington, D. C. (WDC), 
he learned that a national meeting concerning prisons had 
been held at IPS the week end of 11/13-15/71. DIANE 
also told the source that ARTHUR'WASKOW and JOANN MALONE, 
both associated with IPS, were devoting most of their time • 
to national prison abolition activities and little or no 
time to local activities in TOC.

On 11-24-71, the source advised that an individual 
identified as ROBERT WALL, a former Special Agent of the FBI 
had delivered a speech at an IPS meeting the same evening.

2
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WFO 137-5692

WALL’S topic concerned white power structure ’’exploitation 
of blacks, especially black policemen.” On 11-26-71, the 
source provided a tape of WALL’S speech and identified a 
photograph of WALL as the speaker. WFO Agents familiar 
with WALL advised that the voice on the tape was most 
probably that of WALL. (The Bureau was advised of this by 
airtel dated 11-26-71.) ;

Also on 11-26-71, the source provided a copy of 
a memo to all IPS personnel indicating that the next IPS 
Administrative Meeting would be held on 11-29-71, at 10:00 a.m 
He also provided a copy of a memo directed to IPS personnel 
reflecting an ’’Election ”72 Seminar” would be held at IPS.

(On 12-3-71, ths source advised that he had spoken 
with’WASKOW on 12-2-71,• concerning a job which MARCUS RASKIN 
had previously stated the source -would have at. IPS. WASKOW 
confirmed that the job would involve assisting him and that 
it would begin shortly after 1-1-72. WASKOW told the source 
that he would attempt to find other work at IPS for -which 
the source would be compensated before 1-1-72. WASKOW 
advised that during the .remainder of 1971 he would spend 
some time each week orienting the source for the job and 
that this would include familiarizing the source with IPS. 
On 12-4-71, the source advised that he had spoken further 
with WASKOW concerning the job and that WASKOW was attempting 
to find projects with which the source could.assist before 
1-1-72.) (Source has not been paid for the period covering 
12/3 - 4/71.)

JOHN RANKIN DAVIS, aka
SM - New Left (Extremist)

■ (00:WFO)
WF 100-48582
Bufile 100-451643
CAPBOM
(00:WFO)
WF 174-318 . '
Bufile 174-1891 .

On 11-18-71, the source furnished information 
concerning his association with JACK DAVIS, an individual 
considered a suspect in the bombing of the U. S. Capitol, 
3-1-71, The source was closely associated with DAVIS during

3
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WFO 137-5692

April, May and June, 1971, but during this time never' 
admitted to having participated in the bombing and never 
specifically indicated who might have been involved in the 
bombing. The source advised, however, that DAVIS was very 
’’paranoid” concerning the subject of the Capitol bombing.

ALEXIS KING, aka
Alex,
Tony
IGB • • ", ’
(OO:WFO) ■
WF 182-New . ’

On 11-22-71, the source advised that he had met 
an acquaintance of his named ALEXIS KING at the Fairfax 
Restaurant, 2100 block of p Street, N. W., WDC, on 11-21-71. 
This man offered to sell the source six $20.00 bills,described 
as counterfeit by KING, for $100.00. KING said he had more 
of these bills if the source was interested. The source 
told KING that he was not’interested but recalled that the 
first four numbers of each serial number-on therbills were 
”5152.” The source also advised that he had seen KING 
involved in a numbers transaction and that he gathered 
from KING that KING was still dealing in numbers. /

The information concerning the counterfeit bills 
was furnished to SA STEPHEN A. LORD, Washington Field Office, 
U. S. Secret Service (USSS). SA LORD advised that he 
considered the information very reliable and valuable in 
that three $20.00 counterfeit bills with serial numbers 
beginning ”5152” had been received very recently by the 
USSS. He stated that it is unusual to get information 
concerning persons passing such bills before counterfeit 
bills are received by the USSS and investigation to trace 
them is instituted. '

Based on the information regarding KING’S involve­
ment in numbers transactions, the above-captioned 182 case 
re KING was opened.

The source furnished certain identifying data re 
KING and a.possible address for this individual.

4



WFO 137-5692

EVALUATION . • -

The source is in a position to provide coverage 
of the Dupont.Circle and other areas in WDC for fugitives 
and other criminal activities, such as that regarding the 
counterfeit $20.00 bills set forth above. The source has 
also furnished valuable information regarding IPS (publicly 
described as the "New Left Think-Tank") and meetings held 
at IPS. He has also been told that he will begin assisting 
ARTHUR WASKOW at IPS after 1-1-72, thus placing him in a 
position to obtain further information of value to the Bureau.
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SAC, ^hington Field (137-5692) 2-8-72

Director, FBI 37

Reurlet 2-4-72

In accordance with facts set forth in referenced 
letter, you are hereby granted authority to expend on a 
strictly C.O.D. basis the sum of up to but not to exceed 
$400 in accordance with provisions set forth in Section 108J 2 
Manual of Instructions. .

1 - M. F. Row, 6221 IB

■a
MAILED/23

FEB 8 ’1972

FBI

NOTE: 
months.

This individual has been an informant for two
Recently, information from him led to the arrest

of six persons by local authorities. He has furnished 
positive information in two ITSP matters. He is frequently 
with persons who are sympathetic with the Weatherman cause.

Sit Tolson 
St. Felt----------------  
lit. Rosen
Vt. Mohr__________
Xe. Bishop
Mt. Miller. E.S-------- 
J3t. Callahan 
.3». Casper
"Ur. Conrad
Mt. Dalbey
Mr. Cleveland_____  
Mr. Ponder
Mr. Bates_________  
Mr. Waikart
Mr. WalteaiM__ ____  
Mr. SoyarK /l-E 
Tele. Rotlwr 
Miss Holmes 
Miss Gandy

Through associates in this area, 
on New Left matters. In view of 
that an additional SAC authority 

EFF:djfd- 

(5) '

a

MAIL ROOM TELETYPE UNIT

he is developing information 
the above, it is recommended 
be approved.

i

A »

■IWK®^O0M32ai96^ S"





WFO 137-5692

Date

12/22/71
12/30/71
1/6/72
1/13/72
1/21/72
1/28/72

Amount

$ 45.00

40.00
50.00
45.00
45.00
60.00

'■ • CASES ON WHICH INFORMATION HAS BEEN FURNISHED

JOHN RANKIN DAVIS, aka
. SM - NEW LEFT (EXTREMIST) '
LOGAN ACT
OO:WFO
Bufile 100-451643
WFO file 100-48582

CAPBOM
OO:WFO
.Bufile 174-1891 '
WFO file 174-318

WEATHFUG *■ .
00:CHICAGO
Bufile 176-1594
WFO file 176-265

^WF 4015-c\had in the past been associated with ' 

JOHN RANKIN DAVIS,4ka JACK DAVIS, a known Weatherman under­

ground supporter and a suspect in the bombing of the United 
States Capitol, 3/1/71. The source was instructed to attempt • 
to renew his association with DAVIS, and has recently succeeded 
in doing so.

On 1/4/72, the source ascertained DAVIS’ place of 
employment and developed information regarding DAVIS’ work 
schedule, duties, and activities.
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WFO 137-5692

On 1/11/72, the source advised that he had visited. 
DAVIS at his place of employment and discussed DAVIS’ recent 

■ activities-and a mutual acquaintance. . •

• On 1/14/72, the source advised that he had again
visited DAVIS at his place of employment and .subsequently 
furnished information regarding DAVIS' attitude to the New 
Left movement. - ’

• On 1/24/72, the source advised that he had talked 
with DAVIS on 1/22/72, and that DAVIS had discussed the

• possibility of having the source live with him. ■ He told the 
source that he had .become much less interested in New Left 
activities and was primarily interested in "gay" issues 
(DAVIS is a homosexual, according tcfWF 4015-Cland other 
sources). . \

. On 1/27/72, the source advised that DAVIS had told 
■ him that he was staying in a residence near Dupont Circle, 
Northwest, Washington, D.C., and was anxious to find a new 

x permanent residence. . ‘

. On 2/2/72, the source advised that he was visited
by DAVIS during the early morning hours of 2/2/72. During

• the visit, DAVIS told the source about his association with 
the Weathermen and particularly that.he knew MIKE SPIEGEL 
and CATHY WILKERSON, both WEATHFUG subjects, when they lived 
in Washington, D.C. before they, became fugitives, DAVIS

’ at first referred to SPIEGEL as MIKE BRADFORD, which may 
be an alias being used by SPIEGEL.

' It should be noted that WFO-is attempting to 
obtain information concerning DAVIS’ activities, acquaint­
ances, and attitudes, as well as knowledge he might have 
concerning CAPBOM or the WEATHFUG subjects. Placing the ■ . 
informant in a position where DAVIS will trust him so that 
such information can be obtained is a gradual process and 
WFO takes this fact into consideration in paying this source.

- .. ~ 3 - |
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' UNSUB; aka • .
Howard J..Charafardin

. CGR - WORTHLESS CHECKS ■ '
7 00:ALEXANDRIA ’ ’ ■ .

WFO file 70-2855 ■

. ’ On 12/10/71, the informant advised that HOWARD C.
BRICE is no doubt identical with an individual who has ’ 
cashed a number of bad checks with various airlines using 
the name HOWARD J. CHARAFARDIN. Two checks, totalling ' 
almost $1,430 were given by this individual to Trans World 
Airlines arid a number of other checks were being discovered 
by other airlines as having been given them by this person. 
The source furnished information of value regarding BRICS’s 
associates, habits, activities, and check passing methods.

On 12/17/71, the source provided further information 
■regarding BRICS’s activities and possible whereabouts.

UNSUBS; aka ,
ROLAND CLUTTER, • .

/ KARL LEE WOODS .

' ITSP
00:WFO ’ .

. WFO file 87-19011 .

On 12/22/71, the informant provided information 
regarding the activities, associates, location and check . 
passing methods of KARL LEE WOODS. WOODS was involved in 
the passing of checks which prompted the institution of 
investigation in the above captioned case. - •

INSTITUTE FOR POLICY STUDIES (IPS) '
IS - NEW LEFT ’

. 00:WFO '

Bufile 100-447935 ’
' WFO file 100-46784 '

- 4 -
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ARTHUR IRWIN WASKOW • . ■
• SM - NEW LEFT ’ . - '

.■ 00: WFO ’ ' .
. . Bufile 105-114241 '

WFO file 105-50397 . .

On 12/8/71, the source advised that he had been 
at IPS on 12/7/71, and a person there told him that ARTHUR 
WASKOW and others associated with IPS were in a. conference . 
with an individual named WALL (ph). WALL was not further 
identified, but was possibly identical with ROBERT WALL, a- 
former Special Agent of the FBI who was reported to have 
visited and talked with persons associated with IPS.

. The source had been promised a job at IPS as 
ARTHUR WASKOW’s assistant. It is noted that among other 
activities, WASKOW had in the past been acquainted with two 
WEATHFUG subjects, MIKE SPIEGEL and CATHY WILKERSON.

On 12/16/71, the source advised that he talked 
with WASKOW on the same date and was told that he was to 
have orientation sessions for the job with WASKOW.

On 12/20/71, WASKOW explained the nature of the 
job the source was to have and asked the source what his 
reaction to police pressure would be. . .

On 12/27/71, the source talked with WASKOW, who 
said that despite a letter from IPS which, the source had 
received to the contrary, the source was still being 
considered for the job at IPS. WASKOW stated that he had 
”sources” who had indicated that IPS was being infiltrated 
by law enforcement agencies and that strict screening 
procedures, possibly including polygraph tests, were, being 
adopted regarding new employees and.those already associated 
with IPS. . -

- 5 -
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On 1/13/72, the source talked with an attorney 
for IPS named HIRSTEIN (ph), (very probably identical with 
ROBERT E. HERZSTEIN, an attorney with the firm of Arnold 
and Porter, which handles IPS’ legal affairs). This indi­
vidual reiterated IPS’ new screening procedures which were 
being adopted to prevent alleged Government infiltration.

’ On 1/27/72, the source was interviewed for three 
houz;s by an attorney for IPS, and RICHARD BARNETT, subject 
of WFO 100-45302, Director of IPS, as a part of the screening 
program for employment at IPS.. He was told that the screening 
procedures had been adopted as a result of revelations made 
to IPS by a former FBI Agent named -ROBERT .WALL, who told 
them of law enforcement attempts to obtain information 

concerning IPS. ■

' DEMONSTRATIONS BY MEMBERS OF 

THE GAY LIBERATION FRONT AGAINST 
THE UNITED STATES PARK POLICE, 
AREA OF THE IWO JIMA MONUMENT, 
ARLINGTON, VIRGINIA, 
JANUARY 6, 7, and 8, 1972 
IS - NEW LEFT ’ ' 7 .
00:ALEXANDRIA : . -
WFO file 100-55286 .

On 1/4/72, the informant advised that the captioned
demonstration would occur in protest.against United States 
Park Police (USPP) arrests of homosexuals near the Iwo. Jima 
Monument. On 1/5/72,-the informant advised that a rally 
would be held by members of the Gay Activist Alliance (a 
homosexual organization in Washington, D.C.) at the Iwo Jima 
Monument. The USPP was advised of these activities. Six
persons wex^^rrested ^by the USPP at -the . Iwo Jima Monument 
ror demonstrating without a permit. •

- 6 -
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HARRISBURG DEFENSE COMMITTEE '

. IS - NEV? LEFT ’
00:NEW YORK ' '
WFO file 100-53301 • '

On 1/3/72, and 1/21/72, the informant provided 
literature received from the captioned organization which 
is engaged in support of the defendants .in the Harrisburg 8 
Conspiracy trial. . *

' evaluation ■ . . ’ ’ . • ‘

■ The informant is at this time attempting to develop . 
his association with JOHN RANKIN DAVIS so that he might obtain 
information of value concerning the WEATHFUG and CAPBOM cases. 
He is in a position to provide information regarding criminal 
activity and fugitives near the Dupont Circle area in 
Washington, D.C. Further, the source is continuing to attempt 
to obtain employment at IPS as ARTHUR WASKOW’s assistant, 
which may enable him to obtain information of value concerning ■ 
WEATHFUG subjects and other New Left activity. The information­
set forth in this communication has been of value in both the 
criminal and New Left security fields.
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SAC Washington Field (137-5692)

FBI (137-28143) —

3-27-72

Reurlet 3-22-72

In accordance with facts and justification set 
forth in referenced letter, you are hereby granted authority 
to expend on a strictly C.O.D. basis the sum of up to but 
not to exceed $400 in accordance with provisions set forti: 
in Section 108J 2, Manual of Instructions

1 - M,. F. Row, 6221 IB

t

MAILED 5

MAR 2 7-197:
FBI

NOTE: This individual is a fairly new criminal informant 
• of the Washington Field Office. Since last SAC authority 

was approved, he has furnished valuable information on the 
. r, WEATHFUG and CAPBOM investigations. In- addition, his ’ 
^information led to -the opening of a.' new .TFIS case in the

3

4

dr. Tolson
Felt_______  

St. Rosen . 
Sr. Mohr - ___ —
Hr. Bishop

Miller. E.S  
Sr. Callahan 
^r. Casper - -
Hr. Conrad 
Mr. Dalbey -

Washington Field Office. He has also furnished information 
concerning narcotics activity in the Washington, D. C. area. 
Based on these facts, it is recommended that an additional 
SAC authority be granted. . ; •

ABFidjf^U
(5)

Hr. Cleveland 
Hr. Ponder . 
Mr. Bates _ 
Mr. Waikart 
Mr. Walters 
Mr. Soy are . 
Tele. Room

=54APR2 d 1972

1



* OeWNAt FORM Ha 10
May t«» tomoN ’
«SA FYM.R (« CYR) I01-U.0 .

,• UNITED STATES < /ERNMENT

Memorandum
TO : DIRECTOR, FBI

FROM

to recommendletter is

made during the

APR 12 1972

because the infor- 
the security field.

an additional $400 in pay­
provisions of Section 108-J,

date: 3/22/72

CI

Re WFO letter to the Bureau, 2/4/72.

An extra copy of this letter is being furnished
for the Domestic Intelligence Division 
mant furnishes information of value in

Rec ommenda ti on

The purpose of .this 
authority be given to expend 

‘ ments to the informant under 
2, Manual of Instructions.-

During the period the informant has been contacted 
he has shown no signs of emotional instability or unrelia­
bility. He has maintained very regular contact and there 
has been no indication that he has furnished any false 
information. ‘ at

This informant has been paid a total of $400 
under SAC authority during the period 2/8/72 - 3/17/72. 
Authority to pay the informant an additional $400 under 
SAC authority was granted per Bureau letter dated

s^were

Amount

$35.00
60.00
55.00

* The following p
above-mentioned period:

Date

2/8/72
2/11/72
2/18/72

0 - Bureau
1 - WFO

TTO:kmz
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2/24/72 $55.00
3/6/72 60.00
3/13/72 80.00
3/17/72 55.00

CASES WHICH INFORMATION HAS BEEN FURNISHED

- - • JOHN RANKIN DAVIS, aka;
SM - ICT LEFT (EXTREMIST) .

LOGAN ACT 
(00:WFO) 
Bufile 100-451643 

: ’ - WFOfile 100-4'8582- - .

” CAPBOM 
(00:WFO) 

: • Bufile 174-1891 .
WFOfile 174-318

WEATHFUG
’ (OO:CG) ‘

•Bufile 176-1594 .
WFOfile 176-265

The informant has been targeted against JOHN RANK 
DAVIS, a suspect in the- CAPBOM case, and an admitted asso­
ciate of WEATHFUG subjects. The informant has been attempt­
ing to further develop his.'association with DAVIS and has 
furnished information of value concerning DAVIS’ activities 
and associates. The. source is, of course, constantly alert 
for indications of any contact on DAVIS’ part with WEATHFUG 
subjects or other New Left fugitives as well as any impli­
cation of knowledge on DAVIS’ part regarding CAPBOM.

On 2/6/72, the source provided information con­
cerning a recent conversation he had had with DAVIS. He
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further recalled that sometime during April, 1971, DAVIS ■ 

had made a statement to an attorney 'who is a mutual friend 
of DAVIS and the source and who was providing legal advice 
to both, thathe had been told by an individual that that 
individual had been involved in the bombing of the U.S. 
Capitol, 3/1/71. The attorney, KAY TWCHIG, told DAVIS 
that he would talk to this unnamed individual for DAVIS to 
determine whether this person had actually.been involved 
in the bombing. The source .had been making an effort to. . 
recall as best he could what had been said during this ' 
conversation and reported it only when he was sure that he 
recalled enough for the information to be of value.

• On 2/13/72, the source advised that he had 
spoken with DAVIS on that same date and furnished infor­
mation regarding DAVIS’ activities and proposed activities 
at that time.- ‘ . •

' On 2/16/72, the source provided information re­
garding a trip he had taken to New York City with DAVIS 
during April, 1971, believing that the information might 
be of value to the Bureau. ’ ‘

On 2/18,20,25, and 26/72, the source provided 
information regarding recent contacts he had had with DAVIS.

On 2/29/72, the source provided information re­
garding a conversation with DAVIS on 2/28/72. During this 
conversation DAVIS told the source about being interviewed 
by an FBI Agent (an interview which did occur and which 
DAVIS had told the interviewing Agent he intended to tell 
no one about) and that he would have’nothing further to do 
with the FBI. Davis also told the source that he intended 
to travel to New York City after work that night to visit 
“Weather fugitives" and other unnamed persons.



WFO 137-5692 . ’ ■

On 3/4/72, the source furnished information 

concerning DAVIS’ associates.

On 3/6/72, the source furnished information con-, 
cerning conversations he had had with DAVIS on 3/5-6/72.

• On 3/10/72, the source provided information con­
cerning a conversation he had with DAVIS on 3/9/72. During 

this conversation DAVIS asked the source to rent an apart­
ment under an assumed name to be used by DAVIS, the source 
and others whom DAVIS would not name as a meeting place.

. On 3/13, 15, and 16/72, the source provided 
additional information concerning DAVIS. ■

UNSUB; aka, - \
' • Howard J. Charafardin . ■

’ . CGR - WORTHLESS CHECKS ’ •

■ (00:AX) „ .
. ■ WFOfile 70-2855 • .

' On 3/4/72, the source furnished information re­
garding the possible location of HOWARD C. BRICE, who is 
no doubt identical with the individual who had passed a 
number of worthless checks to purchase airline tickets 
under the name HOWARD J. CHARAFARDIN. The source had pre­
viously furnished considerable information of value 
concerning this individual and remains alert-regarding 
his activities and location. ’ '

' GARY COVINGTON 
. TFIS - .-

(00:WFO) ’ •
’ WFOfile 15-6424 • • '

r

- 4 -
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On 2/9/72, the source furnished information con­

cerning an individual known to the source as GARY COVINGTCN 
who apparently works as a security guard at the Trailways 
Bus Terminal in Washington, D.C. (WDC), and who has told ’ 
the source that he is involved in thefts from the terminal. 
A case was opened to determine whether COVINGTON is involved 
in such activity.

THE DEFENSE COMMITTEE, aka; ' ' •

■ ’ IS - NEW LEFT ' * .
•’ . (00: PH) . ’• •

Bufile 100-457882 . ’ .
• ‘ WFOfile 100-53301 . ’

On 2/8/72, and 3/10/72, the source furnished 
literature received from the Harrisburg Defense.Committee. 
This literature was of value in regard to this case. •

’ DEMONSTRATION SPONSORED BY D.C. CITIZENS ’

’ ' CONCERNED FOR PEACE IN INDO-CHINA AT THE
■ / . ‘ WHITE HOUSE, , ’ - ‘

’■ ■ • WASHINGTON, D.C. • ' ' ’
2/17/72 * '

■ IS - NEW LEFT . . ‘

' - VIDEM; . . ' • ■
. PREVIT - ” . • '

’ (OO:WFO) '. • ’ • . .

■ On 2/16/72, the source- advised that captioned 
demonstration was to take place and appropriate agencies 
were advised re this matter. This demonstration did take 
place on 2/16/72. . '

MISCELLANEOUS • ‘

•The source has provided to this office information 
of value to the Metropolitan Police Department (MPD) con­

cerning narcotics activity in WDC. •
» •

• . - 5 -
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On 2/25/72, provided information concerning 
marijuana dealings on the part of persons at 1707 P 
Street, N.W., WDC, and possible heroin dealings on the 
part of persons at 1757 Church Street, N.W., WX, and 
on the part of an individual who frequents the Dupont ' 
Circle area of WDC. The source later furnished additional 
information regarding narcotics activity at 1707 P Street, 
N.W.; All of this information has been furnished to 
appropriate officers of the MPD who advised that this ■ 
information is of value to the MPD. .

; evaluation ■ . . ‘ . •

• . The informant has been making every effort to 
further develop his relationship with JOHN RANKIN DAVIS 
and has succeeded in doing so. Further development of 
this association will hopefully enable the sour.ce to 
obtain information of value concerning the WEATHFUG and • 
CAPBOM investigations. The source continues to furnish 
to this office information of value to both the Bureau 
and other law enforcement agencies concerning criminal

• activity in WDC and particularly in the Dupont Circle, N.W. 
area of the city. Additionally, the source has provided 
information of value to the Bureau in the New Left security 
field and is in a position to continue to do so.
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To: SAC, WO

airtel

. 4/21/72

1 - Mr. A. B. Fipp, Jr. (1503 JB)
1 - Mr. J. T. Stewart
1 - Mr. S. F. Phillips

From: Direct or, PM

/ capbom
( BufiXe: 174-1891
i Worn©: 174-318

JOHN RANKIN DAVIS, aka 
SML (EXTREMIST) 
LOGAN ACT
Bufile: 100-451643

Your office’s investigation of the CAPBOM case, and more 
specifically the Davis matter, has Jed- to interviews with a number 
of Davis* associates, mostly males who, like Davis,, are homosexuals. 
Paralleling this phase of the Davis investigation has been your 
commendable penetration of Davis through <MMIOIMbv.,ho has devel­
oped a close rapport with Davis and is able to keep your office 
advised on a timely basis.concerning Davis* activities.

In this stage of the Davis investigation, it is believed 
that^consideration should be given to a possible pseudo interview 

, of with intention that the informant then report back to
Davis concerning the’ FBI’s contact with him. The primary purpose 
of such action would be, of course, to further protect the security 
of the informant. A secondary purpose might well be to enhance the

SEP: car
(10)

$ - , ? -.

SEE NOTE PAGE TWO

46 aPK 37 1972
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Mrtel to WO 
Ke: CAPBOM

JOHN RANKIN DAVIS, aka 
174-1891 
100-451643

relationship between informant and Davis. The current need 
for such a tactic may be made necessary by information being 
developed by your office indicating that some of Davis’ 
associates are reporting bach to him concerning FBI’s inter­
views of them.

You are instructed to give the foregoing studied 
consideration and submit to Bureau your recommendations reiat 
ing to this matter. If you agree with the suggestion. Bureau 
would be interested in your proposed means of canying out.the 
pseudo interview of informant.

NOTE:

Davis is one of eight principal suspects in 
bombing of U.S. Capitol, 3/1/71.
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SAC, Washington Field (137-5692) 5-12-72

kc-7l

Acting Director, FBI (137-28143) .— Q)

' mi2 •

z?z< Beurlet 5-8-72. (

In accordance with facts set forth in referenced ' 
letter, you are hereby granted authority to espend on a . . 
strictly C.O.D. basis the sura of up to but not to exceed 
$400 in accordance with provisions set forth in Section 108J 2, 

. Manual of Instructions. •

1 - .M. F. Row, 6221 IB

NOTE: This Washington Field Office informant has been 
furnishing information re CAPBOM and WEATHFUG investigations. 
Lately, he has been active in gaining the confidence of one 
of the prime suspects in the CAPBOM case plus also attempting 
to get further information as to the activities of any of , 
the WEATHFUG subjects through individuals in this area who 
are reportedly in contact with some of these fugitives. In
view of the above, it is recommended that an additional SAC
authority be approved.

Felt_________
Mohr_________
Rosen ... - -
Bates -- -------
Bishop _______  
Callahan_____  
Campbell_____
Casper_______
Cleveland ------

MAILED 5.

Conrad - . ..
Dalbey_______  
Miller. E.S____  
Ponder_______  
Soyars _______

Telt&Room .J* 
Holmes _ 
Gandy ________ MAIL ROOM TELETYPE UNIT
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UNITED STATES G ERNMENT

Memo^ndum
TO : ACTING DIRECTOR, FBI (137-28143) date: 5/8772

WHU137-5692) (P) •

SUBJECT
CI ““ •

ReWFOlet to the Bureau, 3/22/72.

An extra copy of this letter is being furnished 
for the Domestic Intelligence Division because the informant 
furnishes information of value in the security field.

RECOMMENDATION

s
The purpose of this letter is to’ recommend that 

authority be given to expend an additional $400 in payments 
to the informant under provisions of Section 108-J, 2, Manual 
of Instructions.

During the period in which the informant has been 
contacted, he has shown no signs of emotional instability 
or unreliability. He has maintained very regular contact 
and there has been no indication that he has furnished any 
false information. • ■

This informant has been paid a total of $400.00 
under SAC authority during the period 3/28/72 - 5/5/72. 
Authority to nay the informant an additional $400 under SAC 
authority was granted per Bureau letter dated 3/27/72.

mentioned period:

1 - WFO 
TTO:rms 
(4)

REC-71

DATE AMOUNT

Bureau

< $75.00
35.00

1.^45.00

The following payments were made during the above

Buy U.S. Savings Bonds Regularly on the Payroll Savings 'Plan •

3/28/72 
3/31/72
4/7/72

15 MAY 18 1972

1501 ’
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-r .^wA/J3/72 55.00
4/24/72 75.00
5/1/72 75.00
515112. ‘40.00

CASES ON WHICH INFORMATION HAS BEEN FURNISHED

JOHN RANKIN DAVIS, aka 
SM-REVOLUTIONARY ACTIVITIES (EXTREMIST) 
LOGAN ACT 
(00:WFO)
Bufile 100-451643
WFO file 100-48582

CAPBOM
(00:WFO)

Bufile 174-1891
WFO file 174-318

WEATHFUG
(OO:CG)
Bufile 176-1594
WFO file 176-265

An integral facet of the CAPBOM investigation involves 
intense coverage of the activities of eight susnects in this 
case. One of these susoects is JOHN RANKIN DAVIS, who is also 
an admitted acquaintance of WEATHFUG subjects. This informant 
has been targeted against DAVIS and the informant has gradually 
been developing his association with this individual. The 
source has been furnishing information of value concerning 
DAVIS on a timely and continual basis. He is constantly alert 
for any indication that DAVIS has knowledge regarding CAPBOM 
or any contact on DAVIS’ part with WEATHFUG subjects- or other 
New Left fugitives.

2 .
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On 3/19/72, the source advised that he had spoken 
wi-th DAVIS' on 3/18/72. DAVIS stated among other things that 
lie had been involved in helping an unnamed wanted person to 
get out of the Washington, D. C. (WDC) area. •

On 3/27/72, the informant advised that he had 
spoken with DAVIS on 3/26/72. At this time DAVIS discussed 
the possibility of obtaining an apartment to be used as a 
meeting place in the Dupont Circle area, N. W., WDC? his ■ 
intention to travel to New York in the near future and his ' 
work plans. ‘

On 3/29/72, the informant advised that he had spoken 
with DAVIS early on that same date. DAVIS again discussed 
the above-mentioned apartment, as well as his concern over a 
friend incarcerated in D. C. Jail and his concern with "gay" 
(homosexual) issues. . .

On 4/5/72, the informant advised that he had talked 
with DAVIS early on the same date. DAVIS at this time dis­
cussed the fact.that he had been‘terminated at his place of 
employment because of some missing money, his irritation 
concerning FBI coverage of his activities, and his concern 
about the above-mentioned friend incarcerated in D. C. Jail.

On 4/7z72, the informant advised that he had seen 
DAVIS on 4/6/72 and that DAVIS had expressed an intention to 
travel to Pennsylvania for a, stay from Monday to Wednesday 
of the. following week. ’

On 4/8/72, the informant advised that he had spoken 
with DAVIS early the same morning. DAVIS reiterated his plans 
concerning the above-mentioned trip to Pennsylvania. The 
source also obtained the name and address of an apparent 
acquaintance of DAVIS residing in New York City.

• On 4/21/72, the informant furnished information 
concerning certain associates of DAVIS.

3
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On 4/21/72, the informant advised that he had 
talked with DAVIS earlier the same evening. DAVIS discussed 
the possibility of traveling to New York in the immediate 
future. DAVIS also mentioned that the FBI was continuing 
to investigate his activities and that because of this he 
had become active in the Movement again. DAVIS said that 
he might as well be active because the FBI would keep tabs 
oh him and his friends whether he was active or inactive.

On 4/23/72, the source advised that he had seen 
DAVIS earlier the same morning. DAVIS stated that he would 
have to postpone the above-mentioned trip to New York and 
that he was hoping to form a new "gay” group in WDC.

. On 4/25/72, the informant furnished information
regarding certain of DAVIS* associates.

. . On 4/27/72, the informant advised that earlier the
' same evening DAVIS had been at his apartment with a white 

male named BILL (LNU), who the informant described. The 
informant noted that BILL (LNU) was very wary and informant 
noted him carefully, but could not determine whether this 
person might resemble one of the WEATHFUG subjects because of 
facial hair. .

DAVIS also mentioned that he intended to travel to 
an unknown location within the next week to visit friends. 

. He indicated that he hoped to take the source with him.

/
 On 4/28/72, the informant advised that he talked
with DAVIS the same date. DAVIS talked about FBI "harassment” 
and the fact that he would have a visitor the same afternoon 
who would really shock the FBI. DAVIS did not name this 
individual at that time. DAVIS also mentioned that he was 
considering a plan to leave WDC in about two weeks and to stay 
in an undisclosed place for a temporary period in order to 
elude the FBI.

. 4 '
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On 4/30/72, the informant advised that he had 
spoken with DAVIS very early on the same date. DAVIS 
said that his visitor on 4/28/72' had been WILLIAM KUNSTLER, • 
prominent Nevz Left attorney. DAVIS did not give the reason 
for KUNSTLER’s visit.

On 5/1/72, the informant advised that he had spoken 
^ith DAVIS earlier the same morning. ' DAVIS told the source 
at that time that the individual who had accompanied him to 
the informant’s apartment on 4/27/72 was Weatherman fugitive 
BILL AYERS (WILLIAM CHARLES AYERS). DAVIS said that he had 
not mentioned this earlier in order to insure AYERS’ security. 
Informant advised that because of facial hair it would be 
difficult to identify this individual as AYERS but that the 
individual bore a resemblance to AYERS,’ particularly in the 
area of his eyes. (WFO has been conducting investigation to 
locate and identify this individual identified by DAVIS as 
AYERS but efforts to date have met with negative results.)

Later on 5/1/72, the informant advised that he met 
DAVIS on the street and that DAVIS was accompanied by ALAN 
JAY OBERMAN, an individual determined through Bureau investiga­
tion to be associated with the Weatherman organization.

On this same date the informant advised that through 
conversation with DAVIS he learned that DAVIS still planned 
to travel to visit friends in the near future and that DAVIS 
was having problems with persons with whom he is living and 
with his homosexual "lover."

On 5/2/72, the informant advised that DAVIS had 
told him on the same date that he was having temporary 
financial difficulties.

On 5/3/72, the informant.had talked with him early 
on the same date and again discussed some of his difficulties 
and intentions discussed during previous conversations.

0^29896^ 'W
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UNSUB; aka ■ '
Howard J. Charafardin .
CGR - WORTHLESS CHECKS

. (00:AX) . ■ ’ .
’ , WFO file 70-2855

Investigation is being conducted to identify the 
individual writing worthless checks under the name HOWARD 
J. CHARAFARDIN (as well as others) and to effect prosecution 
of this individual. Most of these checks have been given to 
airlines and those reported within the'last several months 
amount to aoproximateiy $6,700.00. Results of this investiga­

tion have shown that an individual named HOWARD C. BRICE, JR., 
is undoubtedly identical with the person writing these checks. 
The source has furnished information of value concerning BRICE 
including that pertaining to his activities, associates and 
various residences (BRICE moves frequently) on 3/23, 27, 30/72 
and 4/10, 12, 17, 20 and 30/72. .

DEMONSTRATION SPONSORED BY DISTRICT
OF COLUMBIA GAY PRIDE COMMITTEE IN ’
WASHINGTON, D. C., 5/5/72
IS-NEW LEFT .
(00:WFO) ■
WFO file 100-55868 ' .

On 4/7/72, the informant furnished material of 
value concerning Gay Pride Week to be held in WDC,’5/2-7/72. 
On 5/2/72, the informant furnished additional information of 
value pertaining to this activity.

PEOPLE’S COALITION FOR PEACE AND JUSTICE (PCPJ) 

IS - REVOLUTIONARY ACTIVITIES 
(00:NY) >
Bufile 100-459771
WFO file 100-51888 ’

On ^l?Al12.y the informant furnished material of 
value concerning recent and proposed activities of PCPJ.

6



WFO 137-5692

ANTI-WAR UNION
SM-REVOLUTIONARY ACTIVITIES (VIDEM)
WFO file 100-55926

•On 4/19/72, the informant furnished material of 
value concerning a demonstration planned by the captioned 
organization for 4/20/72. The demonstration was directed 
against ITT in WDC.

DEMONSTRATION SPONSORED BY WASHINGTON AREA 
G. I. ALLIANCE AT ANDREWS AIR FORCE BASE, 
MARYLAND, 5/5/72 
IS REVOLUTIONARY ACTIVITIES 
WFO file 100-New

’ On 5/3/72, .the informant provided information of 
value concerning the fact that a demonstration was being 
planned by the cautioned group at Andrews Air Force Base, 
Marylandj arid that a meeting would be held on 5/4/72, in WDC, 
to plan this demonstration.

MISCELLANEOUS

The source has also provided information of value 
to other law enforcement agencies in the WDC area.

On 4/5/72, the source advised that he saw eight 
kilos of marijuana in the living room of an apartment at 1707 
P' Street, N.W., WDC, and that this marijuana was being sold 
for $25 - $30 per ounce. On 4/19/72, the source furnished 
additional information regarding illegal drug sales at this 
address. The above information was promptly furnished to 
appropriate officers of the Metropolitan Police Department, 
WDC, who advised that this information was of value in their 
investigation of illegal drug activities at this address.

On 4/19/72, the informant furnished information 
regarding a stolen U. S. Treasury check in the possession of 
an individual named GEORGE BARTMANSKY. This information was

7
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WFO 137-5692

promptly furnished to the Inspector’s. Offi-ce, U. S. Postal 
Service, WDC, which advised that it would be of value in 
its investigations.

’ EVALUATION

The informant has successfully developed a relation­
ship with JOHN RANKIN DAVIS so that he now is in a position 
to furnish timely.and valuable information regarding DAVIS’ 
activities. The source is making every effort to further 
enhance his association with DAVIS and is constantly alert 
for information regarding this individual, especially that pertain 
ing to the CAPBOM and WEATHFUG investigations. The source 
continues to furnish other information of value to the Bureau 
as well as other law enforcement agencies concerning criminal 
and New Left activity in the' WDC area and is in a position to 
do so on a continuing basis.

8
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OPTIONAL FORM Na 10 ■,
MAY 1M2 EDITION .. ’•

,' ■' CSA FPMR (<l CTR) 101-11.0

■ UNITED STATES GjWrNMENT

Memorandum
to : ACTING DIRECTOR, FBI (137-28143)

FRoi^SAC, WFO (137-5692)(C)

L/ W 'COKEJNEX. .

date: 6/8/72

Investigation has determined captioned informant 
has proven to be unreliable in one area in which he has 
furnished information.

WFO is deleting this source as a symbol number 
informant.

NW

TTO:sup 
(3)

t

EX-116 ’8 JUN 9 197^-

uu im i g
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SAC, Washington Field (137-5892) 1/9/73

Acting Director, FBI (137-28143)

INI^t wi<

Attached herewith for completion of your file is 
one copy of a name check request submitted to FBI Headquarters 
from the United States Secret Service. For your information, 
Secret Service was advised by memorandum that captioned 
was formerly a subject of an ITSP matter and that the U. S. 
Attorney, West Virginia, had declined prosecution against 
this individual. No mention was made to Secret Service 
that the individual was formerly an- informant of your office.

Enclosure

MAILED 22
Felt--------------  
Baker  —_ 
Callahan--------  
Cleveland------  
Conrad — 
Dalbey----------- 
Gebhardt - -------
Jenkins 
Marshall --------  
Miller, E.S.----- 
Purvis-----------

, Soyars ■- - 
Walters..........  

Tele. Room — 
Mr. Kinley....  

Mr. Armstrong.. 
Ms. Herwig...

JAN OS 1973
FBI

JTR:vmk
(4)

teletype unit

Bl JAN 10197-3



THE DEP WEST OF THE TRE/\S’
UNITED STATES SECRET SERVICE

■ ♦ t .

WASHINGTON FIELD OFFICE

./ REQUEST FOR FBI NAME CHECK

Criminal Files

: Decemb 18,

CI Subversive Files

- ’Name: ’ Earl Roberjr,. Jr.
\y . ' ~ (Last na J TETrs1 name)' '(MidT namej

Aliases: ‘ Robert C

* 'Date of Birth:  Place of Birth: , Charleston, West Va
-X -’ J *

• L ' '. LU S; aec - Service
■ ■ • :t ’• Washington Field Office

- Suite 800
r ? ■ 1717 H Street, N. W.
k Washington, 0. C. 20226

y ,.'■■■ ■ - Te'"phone: 964-8063

r* ’

’ Keep Freedom in Your Future With US^Savings Bonds

J.:'Sex: M Race: W Height: S1!!11 Weight: 175
v . ~
J^Hair: -. Eyes; Brown Other Data; s^233-68^7 ___

Address: 2122 P. St., W.WT,. ..a.sMPgtA,,.^q---------------------- ’ / --------------

i" This is a request for a chect -iles only and is not to bt iered . 
t • as a request for an investigation w a clearance.

J. 
T' ■ .•X ‘



1 - Mr..Geary

MAILED

JAN ~ 8-jgyg

Mme chzck

January 5, 1973

EARL ROBERri&RRITT, JR.

Born: June 22, 1944 <
Charleston, West Virginia

tn response to your request there is enclosed 
one copy of one report which may relate to the subject 
of your inquiry. .

For your further information, on February 23, 
1971, the Assistant United States Attorney for ' 
Southern District of West Virginia, declined prosecution 
of this case noting that the amount of money involved 
and the evidence currently available did not justify 
further investigative efforts to locate and interview 
Merritt. /O

z
r ■ A. ■ (87-111347 )

Enclosure

Original and 1 - United States 
Request Received - 12-20-72

WTG:arw^ (4) "

Secret Service

5 JAfi 9 1973

NOTE: Coordinated with A., B. Fipps, Jr., Criminal 
Informant Unit^ who suggested furnishing criminal 
information only.

reit ■ ■ ■ -
Baker________
Callahan_____  
Cleveland____
Conrad -
Dalbey_______  
Gebhardt_____
Jenkins -
Marshall_____
Miller, E.S.-Z"^ 
Purvis
Soyars_______
Walters_______  
Tele. Room__  
Mr. Kinley ___  
Mr. Armstrong-
m : M

-M*"_ hhuuum_____

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI, 
and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency. This reply 
is result of check of FBI investigative files. To check arrest records, request must be submitted to FBI 

Fingerprints are, necessary for positive check.

DocM:32M^S®, PageT4@
MAIL nOOM l__ j____ aELETYPE



0-19 (Rev. 9-11-73)
Assoc. Dir. J____

Asst. Dir.va
Admin. __1_____

Comp. Syst'^____
Ext. Affairs____
Files & Com. __

IJmformers, 
' For Police
Exposed !
, By Paul W. Valentine

Washington Post Staff Writer

Recent disclosures by an ac­
tivist community newspaper of 
police informant activities 
within Washington’s o n c e - 
flourishing antiwar movement 
have jeopardized political in­
telligence gathering -opera­
tions, D.C. police officials said 
yesterday.

• The disclosures, part of an 
ongoing campaign by the anti­
establishment Daily Rag news­
paper, are “definitely a threat 
to our operations,” acknowl­
edged Capt. George Sutter, 
acting director of the police, 
department’s intelligence di­
vision.

Sutter confirmed the identi­
fication of two one-time infor­
mants named in front-page 
stories in the last two issues 
of the Daily Rag.

;.The first story named Ann 
Kolego, 20, also known as 
“Crazy Annie,” as a paid po­
lice informant who infiltrated 
the D.C. offices of' the Peoples. 
Coalition for Peace and Jus­
tice (PCPJ) and National 
Peace Action Coalition 
(NPAC) from early 1971 to 
June 25 of this year.

^Sutter rated her as an-“ex­
cellent” intelligence source.

- The second story named Earl 
Robert Merritt Jr., known to 
police as “Butch,” who worked 
as a paid informant for about 
five months around the time; 
of the massive Mayday disrup­
tions here in the spring of 
1971.

.Merritt was quoted in the 
Rag as saying he later did in- 

/formant work for the FBI. FBI 
. press spokesman Jack Her- 
i rington would not comment 

on that claim, but another 
/source close to the FBI con­
firmed that Merritt performed 

-“voluntary” work for ’ the 
agqncy . and may have been 
paid writ.

. 0001 l

• Daily Rag staff workers say 
tlidy ’are-*’ considering addi- 
tional disclosures of activities 
by other informants.

Merritt came directly to the 
paper with his acknowledge­
ment of spy work after being 
“turned off” by the job, ac­
cording to Rag staff worker' 
Chris Simpson. 1

The disclosure of Miss Ko-, 
lego as. an informant was 
leaked to the Rag by a Wash­
ington-based organization 
called the Committee for Ac- 
tion/Research on the Intelli­
gence Community (CARIC).

CARIC spokesman Winslow 
Peck said his organization is 
“working on a couple of other 
popple now^” and their names 
should be revealed'buOTri " .

Asked„how CARIC Is ablelo 
discover and identify infor­
mants, Peck said, “We have 
contacts within the metropoli­
tan police department and 
other intelligence groups in 
the city.”

Capt. Sutter of the police in­
telligence division said he 
does not think the information
is being leaked from his own 
organization, but is not over­
looking the possibility.

Staffers at the Daily Rag, 
which despite its name is a 
weekly paper located at 2416 
18th St. NW in the Adams-
Morgan section of the city, 
have questioned the legality 
and authorization for some of
the informant work done by
Merritt and Miss Kolego.

They note, for example, that 
Miss Kolego made frequent 
out-of-town trips to assorted 
antiwar conclaves and ques­
tioned her authority to go be- 
yoncHIXG: - police jurisdiction 
at public expensy. \ ____

I Vernon S. Gill, police, de- 
j parlment general coifHSElfsafd 
he knows of no law prohibit­
ing such activity “in an inves­
tigation of legitimate matters 
concerning the metropolitan 
police department.”

Sutter said she made the
I out^Dtornr1’ trips rbo^h To 
[“maintain her cover” and to 
jobtain information on possible 
| illegal actions planned by anti- 
>war gorups in Washington.

Miss Kolego could not be 
reached for comment. Merritt 
alsq could not be4xeg£li£&

Gen. Inv. 
Ident. _________

Inspection 
Intell. _________

Laboratory 
Plan. & Eval. __

Spec. Inv. 
Training

Legal Coun. 
Telephone Rm. __
Director Sec’y___
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By Jared Stout and } 
Toni House , |

Star-News Staff Writers -

District police intelli­
gence operatives were 
keeping watch on the city’s 
antiwar community and 
other activists as recently 
as June, according to a 
former paid informant. The 
surveillance began at least 
two years ago, the informer 
said.

Police said reports based 
on informers’ information 
were given regularly to the 

fFBI.'Some information may 
have been passed to the 
White House. One informer 
said his tactics included 
burglary and disruption of 
protests.

While police officials con­
firmed the identity and in­
formant assignment of two 
persons, one of whom was 
interviewed byr-the-SL^r 
News, they declined to say 

i-ftow many informants may 
be’■ aligned to Keeping 

. Chief Jerry V. Wilson in- 
: formed on possible protest 

demonstrations.

AMONG NATIONAL 
groups attracting police 
attention were the Ameri­
can Academy of Political 
Science, the American Civil 
Liberties Union, and the 
Coalition on National Prior­
ities and Goals, whose mail 
solicitations for members 
were signed by Sen. William 
Proxmire, D-Wis.

Among local groups were 
the American Nazi party, 
the Black United Front, the 
D.C. Statehood party and 
the Institute for Policy 
Studies, a “think tank” on 
radical alternatives to U.S. 
foreign and domestic policy, 
which is located at 1520 New 
Hampshire Ave. NW.

.Police^confirmed that 
Robert E. Merrittt“28rartd

Ann Kolego, 20, have been 
police "'intelligence 'iriform- 

| ants, but they and the FBI 
would not give details of the 
undercover work.

Merritt and Miss Koiego's 
former roommates describ­
ed the activities in inter­
views,

Merritt, who went from 
work with the police to work 

* with the FBI, is a Charles- 
I ton, W.Va., man who came 
i to Washington in January 
I 1963 and works as a drug 
; company cashier.
j Miss Kolego grew up in 
| the Washington area and, 
I until recently, was a wait- 
I ress in a Connecticut Ave- 
|! nue restaurant. She began 
|! police recruit training 
i Wednesday.

. MERRITT SAID he de- 
‘ cided to disclose his under- 
[ cover role after other ef 
‘ forts tp. br#ak off the work 
failed, after his apartment 

was ransacked three times 
Recently and after he was 
threatened twice by offi­
cials.

He said he did not know 
how groups or persons were 
selected for police atten­
tion.

Police intelligence offi­
cials described their job as 
one of keeping “the chief of 
police informed of potential 
problems and disorders 
which might occur in the 
District _ . . and require 
police action.” 1

Assoc. Dir.
Asst. Dir.: { 

Admin.  
Comp. Syst. _ 
Ext. Affai rs 
Files & Com, 
Gen. Inv.  
Ident. _____ 
Inspection z > 
Intell. 
Laboratory  
Plan. & Evol. 
Spec. Inv. _ 
Training__  

Legal Coun. _  
Telephone Rm. 
Director Sec’y .

‘ The official said the de­
partment has no written 
guidelines for intelligence 
surveillance. One official 
said, “It’s really left up to 
the intelligence division.”

Merritt said a sergeant in 
police intelligence suggest­
ed two break-ins after May 
Day 1971. One of them at the 
Community Bookstore, 2028 
p St NW,..was completed 
The'other, Merritt'said, was

NOT RECORDED
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af the^HTstreet office of the 
Goergetown University le­
gal interns. It was called 
off.

MERRITT SAID he 
gained entry to the book­
store after closing hours by 
taping open the lock on a 
foyer door. He took antiwar 
petitions, pamphlets, meet­
ing notices and other mate­
rials and give them to police 

.contacts who told him they 
would be a source of names 
of persons and groups in the 
protest community, Merritt 
said.

According to Merritt, 
stealing the petitions was 
one means his contacts used 
to disrupt the petitioning 
part of the protests.

There was no police re­
port of the break-in.at the 
bookstore, which features 
the writings of revolution 
ary theorists and pragtitjon- 
efsTBut persons "at the shop 

recall .-such an incident an 
late May 1971 ancTsaid no 
one attached any signifi­
cance to it at the time.

Before and after the big 
May Day 1971 antiwar pro­
test, Merritt said, he visited 
the offices used by groups 
largely responsible for the 
protest: the People’s Coali­
tion on Peace and Justice, 
Vietnam Veterans Against 
the War, and the Lanier 
Place residence used by 
some demonstration plan­
ners.

AT POLICE request, 
Merritt said, he supplied 
telephone numbers and 
floor plans for these offices. 
“I thought at the time it was 
a check on whether I was 
going to the places they 
asked me to,” he said. Mer­
ritt did not know how police 
may haye^ used this infor 
matioh, he said —»>

During We demonstra- 
tibirrMefrir con'fiHue37iie 
telephoned reports to police 
up to 16 times a day and 
joined with some law en­
forcement offices in at­
tempts to disrupt activities. 
These included spreading 
false information about 
meeting times and places' 
and sabotaging one of the 
protestors’ public address 
systems, he said.

After May Day 1971, Mer­
ritt said, police asked him 
to concentrate on informa­
tion gained by using an ali­
as to solicit mail from about 
200 groups. He said he re­
ceived materials which de­
scribed the programs of the 
groups and he turned it over 
to the police.

In October 1971, Merritt 
said, he was fired by police 
because “they said they did 
not have enough money to 
keep me on a full-time ba­
sis.” He said he had been 
receiving $50 a week and 
expenses. His contacts in- 

I troduced him to two FBI 
agents in the Washington 
field office for whom he 
subsequently went to work, 
he said.

BY MERRITT’S account, 
| his FBI assignments be­

tween October 1971 and 
May 1972 centered on the 

. Institute for Policy Studies. 
I The FBI wanted him to get 

a job there and supply them 
with the names and license 
tag numbers of persons at 
institute meetings, he said.

Merritt said one of the 
lists he supplied was from a 
meeting on prison abolition 
at which a civil rights law­
yer, Philip J. Hirschkop, 
spoke. He said he followed 

. Hirschkop after one of the 
I meetings at FBI request 

and reported the lawyer's 
movements and contacts.

Merritt said he worked 
if for the FBI until May 1972, 

a month after his mother 
died. He said the death' 
"really put me down” and,- 
together with a belief that 
the persons he was told to 
watch did not seem as dan­
gerous as they had been 
portrayed by his contacts, 
he decided to quit; ••——

I , his FBI contacts 
reacted by “telling me they 
had too much time and 
money invested . . . that I 
had become familiar with 
the political community and 
I ■WaSTTEtined the way they

wanted-^One of them told 
me to use the work as a way 
to get my mind off my moth- • 
er’s death.

j IN MAY, however, he de- 
1 liberately filed a false re- 
. port as the last step in a 
pattern that had begun four 
months earlier of giving as 
little information to his con-

} tacts as he could, Merritt 
s said. It worked, he said, and 
i | the FBI agents let him go 
। with verbal threats against 
| revealing his role.

Merritt said one of the 
agents warned him against 
speaking out by saying, 
"We’d 'sure hate to have 
someone find you in the 
Potomac wearing cement 
galoshas.” He was also told 
he had been doing “national 
security-type work,” the 
disclosure of which would 
be improper, he said.

Merritt said that when the 
agents stopped coming 
around, his former police 
contacts reappeared. He 
decided then to get legal 
help in his effort to end as­
sociation with law enforce-

I ment agencies and contact- 
1 ed Washington lawyer Da- 
l vid Isbell, he said.

Merritt said a second 
threat came from one of his 
police contacts when the 
contact learned Merritt was 
considering public disclo­
sure as a means of keeping 
police away from him. He 
said the officer told him, “If 
you try to badmouth us or 
any other agencies, you’ll 
really meet your maker.”

ACCORDING to the rec­
ords Merritt .kept and dis­
played of his associations 
and assignments, the last 
threat came in July 1973. He 
did not know how his former 
contact had learned of his 
plan and has had no direct 
contact with police since, he 

t sauT ’
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a self-acknowl­
edged homosexual, said he 
had been recruited in April 
1971 the day after he had 

• lost a job. He disputed the 
private assessments of 

■ some police sources who 
said he had been fired “be­
cause he didn’t produce” 
and was angry at those who 

, had let him go. “My con­
tacts told me my work was 
good,” Merritt said.

' ■ Ann Kolego was describ­
ed by police officials as a 
police buff “who was ex­
tremely good” in supplying 
information on the"activifies 

of antiwar and other protest 
tWsT*

“She had to be to stay 
under cover for so long 
without being burned,” one 
official said.

’ According to her former 
roommate, Carol Cullum, 
Miss Kolego was known as 
“Crazy Annie” to the activ­
ists and posed as a dropout 
from George Washington 

, University with a huge infe­
riority complex and willing­
ness to do the menial jobs of 
the protest movement— 
stuffing envelopes, handing 

. out pamphlets and running 
errands.

MISS CULLUM said she 
first remembered Miss Ko­
lego during the May Day 

. 1971 protest. Between then- 
and now, she said, Miss 
Kolego was a regular part 
of the Washington Peace 
Action Coalition, the Peo­
ple’s Coalition for Peace 

’ and Justice, the Anti War 
Union, and the Miami Con­
vention Coalition.
, According to Miss Cul­
lum, Miss Kolego was “al­
ways around” and rarely 
had to be invited to a meet­
ing. “She was always there 
Miss Cullum said.

. -Miss Cullum said she con­
fronted Miss Kolego at a 
luncheon late last month 
after learning Miss Kole- 
go’s real job.

At the lunch, Miss Cullum 
said Miss Kolego apologized 
for having used their friend- 
,sfrip-bnr§aid it wtis her jofi.

• ^Miss Cullum attributed 
disclosure of MiSS-Rufegfi’s 
identity to the underground 
newspaper The Daily Rag 
and the Committee for . 
Action/Research on the In­
telligence Community — a 
local group studying how 
police and other govern­
ment agencies seek to keep 
watch on activist- political 
groups.

MERRITT SAID his con­
tacts had often had high 
praise for “Informant Ann” 
and in conversations during 
and after May Day 1971 had 
said she was the police 
source closest to Rennie 
Davis, one of those acquitted 
in the Chicago Seven con­
spiracy trial.

Miss Cullum said Miss 
Kolego was last seen by her 
friends in the activist com­
munity in August 1973 at a 
birthday party for Norrine 
Bgnks; the third person who 
sfiarea an apartment with 

Miss_Cullum and Miss Kole- 
gbr’PWce records show 
Miss Kolego was appointed 
a police officer June 25, 
1973.

Police officials denied 
any connection with a 

■ break-in at the Cullum 
apartment in August 1972 
when tapes of talks with 
North Vietnamese envoys in 
Paris were stolen and a tel­
evision set left behind. They 
also denied Merritt was 
asked by police to do any- . 
thing illegal.

Miss Kolego was not 
available for comment. 
There is little information 
available about precisely 
what she reported to police, 
but her roommate said Miss 
Kolego had had access to 
much of the planning of 
most of the protest activity 
in Washington during the 
past two years.

She was also known to 
have gone with other activ­
ists to "the Republican con­
vention at Miami Beach last

• yaau,-—» -------

TH.E TRANSFER ojjn„- 
formation from D.Criniorm- 
ants to the White House was 
unknown to Merritt or any 
of the other informants with 
whom the Star-News 

« talked. But in the Water­
gate committee testimony 
of John W. Dean III, Dean 
recalled receiving intelli­
gence reports from District 
police. Merritt said he had 
collaborated with an agent 
from the Alexandria office 
of the Alcohol, Tax and 
Firearms Division of the 
Treasury who, like Merritt, 
was gathering intelligence 
on May Day 1971 activities.

According to Merritt, the 
■agent told him his unusual 
assignment to intelligence 
duties stemmed from a Jus­
tice Department order for 
all federal agencies and 
some local police to provide 
reports on protests or plans. 
The unit usually deals with 

('violations of alcohol, tax 
I and firearms law.
1 Department officials 

close to the intelligence 
units of May Day 1971 de- 

■ dined comment; However, 
one source said estimates of 
the numbers and plans of 
protesters had been passed 
regularly from Justice to 
the White House and Dean. 
The source said he did not 
know where the information

• came from and had as-., 
I sttmedTrfvas from the FBI
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Comn. Syd. .
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from : R. R. Franck \ ;t

SUBJECT: EARL ROBERT MERRITT, JR.

On XO/2/73 _ called

Intell___________
Loboratory '
Pion. & Evol.^^^ 

Spec. Inv.
Training . .--------

Lcgol Coun. .
Telephone Rm. __

. Herington and said that Merritt had furnished the paper information concerning' 
his prior informant status, claiming to have been a paid FBI informant from ■ 
October, 1971, until May, 1972, at which time he was discontinued because he 

JX furnished us false information about Jack Davis. He claimed his assigned task ■ 
was to monitor the Institute for Policy Studies, 1520 New Hampshire Street, ■ 
Northwest, Washington, D. C., and to keep an eye on Jack Davis, who was . •

। associated with the Institute. He said that he had been a police department A 
i^rnant prior to working for the FBI and said that this had been con­
firmed by the police. Merritt said that he had been handled by Washington ’
Field Office Agents William Tucker and Terry O'Connor, and that when he .. 

|fj&h',£>^^was discontinued in May, 1972, Tucker had threatened him by saying, !'WTe ' 
' would hate to have someone find you in the Potomac with cement galoshes."

He also alleged that Tucker threatened to have Him prosecuted on three old bad 
c^ec^ charges in which Merritt was involved. .. ■

p# H2- Herington told that he would have to get back in touch with :Herington told
him later. Bureau files reveal that Merritt was a criminal informant '

from late 1971 until he was discontinued by Washington Field ;■ s 
lettej^Eted 6/8/72. He was targeted against the Institute for Policy Studiesx " 
and Jack Davis mainly because Davis was considered a Weatherman fugitive m 
support person and because we had information that some of the Weatherman ' ■ 
fugitives had visited the Institute. Merritt also furnished other valuable 
criminal information. Merritt is a homosexual and was determined to be ' •

• ■ unreliable, at which point he was discontinued. Although he has not been '
’ identified by name, we believe he is responsible for allegations which resulted 

in the attorney for the Institute for Policy Studies claiming the FBI and the 
Metropolitan Police Department (MPD) were engaged in illegal surveillance 

activities and other illegal conduct. We conducted a preliminary civil
. rights investigation on these allegations in August, 1973, and the results havez.

■ ■ , REC-2 : - *
- 1 - Mr. Franck - 0CT ] e —3
.fl - Mr. Cleveland ■

V I# Mr. Miller . ^’(CONTINUED-OVER) —------— - "
..-fAAf r - Mr. Herington \

z Bureau File 137-281'13 gf . T '- >
JEIfaisg (5) .W'

NW 68262 Docld:32989608 Pag^M ■



Memorandum to Mr. Callahan '
Re: Earl Robert Merritt, Jr. .

been furnished to the Civil Rights Division of the Department. Agents who 
handled Merritt deny any improper conduct or any improper instructions to 
him. • .

Herington called back today and told him that as a matter of 
policy we simply could not identify individuals who had furnished confidential 
information to the FBI in the past and, accordingly, there was nothing at this 
time that we could say about Merritt's allegations. said that he under­
stood and that actually his story was mainly about allegations made by Merritt 
claiming MPD misconduct and that very little of the story would pertain to 
the FBI. He said that he knew that the Intelligence Division of the MPD was not 
terribly sophisticated in its handling of informants. He said also that he knew 
that-Merritt was a homosexual and that he did not consider him really reliable. 
Some* of his allegations have not checked out at a|l in further inquiry by 
Herington also pointed out to that neither/me allegations alleging threats 
against Merritt could be interpreted as threats-even if the statements had been 
made. He was told that we always caution our informants against disclosing . 
themselves because we are aware that some people might want to exact retribu­
tion against them for having helped the FBI. The statement that we would hate 
to have Merritt found in the Potomac with cement galoshes is the type of thing 
that would be an admonishment against his self-disclosure becauseiSome of 
his friends might seek revenge. Herington told that it was ridiculous 
to believe that any FBI Agent would threaten to kill a former informant. It was 
also noted that with regard to the second allegation about the prosecution oh 
checks?itthis does not necessarily have to be interpreted as a threat either since 
it was obvious that Merritt's surfacing himself with a lot of publicity might 
cause the victims of those checks to urge a current prosecution.

. said that he took everything Merritt said with a grain of salt.

, of course, was formerly with the Police Foundation and says 
he knows Mr. Kelley personally. He has generally been pro law enforcement in 
our limited dealings with him During this conversation he said that he 
■sympathized with the law enforcement's position in dealing with informants 
but that he had been assigned to write a story, which he would have to do. He 
said he didn't really think that what he wrote would hurt the FBI and indicated 
that the story should be forthcoming within the next several days.

- 2 - (CONTINUED-OVER)
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Memorandum to Mr. Callahan
Re: Earl Robert Merritt, Jr.

Herington also talked to Washington Field about this inquiry. They 
had been alerted by the MPD. that a story would appear in the near future in 
the

RECOMMENDATION

For information.

-3 -
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The Acting Attorney General

.Nutnbotinq ___ " '

: Recording * \ , \x

j \
Examining

. . r^. 3 x, 7q73

Diroot or, FBI ^^1^3

irTITRJTE FOR POLICY STUDIES (IES)

1 - Hr. Franck 1
■ (Attn: Mr, 1’eri ngton)

1 - Mr. Mintz .
1 - Mr. E. S. Miller
1 - Mr. R. L. Shackelford
1 - Mr. Gorblick

INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

Reference is marie to a mornoraridvm dated Ont'’ 
1973, from 7’r. Gary H. Baiso, Office of the former ' .-.j 
MAAy'ixey- General, to Inspector John A.- Hintz, Offic- ; begat 
Cor- ”ol, FBI, wherein a states report wi req-vr? t?-’ co«ceaa//v&-
on ^:. tide by John Fn.nrnhnn, Tnshington Tor,t ” wyRiitefc ' .
rkh/i appeared in the ”wAshlngto?i romt” on Ontoh'vr 10, .H73- 
The -.tory alleges that the FBI engaged in illegal activities O 

the ITS. .
. ■ : -. . ’ V

For yotir background information, IPS was the ^ubj -o'- 
of a preliminary inquiry by the FBI in Nnvrrbnr, Xf?$8, after ')
information was received indicating a possible connection ■ .. . 
boteon XF3 and the Students for a Democr*? tic Soni?+y (SW) j
The investigation was expanded in 1971 after it wan detovmincd J; 
that Iff planned tcFembark on a five year plan for* th-^ r’di cal 
reconstruction of American society and had circulated t > 
radical groups around the country a document calling f^T brigades 
to descend on TFashington, D. C. , and clone d^n Gov‘->r"‘• • \t 
agon sic'”.. The current investigation is directed toward the?:'-* -
arerr; in which violations of Federal statutes ray bo J^rolc’'e4 0\
i?i i-icw of the activities of IPS personnel involving the • V
Kiddie East and the Arabs, North and South Viotnen, TruvZnnSa
and the ran~Africnn Movement and contacts with subversive 1
org'”5.isafiions and individuals in the United States.

■ ’ , • • > ’ \\ •
rn Hay, 1973, Mitchell Rogovin, counsel for 1^3, T

roquonted Mr. Uillinm D. UucJ’^lshmuB, then Acting Dtrr.?.t,'-v c< 
the ’:BI, to investigate alleged violations of the civil .rights /nj7’’ 
of IPS ^oAvonncl in general and Mr..and Mrs. Marcus Raskin ! 
in revticulnr. In Juno, 1973, he alTi wrote to Arsictvit AU sr
Gon« al j. Stanley Pottinger concerning the civil rlrh:.;- of FPS xJ 
po:. " ami. The allegations included illegal r>urvoll5-w • .o h” u" 
Federal end local law enforcement agencies, including electro



Tho Acting Attorney General

surveillance and breaking and entering. A civil rights liuv'c: j... 
ration conducted by our Washington Tlrld OEfico of the 
allegations concerning Mr. and Mi’s. Rankin and result*’ woro , 
furnir.hnd to the Civil Rights Division of the. Jue vice
Dopni-tmont and to former Special Prosecutor* Archibald Cox nlo-.g 
with the denials of electronic survoi Hances or burg levies by FBI 
Agents. By memorandum dated October 17, 1973, ARoistant AtiOnv:; 
General Pottinger requested additional investigation. rr'f at! > ■: 
to alleged breaking paid entering and surveillances, includJ; 
electronic surveillance of IPG.

Robert N. ’Vail, whole mentioned in the art’.ole, 
a .Special Agent of tho FBI from May .10, 1905, to April 30, H70. 
when ho. voluntarily resigned. Since his resignation lie ha(* been 
critical of the Bureau’s investigative and perdoiwoi policl^c 
cud has visited IPS and discussed his ppi? tier rat-! on / r FBI. 
invc’jtlg.ntions in the now Loft and racip.l fields. He has alro 
made several allegations against tho FBI in neia $ paper 
jrn.v~rj no articles claiming tho FBI was unnoccs-arily J ov us I ’ in 
^rgwizatiOns and individuals who had not cormlltod cr^es- 
Wall's allegations that tho FBI improperly secured bank records 
regard:*wg IPS, that ho himself initiated investigation of TPS 
aud. concluded there was no tiling to invest Agate Rut thn. t . 
investigation of IPS continued and his description of that ' ' 
•in** os ligation have all been made before, Previous i-vw? rfm lute 
VfAll’s allegations disclosed they are inaccurate and there were... 
no impi-oprietlos on the part of FBI Agents during the coizroo ’ 
of the investigation, of XFS,. \r,.-w ■ . .• ■ -,
'• a/.. ’ ’ {jgj •’ r r •<**.<? ’ *• “ ,;y ‘ ''

Kari Robert Merritt, Jr., v/ho is mentioned in the ' ‘
ai'ticle, was a criminal informant of our Washington Field-Office 
from late 1971 until he was discontinued in June, 1973. M/uxltt 

toh’goted against IPS after it was learned some of the ■
i/entherman fugitives reportedly had visited IPS. Merrit I, who is 
a self-admitted homosexual, wan discontinued as an inl'omant rfte 
■it was determined he was unreliable,' Merritt’s claim of having 
ooricu’mod illegal acts for the FBI has been denied by the.. .. 
Pp^dal Agents vzho directed him and this information has also • 
been furnished to the Civil Rights Division and to former P.peGinl 
Prosecutor Cox. . ■ • ■ ' ‘

3. - Office of tho Deputy Attorney General . •

HQTR: ■ . . ■. ■ ' ’ ■

Memorandum being sent to the Acting Attorney Genova! 
in response to a request for a status report concerning the 
allegations in the ’’Washington Post” article described above.
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. UNITED STATES GOVZ^NMENT

• Memorandum
DEPARTMENT GE JUSTICE

date: October 17, 1973

subject: Request for Status Report on 
.Washington Post Story

ELR and WDR would like a status report .on the attached 
Washington Post story which alleges that the FBI engaged in 
illegal activities against the Institute for Public Policy 
Studies. . ;

GHBifhm
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1,

I’ if/cPVd'ibW’rt w v /;:t Dale

rx- T;
N^^Hm'iici yo.-.ti'nlay. told the:

1 lVnshim:lon Posf that Merrill,’
then using mi of

" T
>< Tz -I.X '' il ]i Jl

Ry John I lanrab.'iii 
Wiuii'm'iwi roiiUnK Wr.tcr

An attorney lor the Insti- 
(utc for F'diey Similes lia*. In­
formed the Senate select 
Wa(e>T..'i(o cemmiltrc Hint (he 
Institute has evidence that 
federal and local agents ille­
gally ii.rliraled. wiretapped 
and bur: im wed the-organiza­
tion's Wa’-hington ol Tices nt 
1520 New Hampshire Ave NW.

Attorney ’Mitchell Rogovin, 
in an affidavit sworn to on 
Oct. 3 ami made public by the 
committee yesterday, said the 
institute had been given the 
imornu-tion by a former FBI- 
police Jm-ormer and by a for­
mer spwial agent cf the FBI.

Rogovin did not name the 
tources of bis information. In 
the affidavit, but IHcb.a'.d Bar- 
net. codirector oJ Il’S, identi­
fied them h.-> fmm.'r FBI agent 
Robert N. Wali. and Robert

"Cliatidlcr,” t")d IPS about a. 
year ago of FBI b.c. police' 
surveillance ••I’ the in-,1 iime. 
lie said Mot.it, al that time, 
did not wanl to make his dis-1 
closures public, ,

ERI and D.C, police have I 
refused to comment on Mcr-- 
ritt's allegations. i

Men lit, Barnet said, told of i 
removing internal memos and 
other documents front an IPS

Ro-^Pnlsu noted I hat Bar- 
net, s|;in .and H’S were 
named on lists nf While Hou 
"cnemir/' that wi re ini re­
duced (hirin'.! I.br Watrrgnlr 
hearings. AccordiiiJ Io leJi- 
mony by former White Ilouse, 
counsel John W. Dean HI, the
cnemic to be

mailbox for the FBI
police.

Regovin. in 
said IPS has

and D.C,

his 
also

affidavit,) 
been nd-1

vised by’ a former special । 
agent of the FBI that the EIJI ‘ 
has improperly secured the 
bank records of the institute 

. without the use of legal proc­
ess."

Former agent. Wall, in an ar- ‘

"screwed" in any way po'-i.'m' 
by various agencies of the fed­
eral government.

Juhis affidavit, Bogie,do 
noted that IPS has been 
audited by the IBS "ever s:r--c 
the Nixon administration t'.-k 
office," and lias been told bv 
IBS that it may lose its tax-ex­
empt. statu*.

White House aide Buchanan
had alleged that was
funded by the Ford Fonr.da- 
(ion and. Rogovin said, im­
plied it had used frmndaHon
money (o fund t.

it-formcr
Treasury

lie the
ymiinent and the

Jl.C. metropolitan police.
Rogovin's was in

response to testimony given 
Sept. 26 by White House aide 
Patrick Buchrman. He alleged 
Buchanan made “several false 
allegations" against IPS.

Rogovin, himself a former 
chief counsel for thd Internal 
Revenue Service, said that in 
addition to government spying 
the institute also is currently 
in danger of losing its tax-ex­
empt status from IRS because
its views 
those of 
(ration.”

IPS is

“differ sharply from 
the (Nixon) adminis-

a left-leaning public
affairs "think tank" noted for 
its scholarly attacks--ehieflj 
by Bnrncl and Ilie institute's 
codirector, Marcus Raskin—on 
the Vietnam war and U.S. for­
eign policy.

Rogovin, in his affidavit, 
stated that IPS learned from a

of Books in January. 1971. told ; 
how he himself had initiated f 
an investigation of H’S for the I 
FBI and had concluded there I 
was nothing to investigate. . i

Another FBI agent later re­
opened the IPS file. Wall said, 
ami "began monitoring the! 
checking account of the insti-) 
tute to determine where list 
money was going." Wall added j 
that the agent also obtained! 
telephone records on IPS and; 
attempted to place informants! 
ns student interns in the .insti-! 
tute. He said the FBI also in-1 
vestigated people who worked! 
for or received .money from 
IPS.

Barnet said that Wall has 
-. given IPS a sworn affidavit 

describing these FBI actions 
against IPS.

In his affidavit, Rogovin 
said IPS also had evidence of 
electronic surveillance- and 

’ breaking and entering di­
rected against IPS. Barnet 
said the institute had been 
broken into on numerous occa­
sions. _.

■underground newspaper, the 
Quicksilver Times, in violation 
of its tax-exempt status.

Rogovin and Barnet <h 
said that IPS never fund-'i
the Quiet; Tin--
that the only Ford Founnaeon 
money IPS received was a ch.- 
400 grant in 1.064 fur the spe­
cific purpose of eonduc • m:/ 
seminars on the Alliance for 
Progress.

SJ

t I

former FBI inform,-.nt. identi­
fied by Barnet as .Merritt, that 
"the FBI mt .-everal occasions 
has infiltrated (IPS). . .with

/J
agents and intormanis and on ; 
at least one occasion joined i 
with a nmmber of Hie metro-j 
politan police department in1 
the tiled of documents from; 
the Institute." t
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Two Lift Curtain on Undercover Work
Tell of Successes, Failures as Infiltrators of Antiwar Groups, 

.. . . ( V zHenlnenvnc alee nrn.By Paul W. Valentine- |
Washington Post Staff Writer I

Two men who infiltrated | 
.the antiwar movement here J 
{for the FBI and D.C. police I 
from 1970 through 1972 have I 
described their operations, | 
parting the curtain momen- s 
tarily on the tangled world j 
of the political undercover 

.informant.
In interviews with The 

Washington Post, they de­
tailed their successes, fail­
ures, a few absurdities, but 
most of all the personal con­
fusion, ambivalence and ag­
ony they said they endured 
in doing such work for the 
country.

Much of their'work, they 
said, was superficial and pe­
ripheral, and in the long run 
they provided little they 
could judge as being of real 
consequence.
rThe FBI, in keeping-with 

time-honored tradition, does 
not officially acknowledge 
that either man worked for 
the agency. But it has been 
independently determined 

: that both were utilized as 
Istreet-level FBI informants 
‘—one on a $50-to-S75-a-week 
salaried basis, the other pri­
marily as a volunteer on an 
expenses-only basis. One' 
man also worked for the

• D.C. police department.
Many of their alleged acts 

■ ' of surveillance could not be 
■ corroborated, but sources 
r /within the FBI confirmed 

that details of pay arrange- 
; ments and other transac- 
■ jtions with the FBIde^xiitpd 
' NWtB^MiraaOSgsgB-Page 61

Their digclosures ako pro­
vide some glimpse of the
contrasting kinds of people 
Hhe FBI uses for informants. 
The two men are:

• Earl Robert Merritt, tim­
id, 29-year-old, small-town 
West Virginian who never a——r -----
finished high school and 
says he “didn’t even know 
what a Weatherman was” 
iuntil FBI agents told him. 
•He is a self-described homo­
sexual.

• J.A. Barrett, a beefy, ag­
gressive, 36-year old urban 
Irish Catholic ethnic with a ■ 
one-time penchant for vio­
lence who saw the police­
radical street clashes of the 
antiwar movement as a 
“cultural war between work­
ing class grunts. ... and 
spoiled upper class WASP 
and Jewish kids.”

. Each informant said he 
was caught in a web of fi­
nancial or political circum- 

■ stance compelling him to 
continue covert surveil­
lance of people and institu­
tions long after his original 
zeal to do so had ceased.

Each says he did not know 
the other was qp-imderwover 
operative at the time,

•“*>*a«raaa

though they both conducted 
surveillance of antiwar dem- 
onstrations in 1970 and 1971 
and then almost simultane­
ously penetrated the Insti-;: 
tute for Policy Studies h 
(IPS), a governmental policy 
research organization here.

- Merritt worked first for 
the police department and 

Athen the FBI, each time on 
a salaried basis, he says. 
Barrett, “working more as 
a volunteer than anything 
else,” he says, was utilized 

I'by the FBI only and was 
'paid expenses but no salary.

Merritt’s identity was first 
divulged by the Daily Rag, a 
small activist community 
newspaper here that pub­
lished a carefully worded in-' 
terview with Merritt in its 
Oct. 5-12 issue. The text had 
first been cleared and ap- 

. proved by Merritt’s attor­
ney, David B. Isbell, of the 

........ c__ ■------------* _ 
'. Washington law firm of Cdv- 
- ingtvJ fe -Burling..^-” 
' Shy, hesitant, baby-faced, 
Merritt agreed to a subse­
quent interview by The Post 

‘but only in the presence of 
his attorney.

In contrast, Barrett spoke 
freely with this reporter in * 
both formal and informal 
conversations during the 
last several months. His 
identity has not been previ-

The Washington Post _ t 
,. Times Herald_____ '• I_____
The Evening Star (Washington) __  
The Sunday Star (Washington) ___
■Daily News (New York)
Sunday News (New York)
New York Post________________
The New York Times 
The Daily World_______________
The New Leader_______________
The Wall ^est Jouwab^z f
The NStiofial ____ h
People’s World______ :_________
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“My motto was ‘let’s ri,p 
’Shi MFaiid do someth uig“lo 
’em,’ ” says Barrett, recall­
ing how he first entered 
antiwar demonstrations here- 
in the late 1960s as a free­
lance observer and occa­
sional street fighter’ who 
would trip, punch and jab 
demonstrators during me­
lees with the police. It was a 
habit he took with him 

(when he joined the" FBI in- 
Vormant ranks in 1970, but 
he says he has since repdi- 
ated it.
: “At first, I thought my an­
tagonism toward the left 
was an ideological one," 

' Barrett said, “but now I know 
it was cultural.
; “I’m working-class Irish 
Catholic ... These, upper 
class WASP and Jewish kids 
of the new left were the 
sons and daughters of the 
people charging me 36 per 
cent on a loan ... They 
owned the slums and the 
tenements. They paid only 
§1.25 an hour for hard work.
* “Those kids really held us 
In contempt—us, the work­
ing class slobs, the beer 
drinkers, the hard hats, the 
pig's, the grunts—the people 
Who fight the wars and po­
lice the streets of this coun­
try, who keep, the nation 
moving while they piddle 
around with their intellectu­
alism.”
; Thus, said Barrett, when 
he became an informant, “I 
had joined the army of the 
Lord."
" Three years later, Barrett, 
t^e; one-time GDP ward- 
•heeler in Maryland and 
hard-nosed Young Ameri­
cans for Freedom (YAF) ac­
tivist, is not so sure. Three 
yehrs in the trenches with 
the new left had taken a cer­
tain toll.

’ <T had a hell of a time 
knowing where I began and 
where my role ended,” he 
said. “I was very confused.

; “I knew I was no longer a 
YAFer, but I didn’t want to 
get into the left culture, ei- 
theft-^—1'

; “I Jejt I was lying .on^ a 
juitgle island surrounded by 
fever swamps recovering 
from the withdrawal symp­
toms of a true believer.”

• He said, “When I started, 
T could give you an operat­
ing definition of ‘right’ and 
‘left,’ but there’s no way in 
God’s world I could do, it 
now."

• Barrett still has not re­
solved questions about 

’^whether current FBI sur­
veillance practices are mor­
ally correct.

“If the government hears 
that a group is trying to 
blow up the Capitol or kill 
the President,” he said, “it 

•has a right to find out if it 
is true and stop it through 
surveillance ... But. if they 
find out it is not true, how 
do you pull ’em back? How 
do you keep surveillance 
within limits? That’s the 

-problem, as I see it. Once 
the surveillance ball starts 
rolling, it’s hard to stop it.”

Because so many police­
men and other law enforce­
ment officers are “working 
class ethnics” with a heavy 
infusion of Catholic conserv­
atism, they are naturally an­
tagonistic toward the “smart 
middle-class airs” of the 
new left, Barrett said.

’He described the FBI as a 
“bunch of Fordham boys 
watching Harvard boys.”

While Barrett perceives 
himself as a person strug­
gling to comprehend the cul- 

' tural gap between the right 
and the left. Merritt said his - 
fundamental lack of educa­
tion in the realm of politics 
of either the left or the 
right made it difficult for V 
him to penetrate the anti­
war movement with any real5 
activist credibility.

Uninitiated in radical left 
literature or rhetoric, he 
was unable to participate in 
political discussions and 
never tried to insinuate him­
self into the movement’s ad­
ministrative hierarchy, de­
spite police requgMs-tfeat he 
do sorfre^aid. “

“But. there were, .other 
peopteTifcrg, too, who were 
just as naive and ignorant 
as I was,” he said, “so I 
didn’t stick out like a sore 
thumb.”

Merritt first entered the 
world of undercover surveil­
lance when he was recruited 
by the Washington police 
department to do criminal 
narcotics work in the Du­
pont Circle area in mid-1970.

■With the build-up in prep­
arations for the massive an­
tiwar Mayday protests the 
following spring, however, 
he was switched to the po­
lice intelligence division. He 
was assigned the code name 
“Butch” and control number 
16.

The police department 
confirmed his identity but, 
(like the FBI. would not dis- 
.'•-uss details of his job.

Merritt said police intelli- 
getie^ecfuiters specifically 
sought him because they • 
wanted a “white gay male” 
to cultivate antiwar gay ac­
tivist Jack Davis who ■ was 
reputed to be organization­
ally close to Rennie Davis 
(no relation), longtime war 
protester and a chief archi­
tect of the planned Mayday 
disruptions.

But Merritt did not get 
far. “I tried to get close to 
both of them,” he said, "but • 
just impossible ... They 
were too busy moving 
around," and he relayed no 
important information on ei­
ther of the Davises to police. ■

Soft spoken and clean- sha- 
• ven with short red hair, 
Merritt said he tried to 
blend into the antiwar 
crowd at organizational 
meetings by playing the role 
of “just another activist.”

Paddling about from one 
antiwar office to another in 
downtown Washington, he 
said, he did odd jobs as a 
“volunteer” while noting au­
tomobile tag numbers and 
the names and addresses of 
activists and phoning them 
in regularly to the police in- 
te1 tigence aivisic^u

The, police “asked me to 
jofft-TheThlayday) mars'hal 
training, too,” he said, “but 
I couldn’t get into it .... I 
was too spread out."

As the tempo of surveil­
lance increased in the weeks 
just before Mayday, “I was 
asked to call in (to 
intelligence) every hour .. . 
I called in up to 16 times on 
Mayday itself,” giving first 
hand street reports of activ­
ity.

The Mayday protest ac­
tion—which triggered the 
arrest of more than 12,000 
persons, along with inten­
sive barrages of police tear 
gas and the brief occupation 
of portions of the city by 
federal troops—also brought 
on what Merritt says was 
his first disillusionment 
with the law enforcement 
establishment.

The- mass arrests and 
what he described as brutal­
ity by police “disgusted me,” 
Merritt said,, and he began 
questioning police proce­
dures, including intelligence 
gathering.

Heretofore, he ‘said, he 
had believed police surveil­
lance “was the right thing to 
do because I believed (the 
antiwar movement) was a 
communist attempt to over­
throw the government.” 
Now his perspective was 
changing, he said.

Though he wanted to ex­
tricate himself from infor­
mant work, he said, there 
also “was the matter of 
some (bad) checks" he had 
written earlier in West Vir­
ginia and he feared the po­
lice might threaten him 
with arrest for the checks if 
he stopped working for 
them.

So he continued on the 
police payroll, he. says, 
drawing $50 a week salary 
plus expenses of $25 to $35 a 
week.

He went through a 
“limbo" period for the next 
two months as antiwar 
street activity dwindled, af­
ter Mayday, he s^itu '....



Then on July 16, 1971, he 
said, the intelligence divi- 
sion asked him to 
“concentrate” on the Insti­
tute for Policy Studies at 
1520 New Hampshire Ave. 
NW.

“I didn’t even know what 
it was,” he said. “They told 
me it was a communist 
think tank.”

(The IPS, a frequent tar­
get of criticism by conserva­
tive political figures, is de­
scribed by its co-directors 
Marcus Raskin and Richard 
J. Barnet as an independent 

.center for research and edu­
cation in alternative con­
cepts of public policy in 
such areas as foreign aid, 

• education, military budget, 
and health services. The pri­
vately funded institute sup­
ports 17 full-time fellows 
and a research staff of 
about 50 persons.)

Merritt said police inter­
est in IPS was apparently 
whetted by announcement 
that a series of weekly 
Marxism-anarchism semi­
nars were to be held there, 

■led 'by Marxist scholar 
Alfred Henley "and Karl 
Hess, one-time Goldwater 
speech writer turned an­
archist theoretician and ex­
aminer of alternative life 
styles.

■ “My job was to go to the 
classes and count how many 
people were there," Merritt 
said.

In addition to any names 
he could obtain, he said, po­
lice asked him for an attend­
ance breakdown as to males 
and females, blacks and 
whites, “Jews, Germans and 
people of eastern European 
extraction.”

He said, "I was told to 
look for Europeans in look 
and dress . .. They told me 
to look for certain clothing 
styles (and) physical appear­
ances, like high cheek 
bones. High cheek bones 
were supposed to be Ger­
man or Russian or some­
thing ... Yes, accents, too. I 
was supposed to report for­
eign accents.”

He said he told police that 
“most people at IPS were 
Jewish.” Asked how he dis-

-tinguished Jews from non-
Jews. I, ..said he .could do it

,Mos»tt-ssaid' h_e reported 
no Weather people entering 
the IPS and in fact told 
Jack Davis, alleged by po­
lice to have above-ground 
contact with the Weather or­
ganization, about what he 
was doing.

Likewise, Barrett said the 
(FBI asked him to watch for 
“couriers” at IPS delivering 
money to Weather fugitives.

। Supplied with photographs 
> of six or seven suspected.
I couriers, Barrett said he 
{ sighted one and reported his 
I presence immediately. He 

said he does not know if the 
IFBI took any action.

Merritt says he became so ' 
distraught with his- IPS 
work that by September, 
1971, he told Robert E. Herz- 
stein, an IPS board member 
and attorney in the firm of 
Arnold & Porter about it, 

' and in December, 1971, 
: made a similar confession to 
• Arthur Waskow.

Yet, for another six 
months, until June, 1972, he 
continued calling in low- 

i grade intelligence reports to 
(the FBI field office, he said.

When he could stand it no 
longer, he said, he deliber­
ately falsified a report on 
Jack Davis’ whereabouts. 

fFBI field agents quickly de- 
• termined through other in­
formants that the report 
was incorrect, Merritt said, 
and he was fired.

He has since tried to drop 
out of sight, refusing to di­
vulge his home address or 
place of employment.

Barrett says he was first 
Utilized by the FBI in the 
spring of 1970, after he and 
a companion offered the 
agency some film they had 
taken of street demonstra­
tions in Washington.

Thereafter, he said, he 
monitored demonstrations 
regularly, phoning in street 
actions and plans to the 
field office. He also contin­
ued to shoot moving film of 
demonstrators and was 
reimbursed for his camera 
coMls, he said.   —•* ,

.f-‘vagqe|y”then added that 
Ris’ police”mentors,*"6'ln” a 
rather facetious manner, 
used Arthur Waskow as a 
comparison model.”

• Waskow, a hefty bearded 
man, is an IPS fellow and 
veteran activist in antiwar 
and Jewish affairs here.

In addition to monitoring 
the Marxism-anarchism sem­
inars, Merritt said, police 
asked him to seek a job as a 
research assistant to one of 
the IPS fellows.

Merritt voiced concern 
that he was not education­
ally equipped for such a 
role.

“I questioned my ability 
tQ do it,” he said, “but 'the 
police seemed to think it 

. would be (the job of) a glori­
fied errand boy.”

Half heartedly, he said, he 
applied for the job but 
never got,it.

In the meantime, Merritt 
was "terminated" by the po­
lice department (the wave 
of dramatic antiwar street 
demonstrations had subsided 
by mid-1971, he said, and 
the intelligence division was 
running out of money to 
pay informants).

With the recommendation 
of his police superiors, he 
was hired by the Washing- 
|ton field office of the FBI at h 
'S50 to S75 a week and con- | 
tinued his work at the IPS. 1

He was by this time so 
disillusioned with the law I 
enforcement establishment, I 
he said, that he was deliber­
ately cutting down on the 
amount of information he 
reported. He said he main­
tained the guise of the in­
former, however, because “I 
needed the money” and be­
cause of the continuing pos­
sible threat of arrest for the 
checks in West Virginia.

hiis FBI control agents ad­
ditionally instructed him, he 
said, to watch for “Weather 
fugitives” entering the IPS, 
a reference to a dozen re­
puted members of the vio­
lent underground Weather­
man organization wanted in 

. connection with the bom­
bing of numerous public 
buildings, inelmyjusdhoCap- 
itol, iHi oUghoul the nation.

He said he was also asked 
to '’'checlTout” K&rr'HesT, 
who by 1970 had turned 
away from Goldwater con­
servatism and became active 
in the antiwar movement, 
living in a houseboat colony 
off Buzzard Point in South­
west Washington.

“They wanted to know 
what he was doing,” Barrett 
said. “There were rumors he 
was messing with some 
pretty heavy people.”

Barrett pursued Hess spo­
radically at first and did not 
begin to “zero in” on him 
until the summer of 1971, he 
said, when Hess and Henley 
began their Marxism-anar­
chism seminar at IPS.

Though'he devoted most 
of his time to Hess, Barrett 
says he circulated generally 
through IPS, coming ' to 
know many of its research 
fellows, exchanging political 
views \ with them and 
“playing the role of resident 
redneck.”

“I even joked about the 
fact that I was an infor­
mant,” he said. “I refused to 
play the game of being sym­
pathetic to the new left. I 
spoke and acted exactly the 
way I felt... The only tiling 
was they djdn’ really. know



thgt L \va&, in fact an infor­
mant?^ «———*

Hess recalls Barrett as a 
•‘‘very thoughtful, smart 
guy” who liked to write and 
who “made some really inci­
sive criticisms of the new 
left’s misunderstanding of 
the right in America.”

Barrett for his part said 
he never observed Hess do­
ing anything worth report­
ing to the FBI. x

In fact, he said, 
“everything I saw at IPS 
was completely legitimate. 
They (IPS research fellows) 
probably won’t like it, but 
their operation there, with 
its emphasis on individual 
decisions and decentraliza­
tion of power, reminds me 
of a sort of 1948 Robert Taft 
workshop.” ■ „

In addition to monitoring 
Hess and the presence of 
Weather “couriers at IPS, 
Barrett says he attempted to 
determine.if any of the se­
cret Pentagon papers di­
vulged by antiwar activist 
Daniel' JEllsberg had been 
copied at IPS. He said he 
was also asked to find out 
details about a “delegation” 
of IPS members going to 

'Paris in 1972 to meet with 
the Hanoi entourage at the 
Vietnam peace talks.

He said he found no evi­
dence that the Pentagon pa­
pers were copied at IPS and 
determined only the ■ 
“approximate departure 
times” of two IPS flights to 
Paris.

(IPS co-director Raskin 
says only he and fellow co­
director Barnet went to 
Paris, each on separate 
.flights and each “primarily 
on a journalistic assign­
ment” for major U.S. news­
papers. He said they met 
and talked with both the Ha­
noi and National Liberation 
Front (NLF) delegations in 
thatxcaweetion.) __ .

Barrett ^says his decision 
to? quit informant work oc­
curred at the 1972 Republi­
can National Convention in 
Miami Beach where he had 
volunteered to film demon­
strations and monitor street 

tactions for the FBI.
I During the last night of 
the convention when police 
and demonstrators clashed 
violently and tear gas was 
sprayed into the crowds, “I 
saw this VVAW (Vietnam 
Veterans Against the War) 
guy on crutches who had 
.stumbled down and couldn’t 
get out of the gas ... I 
'picked him up and carried 
him as far as I could. I’ve 
got a lot of respect for most 
of those VVAW People j

“f . ’. They’ve paid their 
dues..Why should they get 
thus treatment just for pgo- 
testing '.he government, 
when it’s the spoiled kids 
from Yale and Harvard that 
set off the police? It wasn’t 
the vets. They’re a very dis­
ciplined group.”

Barrett stressed that he 
always maintained his inde- . 
pendence from the FBI be­
cause “I was never salaried 
like some of these other 
guys. I wanted it that way.”

In interviews, Barrett re­
fused to specify his control 
agents, his code name or de­
tails of his financial ar­
rangements.

Unlike Merritt, Barrett 
pays his FBI superiors ex­
plicitly instructed him not 
to violate any laws or insti­
gate sabotage or violence.-

■ Though he acknowledges 
ripping down Vietcong flags 
and “punching out a few 
people” during street dem­
onstrations, the actions were 
not requested or sanctioned 
by his bosses, he said.

On the other hand, Mer- 
|ritt said his FBI control 
agents encouraged him “to 
take anything” from the 
IPS, "but they would never 
say exact'y what or how. 
They would never be spe­
cific ,o_n ..something. like 
thal." ~

" He acknowledged stealing 
one paper' bag fffiett^with 
mail from IPS and giving it 
to D.C. police. He also says 
he broke into the Commu­
nity Bookshop, 2028 P St. 
NW, in late May, 1971, at po­
lice suggestion and stole a 
quantity o£ antiwar petitions 
containing names and ad­
dresses of activists and sup­
porters.

In addition, he said he 
fashioned three false identi­
fication documents using an 
alias. One was a Social Secu­
rity card which he said he 
fashioned before becoming a 
police informant. The other 
two were a draft card and a 
D.C. ‘ public library card 
made at the request of po­
lice, he said.

Merritt said he also en­
gaged in disruption and sab­
otage during street demon­
strations. The actions in­
cluded giving protesters 
false information about 
places and.times of demon­
strations and yanking the 
wires and tubes from two 
sound systems at the May- 
day encampment in West 
Potomac Park in early May, 
1971. '

Such is the varied life of 
the political informant.

“Who knows?” says Bar­
rett with a brief laugh. “I 
might stPl be with the 

/(FBI), throwing up some 
kind of smokescreen right 
now to obscure some other 
cning.. You, neverKnow?"
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• of this article is attached. ’

. Earl Robert Merritt, Jr., who is mentioned
article, was a criminal informant of \JFO from 10/71 
was discontinued in 6/72. Merritt was targeted against the 
Institute for Policy Studies (IPS) after it vias learned som
of the Weatherman fugitives reportedly had visited IPS 
Merritt, who is a self-admitted homosexual, was discontinued 

• as an informant after it was determined he was unreliable

' ■ ‘-r ,
A37-28143 (Earl Robert Merritt,’Jr.).

T -•100-4^7935 (institute for Policy Studies) 
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To answer the Director’s--question of Mr. Miller—7 
”an^ untruths in this story?" referring to a "Washington 
Post" newspaper story by staff writer Paul W. Valentine, 
which appeared in the 11/26/73 edition of the "Washington 
Post" and which dealt with statements made by captioned 
individuals to the "Washington Post."

BACKGROUND:

individuals acknowledged their roles as informants for
Washington Field Office (WFO) of the FBI and outlined a
number of their activities as informants, including 
assigned to them, methods of payment for their work 
reasons why they ceased their informant activities.

22 DEC<^r 1973
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Memorandum to Mr. E. S. Miller 
RE: Earl Robert Merritt, Jr. 
■ 137-28143

■ IPS, which is mentioned in the article, was the 
subject of a preliminary inquiry by the FBI in 11/68 . 
after information was received indicating a possible ‘connection 
between IPS and SDS. The investigation was expanded in 1971 
after it was determined that IPS planned to embark on a five year 
plan for the radical reconstruction of American society and 
had circulated to radical groups around the country a document 
calling for brigades to descend on Washington, D.C., and close 
down Government agencies. The current investigation of IPS 
is directed toward those areas in which violations of Federal 
statutes may be developed in view of the activities of IPS 
personnel involving the Middle East and the Arabs, 
North and South Vietnam, Tanzania and the Pan-African Movement and 
contacts with subversive organizations and individuals in the 
United States.

- 2 -
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Memorandum to Hr. e. b. Miner 
RE: Earl Robert Merritt, Jr.

137-28143

OBSERVATIONS:

In answer to Mr. Kelley’s question "any untruths 
in this story?" the following should be noted:

Merritt’s claim of having performed illegal 
acts for the FBI has been denied by the Special Agents v/ho 

• - directed.him.

Merritt’s claim that -he was hired.by WO at $50 
to $75 a week is inaccurate. He was paid, on a c.o.d. basis, 

fin varied amounts between $20 and $80. which were paid on 
various dates two to five times per month beginning in 10/71 
and ending in 5/72 for a total amount of $1,570.

SME ($2) W
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Memorandum
; Mr. W. R. Wannail^

1 - Mr. R. E.
1 - Mr. J. A.
1 ~ Mr. W. R. 
DATE: 12/11/73.

Gebhardt
Mintz 
Wannall

from • s, Putman,/

1 ~ Mr. R
1 - Mr. J

L. Shackelford
R. Hagy

I

Assoc. Dk. _■ 

Assk Dlru

Admin. - 
Comp. Syst. _ 
Ext. Affairs — 
Files & Cam. 
Con, Inv. 
M«nt.------  
Inspection - 
Intoll. -----------  
Laboratory — 

Plan. & Eval. 
Spec. Inv.___  
Training .

Legal Coun.__  

Telephone Rm. 
Director Sec'y .

By memorandum 12/3/73, Watergate Special Prosecution1
Force (WSPF) has requested Bureau arrange for interview of 
Special Agents Terry O’Connor and William Tucker of the
Washington Field Office Relative to allegations made con-'
cerning them by Earl Robert "Merritt, a discontinued WFO informant

On 12/7/73, SA J. R. Hagy, Intelligence Division, 
spoke with Frank Martin, P/SPF, who prepared WSPF request. 
Purpose'of contact was to determine whether Martin was aware 
of recent investigation conducted by the Bureau in captioned 
matter at the request of the Civil Rights Division (CRD), 
Department of Justice, and to ascertain, if possible, the nature 
of the allegations made by Merritt.

Martin said he understood the CRD had received 
Bureau report in captioned matter dated 8/8/73 and that he 

- had made some effort to contact the CRD concerning this matter 
but that he had never actually spoken with anyone in the CRD 
relative to it. He admitted he was not aware of Departmental 
letter dated 10/17/73 (which requested Bureau conduct additional 
investigation based on information contained in Bureau report 
8/8/73), nor was he aware of Bureau’s response to this request, 
contained- in LHM dated 11/16/73. It was then pointed out to 
Martin that his request to interview the two WTO Agents 'involved 
a current, ongoing investigation being handled by the CRD, and 
that a review of CRD files in this matter could possibly provide 
him with the desired.information. Martin stated that he would 
contact the--CRD concerning this mattex* but that the allegations 
referred to in W’SPF communication consisted of
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Memorandum to Mr. W. R. Wannall .
Re: Unknown Subjects; Marcus Raskin and 
the Institute for Policy Studies-Victims

provided directly to the WSPF by Merritt who he said was 
publicly identified as a former informant for the FBI. 
Martin said he was aware of the.FD-302‘s prepared by SAs 
Tucker and O’Connor relative to their knowledge of Merritt’s 
activities as an informant and that he did not feel, these 
FD-302’s covered the current allegations. •

’ At this point, Martin was asked point blank what ’ 
these ’’new allegations" consisted of, and whether the CRD, 
which has been handling this case, was aware of them. Martin 
replied that the use of the word "allegation" in the WSPF ’ 
letter had perhaps been a mistake as it was- quite ’Strong^’’ but 
that the new information centered around a claim made by Merritt 
that the FBI had received stolen mail from Merritt knowing 
it to be:.stolen. In this- regard, Merritt claims that he 'took 
mail from the Institute for Policy Studies (IPS), Washington, 
D. C., turned it over to one of the two WFO Agents, who later 
returned it to Merritt with instructions to return it to the . 
IPS office. Martin stated Merritt had furnished WSPF with 
additional information and allegations concerning the FBI but 
that after looking into Merritt’s background and considering 
the information, that he, Martin, did not feel that this 
additional information had any .merit whatsoever. He said he 
could not, however, permit the charge of receiving stolen mail 
to’"lay in his files," and that it was for this reason he 
desired to interview SAs O’Connor and Tucker.

It was then pointed out to Martin that FD-302 dated 
6/28/73, prepared by SAs Tucker and -O’Connor noted receipt 
from Merritt on one occasion of an envelope containing some 
material which Merritt explained had come from the trash at 
IPS. Although the Agents did not closely examine all of the 
material, it did appear to be trash. No inventory was made of 
all the items and the material was returned to Merritt as soon 
as he could again be contacted at which time he was told that 
if the material belonged in the trash at IPS, that is where it 
should be placed. Merritt was also told again as he had before 
that the FBI never wanted him to obtain such materials from the 
.IPS and that the only other materials provided by Merritt from 
IPS were leaflets intended for the public.
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Memorandum to Mr. W. R. Wannall
Re: Unknown Subjects; Marcus Raskin and 
the Institute for Policy Studies-Victims

• Martin said he was aware of this FD-302 and its
contents but that he continued to feel the necessity of 
interviewing SAs Tucker and O’Connor relative to Merritt’s 
claim. He stated, however, that he was not in any rush to 
interview the Agents, since he desired to review the CRD 
file in this matter prior to such interview,. At this point 
the conversation was terminated, t

It should be noted that at one point during the 
conversation, Martin commented that, "Itfs not a place where 
our .jurisdiction is very strong,” (apparently referring to 
WSPF investigation of Merritt’s latest allegations) but that 
the WSPF did have some standing in the. matter since the 
incident "could” have arisen from pressure exerted by The 
White House. '

ACTION: ‘

For information and utilization in preparing response 
to WSPF memorandum 12/3/73, to be handled by Section IS-2, 
Intelligence Division.
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FEDERAL BURIAU. OF. INVESTIGATION 
COMMUNICATIONS SECTION

- / NOV 2074
t1050 PM NITEL NOVEMBER 20, 1974 WWC

«TO DIRECTOR. FBI (137-28143)

FROM; SAC, WFO

ATTENTION: ^R. L. SOACKELFORD, IS-2 SECTION

EARL ROBERT MERRITT,

RE BUREAU TELEPHONE CALL INSTANT DATE,

Dep.-A .D.-Inv.___
Asst. Dir.:
Admin. - .
Com]) 'Syst. __  

' Ext A ff? irs__  
Files & Com. _  
Gen. Inv.
Ident. . 
Inspection 
Intell. .
Laborat ry plzLL
Plan. & Eval. _ ' 
Spec. hr/.
Training

Legal Coun. 
Telephone 11m. _
Director S-e'y__

MERRITT WAS OPERATED AS A CRIMINAL INFORMANT BY SA 

TERRY T. O’CONNOR FROM OCTOBER f, 1971, UNTIL JUNE 1, 1972. 

HE WAS DISCONTINUED WHEN IT WAS DETERMINED HE HAD NOT

FURNISHED TRUTHFUL OR- ACCURATE INFORMATION REGARDING JOHN

RANKIN DAVIS, AKA JACK DAVIS.

MERRITT WAS TARGETED AGAINST DAVIS BECAUSE DAVIS HAD

BEEN ACTIVE IN MAY DAY PREPARATIONS, WAS A SUSPECT IN

CAPBOM, WAS ACQUAINTED WITH OTHER CAPBOM SUSPECTS, AND HAD

KNOWLEDGE REGARDING SOME WEATHFUGS AND WEATHFUG SUPPORT

PEOPLE. ex-ids'
SPECIAL AGENTS O’CONNOR AND WILLIAM T. TUCKER, THE • ' ’

ALTERNATE AGENT, CATEGORICALLY DENY THAT DAVIS WAS EVER THE

SUBJECT OF A COUNTER-INTELLIGENCE PROJECT OR THAT MERRITT

WAS TARGETED TO PARTICIPATE IN A COINTEL PROGRAM.

■**,,« * , * 0
Page-71 • \ \



PAGE TWO WFO

■ THE AGENTS WERE AWARE IT WAS COMMON KNOWLEDGE THAT BOTH 

DAVIS AND MERRITT WERE HOMOSEXUALS, BUT BOTH ABSOLUTELY DENY 

INSTRUCTING MERRITT TO BECOME INTIMATE WITH DAVIS. BECAUSE 

MERRITT WAS KNOWN TO HAVE BEEN A FORMER ASSOCIATE OF DAVIS, 

HE WAS REQUESTED TO RENEW THAT FRIENDSHIP. MERRITT AGREED 

WITHOUT HESITATION, AND ACTUALLY VOLUNTEERED THAT WHILE HE 

WOULD RENEW THEIR ASSOCIATION, THERE WAS NO POSSIBILITY OF 

AN INTIMATE RELATIONSHIP BECAUSE HE DID NOT FIND DAVIS 

PHYSICALLY ATTRACTIVE. HE ALSO VOLUNTEERED THAT THEY HAD 

NEVER BEEN INTIMATE, AND THAT THEY NEVER COULD BE. .

. BOTH SPECIAL AGENTS O’CONNOR AND TUCKER CATEGORICALLY 

DENY MERRITT WAS EVER INSTRUCTED TO MAKE PHONE CALLS TO • 

FRIENDS OR EMPLOYERS OF DAVIS TO MAKE ACCUSATIONS OF ANY 

NATURE AGAINST HIM. FILES WILL REFLECT THAT DAVIS’S EMPLOYMENT 

AT THE CLUB EAST II SAUNA BATH, INCORPORATED, CA HOMOSEXUAL 

ESTABLISHMENT) WAS TERMINATED, BUT THE REASON FOR THAT .. 

TERMINATION IS NOT KNOWN. ' . ■ ’

DETAILED INFORMATION FURNISHED BY'MERRITT WAS FURNISHED 

THE BUREAU BY WFO AIRTEL AND LHM DATED SEPTEMBER 20, 1974, 

UNDER THE INSTITUTE FOR POLICY STUDIES CAPTION.

END ■ '
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' Memorandum
TO : Mr. W. R. Wannall'C>fPiV

FROM : Mr. T. W. Leavitt 7^
* ft

SUBJECT: EARL ROBERT MERRITT

DATE: 11/20/74

A«soc. Dir* -
Dop, AD Adm._  

Dep. AD Inv.__
As$». Dk.: 

Admin.  
Comp. Syst.  
Ext. Affairs , 
Filo* & Com.  
Gen. Inv. _ .
Idont.__________ 
Inspection_____
Intel!. C______ 1
Laboratory , 
Plan. & Eval.__ 

Spec. Inv._____
Training 

Legal Coun. - 
Telephone Rm. ___ 
Director Soc'y___

At 2:10 p.m., 11/20/74, Assistant Director ( I
McDermott telephonically advised as follows: (>o

He related that Mr. Orr Kelly, a reporter for <
the Washington Evening Star News, had been in contact T" xS
with the captioned individual who had advised Kelly 
that as late as January, February, and March, 1972, „
he was carrying out assignments under.the COINTEL Program. J 

He reportedly advised that this was being done under x ‘
the direction of SAs Terry O’Connor and William Tucker, k
and that his target was one Jack Davis, an organizer » 
of the May Day demonstration of 1971. I . J— 7

Assistant Director McDermott advised ‘that !; / 
the above two Agents were assigned to WFO. He related 
that this information had been furnished to WFO for
their attention and action.

. ACTION:

That necessary file reviews be 
regard to the above statement of Merritt

made with 
to establish.

his relationship with regard to 
one Jack Davis.

TWL:mjt
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Eobert Merritt, who identifies himself as aformer FBI ,
. ■'* V - •* ’ 1 * . z. ' { ’ } * \ * ’ .* ^ , ^ '* *v f- ‘ ' * *0^ .** • «-■,*., I ' •* 1 - j'*!1'*; r.* *U

• , ■ 4#, •», , v- , *’*•*«, * w ** t ’, - * - *' ,*■•«.« •’• •“* * ** * C '*1“' }'■? f’4 • c ■ i'

informant, says he carried out tactics like those described in the Cointelpro

.Query from Orr" Kelly

_x =

f
§

report in January, February and March of 1972—-nearly a year after' the
. !’•.* a/v •. ' 'e* • /i •- , “ ’ * c . * J - ’ >' ? • «* • * t*1 <-•*•!■ *.• ’• *

Coihtelpro operation was ordered halted

y
May/Day

55S,i&

> He: said he worked under the direction of Terry O’Connor and'. ■’
t■ • .-•■ <v \i. M--.'- ■■

Tucker of the WFO and his^target was jack. Davis, an organizer of the

demonstration in 1971 and, at the’timeof his assignment
:?-TV:- *•: ' ■ <C‘~ i>sv* -x* 1 ’ • • -■* -

Club' East II\ Saxina Bath Inc©- at 20 0 .St© SEc

a.front desk

jta-: addition toattemtpngto obtainx.information, he said, he'was 

to .become intimate ^ith Davis;('he: hays-both were homosexuals) \

and;that;rh&was<ihstructed: to make phono calls to Davis’s friends and 1'• ■ 

employers-accusing him of coWoperating with or working for the<FBI ■ -

.and^pf?being dishonest-in.handling of,money. >?He says he doesn’t know why, but

i-t

t

I

&

'Wk! Davis' lost his-'job -.and .became depressedi
• ...=.. .. ■-•-s-^-SifrA

f-

6m' file copy
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T’dilikewhateyercorane^^ have on Merritt’s allegations

particularly his charge that tactics supposedly ruled out in the spring of

1971 were still being employed nearly a year later.



OSA CEN. KEG. NO. 17

/ - UNITED STATES Go /ERNMENT

Memoranmim
TO^ : Mr. W. R. Wannall^C 

"from •. r. l. Shackelford^

SUBJECT: EARL ROBERT MERRITT

1 - Mr. McD^ott
1' - Mr. WannTll
1 - Mr. Shackelford
1 ~ Mr. Gerblick

DATE: 11/21/74

Dap.
Dop. At) », 

Asst. Dir.:
Admin. —
Comp. Sytt, _ 
Ext. Affairs _ . 
Files & Com.__

Idcnt. . - 
Inspection -— 
Intoll. _________  
Laboratory _ , 
Pion. & Eval.._

Gon. |nv.----- „

Legal Coun,_____
Telephone Rm. .
virocror ooc y_

PURPOSE: /
To answer allegations, which are false, by { I

Earl Robert Merritt, a former criminal informant of WFO, >\ £
that he carried out tactics like those described in the
Cointelpro report nearly a year after the program was >
ordered halted and that his target was Jack Davis, an 
organizer of the 1971 May Day demonstrations. • >

BACKGROUND: k 3"

By memorandum from T. W. Leavitt 11/20/74, <;
which is attached, you were advised that Assistant Director o?- 
McDermott tele phon ically advised him on that date that ; ~ 
Mr. Orr Kelly, a reporter for ’’The Washington Evening Star News”
newspaper had been in contact with Earl Robert Merritt.
According to Kelly, Merritt identified himself as a former -S
FBI informant and said he carried out tactics like those x 
•described in the Cointelpro report in January, February, | £ 
and March of 1972; that he worked under the direction of ; t . >,
Special Agents Terry O’Conner and William Tucker of WFO; and J j 
that his target was Jack Davis, an organizer of the May Day 
demonstrations in 1971, who at that time was a desk man at 
a sauna bath in Washington, D. C. Merritt claimed he was :g
instructed to become intimate with Davis (he said both were '£ 
homosexuals) and that he was instructed to make phone calls
to Davis’ friends and employees accusing him of cooperating 
with or working,, for the FBI and of being dishonest in handling 
of money. He claimed he did not know why but Davis lost his 
job and became depressed. Mr. Kelly desired a comment on
Merritt’s allegationsn particularly his charge that-the tactics 
supposedly ruled outclb "th6 Spring of 1971 were siiXl ^e.-ig^g^ 
employed nearly az^eatf <1 u, vv "

Earl Robert Merritt, who is a self-admitted homosexual 
was a criminal, informant of WFO, 10/1/71 until he was ... 
discontinued on 6/1/72. By LHM dated 9/20/74, a copy of which 
is attached, WFO detailed the handling of Merritt by Special 
Agents O’Conner and Tucker. On pages four and five of the LHM, 

m!rsm (8). - c\\!

Enclosures - Continued - Over

NOV 27

' V I
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Memorandum to Mr. W. R. Wanna11 
Re: Earl Robert Merritt

it is noted that Merritt was told that the FBI was interested , 
in information concerning John Rankin Davis, who was then a 
suspect in the 3/1/71 bombing of the U.S. Capitol Building 
and was also believed by WFO to possibly be in contact with 
some of the Weatherman fugitives. Merritt advised the Agents 
that he had first met Davis, whom he knew as Jack Davis, in 
May of 1971. From January, 1972, to May, 1972, Merritt reported 
conversations he said he had with Davis concerning his Weatherman 
associates, reported information he believed linked Davis with 
the Capitol Building bombing, reported that he had seen Davis with 
an individual Davis said was Weatherman fugitive William Ayers 
and reported on several occasions that Davis had wanted him to 
accompany Davis to New York and wanted him to rent an apartment 
as a safehouse for fugitives. On 5/30/72 when Merritt claimed 
he had talked with Davis in Washington, D. C., Davis was being 
interviewed by Bureau Agents at Lake Ariel, Pennsylvania. During 
the interview, Davis related having met an individual in 
Washington, D. C., known to him as "Butch” whom he suspected was 
an informant. He related "Butch" on one or two occasions attempted 
to persuade him to travel to New York and once talked about 
renting an apartment as a safehouse for fugitives. After reviewing 
the above, WFO felt "Butch" was identical with Merritt, that 
doubt had been cast on his credibility, and therefore, he was 
discontinued as an informant. ■

By teletype 11/20/74, which is attached, Special
Agents O’Conner and Tucker categorically denied Merritt’s allegations

OBSERVATIONS: ’
Davis was never a target of any Cointelpro, which 

program was discontinued 4/28/71, nor was he* targeted against 
Davis in any way which can be interpreted as counterintelligence. 
On the contrary, it appears Merritt, in reporting on Davis, lied 
to WFO Agents regarding Davis in order to obtain money. In a 
"Washington Post" article, 11/26/73, Merritt exposed his role as 
an FBI informant, outlined his activities as an informant, 
including targets assigned to him, methods of payment and reasons 
why he ceased his informant activities. In the article, Merritt 
lied about performing illegal acts for the FBI and lied about his 
payments. Merritt’s present allegations to Orr Kelly that he 
carried out tactics like those described in Cointelpro are false, 
and this appears to be another attempt by him to obtain notoriety.

RECOMMENDATION:
That the allegations by Merritt to Orr Kelly be

categorically denied.

* -Merritt

*—r i . v*-
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D STATES DEPARTMENT 01 ^STICE

In Repijr,Please Kefe, <lt ■ September 20, 1974
File No.

. XNSTtTUTE FOR POLICY STUDIES, ET AL. v. 
/ JOIiT Ne JUTCHHX, LT AL, 
/ UNITED STATES DISTRICT COUNT,

’ DISTRICT OF COLUKDXA
' • CIVIL ACTION FILE 74- 316

■ Xufcxxratian Concern!rg ITrl Hobart Lcrritu, 
___ ....... - th>s Ix^oz-i^tion nhfch uc? lh.*rnish:?d Helnting 

to th? Institute for roller Studies (ITS) 
' and jthe Circumstances Leading ths Washington 

Held Office, to Discontinue Kim as an 
Ipfoxr.ant .... ,,

Earl Robert Merritt, also.known ns ”Eutch”p tele- 
phonicclly contacted SA Terry T. O’Connor on October ls 1971 f 
and advised that he wished to furnish infonr^tioji to the Fdl 

concern?! rg criminal matters and what could be termed 'Ve^ 
Left” activity. He stated that ha was a ho^oseimal. 
advised that Eq wanted to be raid fcr the information amd 
ceasoc. to iurnish information to the IrtalltAenee HtV]Si»W# 

’hetrop'olScan roliee Department GINA), EasM ngtea, CL 1W&G)s 

because thay did not pay his wall enough and had been treating 
him unfairly^ Merritt vas nevi rod tlu-t if he did ■h-"T.Lsh 

inscr.rt«?'. to the Khl for WkicH he WtS p«M0 KGsMuU 
coriSicer hiwself to an employee, would not rec.'.r.v^ a 
regular s.-iVry ba paid um the basis of the value of
the inrom.it ion fur rd shock

K-efore information was accepted from Merritt, it 
was detewi nod that Federal prosecution of Harritt on so-;e 

bad checks in Vest Virginia had been declined. Merritt had 
stated that he had experienced this chock problem v;hon he 
talked with SA O’Connor on October 18 1971. .

Merritt was considered a criminal inforrtant beginning 
October H, 1971. He thereafter furnished information of both 
criminal »:ui security nature. It is not known to the Wash­
ington Field Office (WFO) that any-of the criminal information 
he furnished resulted in arrests or convictions but rather this 
information ves of a crirdncl intelligence nature. ■

• / 3 7-TH Ir-./ ' ENCLOSURE! '



INSTITUTE FOR rOUCY STUDIES '

' Beginning with the conversation on October 1, 1971, 
Merritt stated that he spent a great deal of time at the . 
Institute for Policy Studies (IPS), Washington, D, C. (VDC). 

Me purported to have free and rightful access to the premises 
of IPS nt which he performed odd jobs and attended meetings. 
He stated that he had become acquainted with persons at 
especially Aybhur Washov/,, c;-.i Joanne-Malone^ ’
and visited frequently at IPS. ■

Previous investigation had reflected an association 
11 tiki ng certain of the Weatherman fugitives with persons oxi­
ployed at IPS, principally Arthur He show and Marcus Raskin. 
The association asong these persons had e:<isted before these 
Weatheman members, particularly Michael Spiegel, Cathlyn • 
Flett Wilkeeson and Willieia Ayers, became fugitives. It was 
believed that having someone like Merritt with waskow and 
Raskin on a legitimate and somewhat regular basis night result 

in the development of Reformation which would lead to the 
apprehension of some of these fugitives. It might also result 
in the development of information concern! i:!g civil disruptions 
and other illegal activities. .

■ During the period of October, 1971 to January, 1972, 
Merritt furnished information concerning conversations with 
Vaskov, Ha skin-and Holo no. ho attended r.octi rrs at I;'S and 
obtained various pamphlets (intended for public dissemination) 

from IPS. .

Sometime around December 3, 1971, Merritt began to report 

that Marcus Raskin had promised him a job as an assistant to 
Arthur Vaskov. Vaskov had initially been unhappy that these 
arrangements were made without his knowledge but that the job 
would begin after January 1, 1972. Prior to that date, Vaskov 
was to spend some tine in orientation sessions with Merritt. 
Merritt thereafter reported that he had difficulty in getting in­
touch with Vaskov regarding these sessions. He furnished a 
letter from IPS dated December 18, 1971, stating that no new 
personnel would be hired at IPS. He talked with Vaskov on 
December 27, 1971, and on this occasion Vaskov told him that he 
should not worry about this letter and v?as still being considered 
for a job, Vaskov added that his. sources had indicated that 
Lu hud beeit t&al sc&e&mq,
procedures, including polygraph tests, were being contemplated 
for persons seeking positions. .

XRSf? •'fRwnRV
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INSTITUTE FOR POLICY STUDIES

On January 13, 1972, Merritt advised that ho had . 
attempted to contact Waskow on the sane date but had been ‘ 
referred to an attorney, Robert Hersstein, who was with the 
law firm of Arnold and Porter, WDC. He contacted Herbstein 
who told .Hemitt that strict screening procedures, including 
polygraph tssts, would b.? emplovad to wood infer^nts 
omens tho applicants for at IPS. Hey2st©in cjnd
Baskin. would bs px’imscrlly responsible for screening applicants.

On January 28, 1972, Merritt advised that on the 
previous day he had gone to the office of an attorney named 
Rogovin at Arnold and Porter at Rogovin’s request-. A Mr. 
Barnett from PIS was also present in Rogovin’s office* Rogovin 
explained that be has handling legal and employment matters 
for IPS. Merritt answered negatively when asked if he knew 
an FBI /igent named Bob Wall. He also answered negatively when 
asked if. he know any “gay” police officers who night be vol— 
nerable to approach (for purposes of obtaining information 
from the police department). Rogovin asked questions of Merritt 
and told him that if Merritt wanted the job he would have to 
submit to a polygraph examination which Fc^ovin was reluctant 
to .administer because it smacked of the police state.

(It is noted that when interview by FBI Agents on 
June 20, 1973? Mitchell Rogovin, an attorney for IPS had told 
the Agents that an individual Rad furnishod an affidavit con- 
coming SA Torry T. O’Connor’s and SA Vil 11 am T, Tucker's 
alleged roles in a November, 1971, theft from IPS. This 
individual could only have been r’erritt based on the statements 
he had made). .

At this tine it became abundantly clear that •
Merritt’s continued association with IPS or persons therefrom 
would be counterproductive in that 1) Merritt was over his 
head dealing with persons at IPS who were unquestionably in­
tellectually superior to him, 2) that he had constantly been 
put off concerning the nosition at IPS and bad been furnishing 
no information concerning any association of ’’eatheman fugitives 
and persons at IPS and 3) that it was extremely unlikely that 
he would ever obtain a position at IPS. Consequently, he 
was immediately thereafter advised by SAs O’Connor and Tucker 
that they no longer wanted him to associate with persons at 
IPS for the purpose ox* obtaining information.



XnSTXTUTD FOR POLICY STUDIES

• Merritt stated that die wanted to know what sort of 
information he could furnish for which he could be paid. He 
had at that time already begun to attempt to cultivate his 
association with John Rankin Davis, also known as Jack Davis, 
who was a suspect in the March 1, 1971, bombing of the U. S* 
Capitol Building and was also believed by 1.T0 to possibly be 
in contact'with some of the Ihnthariann fugitives. Merritt 
tore tnua the was inuaresttja iii xnroxmiitxon regardwg i'svis 
pertinent to these Investigations.

Merritt furnished no further information regarding 

IPS after January 31, 1972,

With respect to Jack Davis, Merritt advised that 
he had first net Davis around ^ys 19719 through Ray Twohig, 
an attorney and mutual friend of Davis and Merritt, During 
January, 197^, Merritt began to furnish, information concerning 
conversations he had with Jack Davis and he continued to do 
so until the end of May, 1972.

■ Among the matters reported by Merritt concerning 
Davis were the following:

On February 2, 1972, Merritt stated that Davis had 
visited bin during the early r-orrdng hours on the same date. 
Davis talked about his association with thereathetman organiza­
tion and about the fact that he had known Meatharman fugitives 
Spiegel and Wilkerson when they lived in WDC. Further, he re­
ferred to Spiegel as Michael Bradford.

On February 6, 1972, Merritt told of; being in the WDC 
apartment of attorney Raymond Twohig during April, 1971, with 
Tvohig and Davis. Twohig, according to Merritt, allegedly 
told Davis that he would check with a person who had told Davis 
that he was involved in the Capitol bombing to determine if 
this individual was lying. Merritt surmised that Twohig was 
acting as an intermediary between Davis and this unnamed 
individual. Merritt considered this to be an indication of 
knowledge on the part of Davis of the Capitol bombing but 
Merritt stated that he definitely would not testify regarding 
these occurrences before a Grand Jury.

-i<682® DodciW9SMSWPag"eW



INSTITUTE FOR POLICY STUDIES

■ On Zipril 27, 1972, Merritt advised that he had seen Jack
Davis earlier that sane evening. Davis had an individual named 
Bill with Lira. Bill, Davis and Merritt went to Merritt’s 
apartment. Bill was very vary according to Merritt. On 
May 1, 1972, Merritt stated that Davis told'; bin' that the Bill 
who had. been with his on April.' 27 s 1972s was Bill zWers, a Weather 
sub fugitive* Merritt could nut, Lowvvarji identify tfx individual 
as Ayers when he was shown ^yers1 photograph, "

On several occasions during March, Merritt reported 
that Davis wanted Merritt to accompany his to Mew York end oa 
several occasions during March, 1972, he reported that Davis, 
had told Merritt that he wanted Merritt to rent an apartment
in the Dupont Circle, WBC, area to be used by Davis and 
Merritt as a safehouse for fugitives and as a meeting piece. 
Merritt was to furnish the initial funds to rent this apartment 

but Davis would also contribute.

Merritt continued to furnish information concerning 
his conversations with Davis until about May 30,‘1972. Or:, 
that date, Merritt claimed, he had talked with Jack Davis in 
VDC. As is sot forth below, however, the FBI had determined 

that through interview Davis was .in i'ennsylva-iia at the time 
Merritt claimed to have talked with him.

. ' On May 30, 1972, SAs William F. Moran and Robert W, 
Feuer interviewed John Rankin Davis at Lake Ariel, Pennsylvania. 
Davis denied having any knowledge of tha bombing of the U. S. 
Capitol Building on Karch 1, 1971, or the bombing of the 
Pentagon during 1972, Further, he had not bad any contact 
with the Weatherman fugitives or any means of c’oxitacting these 
persons. .

1 During the course of the interview Davis discussed 

several persons he considered to be informants. One of these 
persons was an individual he knew both a Bob Williams and 
’’Butch”. Ue described “Butch” as a “psychopathic freak”. 

He had first net “Butch” through his attorney who was represent­
ing “Butch” in a narcotics matter. Davis was immediately sus­
picious of “Butch” and warned Butch to stay away from him and 
any other "o^lltirnl.” ^ersotos.

. 5
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INSTITUTE FOR POLICY STUDIES

Davis stated that on one or two occasions “Butch”
had attempted to' persuade him to travel to tfew York and on" one 
occasion talked with Davis about renting an apartment in VDG 
to be used as a safehouse for fugitives, Davis told “Butch’* 
to stay away from hiss and bis home. But because Butch lived - 
in the scr.e neighborhood as s’close frlcod of Davin® rz~.c.d 
Turbo Bevis and Turk would often meet “Butch” on the street
at which tiro he would attempt-to elicit information fron them. . 
Davis had told “Dutch” before leaving U£C for Pennsylvania 
that he was moving to Los Angeles, California, although in 
reality' he had no intention of doing so, .

• *

• If Davis’ stater^nts concerning “Butch”, who is 
doubtedly identical to Merritt, are taken at face value, which 
they were for the most part by ^TO Agents, little if anything 
reported by Merritt concerning conversations with Davis and other 
rsatters concerning Davis could be considered- credible. This, 
of course, would cast doubt upon the credibility of all inform­
ation furnished by Merritt* '

It should he noted that the Agents who interviewed 
Davis have advised that although the statements made by Davis 
were not confidential they co not know what Davis4 reaction 
would b-a to revealing the results of this interview to anyone 
outside the 131 or Justice maparU.ast or io being recontacted 
concerning the natters he discussed during this interview.

It is noted that on more than one occasion after 
Merritt was discontinued as an informant and told that he would 
no longer be paid for information ha furnished, Merritt telephonic 
ally contacted SA O’Connor to furnish information of a criminal • 
nature. He was advised on these occasions that when he furnished 
this information he would be treated an any member of the general 
public and the information would rot be considered as having 
been furnished on a confidential basis.



INSTITUTE FOE POLICY STUDIES

Allegations Hade to Date Concerning the 
Involvement of SAs Terry T» O’Connor and 
William T. Tucker in Illegal Activities 
at the Institute for Policy Studies (IPS)

Several versions of what was an alleged illegal 
entry and theft of docirm-onts arid rail have been provided in 
the f-ev:n_ef by IPS gainst SAfe 0*Connor end TucKer.
Xt is uu’rio:/-!, Howov-'x’s as to vhlch of these- accounts; is re- 
presented at being that accurately describing the events 
alleged to have occurred. The first sot of allegations was 
provided in an interview conducted by WFO Arents with Hitchell 
Eogovin, an attorney for IPS-on June 20? 1973* The allorations 
which were the basis of a civil rights complaint against SAs 
■O’Connor and Tucker contained in this version are, according 
to Hogovin, based on an affidavit provided by an unnamed in­
dividual during January, 1972. This individual stated at 
that time that during November, 1971$ the individual saw a 
girl taking items from IPS and that she thereafter placed 
a manila envelope, containing the items she had taken, in 
front of the IPS building. An unmarked car pulled up in 
front of the IPS building and a male occupant of ths car got 
out, picked up this envoieoe and returned to the car before 
if drove away. Several days later SA O’Connor was supposed to 
have given this individual a manila envelope which the individual 
somehow recognised as being the same one the girl had placed 
in front of IPS before it was picked up by the man in the un- 
marked cur. SA O’Connor told this individual that the items 
had been taken from IPS by a female Hetvopolitnn Police Depart­
ment (kiPD) source who could not ret them back into IPS. 
The individual had therefore been asked by SA O’Connor to 
return them to IPS.

In February, 197$, IPS filed a civil action in 
U; S. District Court (USDC), WDC, in which it was alleged, 
among other things, that during January or February, .1971, 
SAs O’Connor and Tucker procured a female employee of the 
MPD, WDC, to unlawfully enter the TPS and take documents 
therefrom. It has been pointed out. that during January and 
February, 1971, SA O’Connor was assigned to the San Francisco 
Division of the FBI and SA Tucker was engaged in investigation 
of WFO which in no way related to IPS.

NW 68262 Docld:32989698 Pag8-83



IKSTITUTS FOK POLICY STUDIES ' -

This second version, the basis for which was not ■ 
set forth by IPS, appears to bear some semblance to allegations 
made by Hogovin in the Juno, 1973, civil rights complaint 
in that a female employee or source of the LVD, KX, vas alleged 
ly Involved in the removal of documents or other materials from 
Ti>So Thore are, however, differences, the principal difference 

using vim respect to tne t::nc during tte 
alleged to have been removed xx&z IPS.

■ "• The next version is based upon another sworn affidavit
furnished by Merritt on July 26, 1974, and submitted by IPS 
in the pending civil suit.- In this taffidavit Merritt alleges 
in essence that either SA O’Connor or Tucker, ha cannot rcraembar 
whom, instructed him to take anythiitg he could from IPS if 
he thought he could get away with it,. He stated that in further 
auce of hi s assignment he entered IPS on a cay in November, 1971 
He observed a female taking rail and other items and placing ’ 
them in a manila envelope. He startled her, causing her to 
drop the manila envelope which landed on the desk and then slid 
into the waste basket. Iker, she left he looked in the basket 
and saw a brown paper bag along withths manila envelope. He 
took the brown paper bag and left the envelope, bhile on the 
street in front of IPS, he saw the girl place the envelope out­
side IPS rad a man from an unmarked car pick it up and taka it 

away, . ■

. Hie paper bag contained nail and other documents. 
Merritt was telephonically instructed by SA Tucker to open 
and ’read items of mail, SA Tucker later picked up the bag and 
its contents. Merritt was thereafter given the bag by SA Tucker 
with its contents to return to IKS. ho mention was made in 
this affidavit of Merritt being given the manila envelope con­
taining the materials taken by the female M?D source in. order 
to have him return the envelope end its contents to I?S. 
Merritt stated that he had later learned the identity of the 
female MVD source. k .

Nothing to indicate that these are consistent state­
ments has been received from IPS to date.

. ENCLOSURE , '
Th-: awly krcouw to’ wo Qp^roach^n^ that des­

cribed in any ot tnese versions occurred on x^ovember Zo, 19/1. 
Merritt had called SA Tucker to describe several documents he 
had seen at lx'S and also that he had some items from lx'S that 

_ he wished to give to SA Tucker.$ It is noted that SA O’Connor 
NW60262 ’Po61ir329896f< PagS-W . " ' \. —- --y. -



INSTITUTE FOR POLICY STUDIES . '

was away from work from before Thanksgiving, November 25, 
1971, through. the weekend following that date.

’ SA Tucker met Merritt in Lafayette Park at which time 

Merritt gave to SA Tucker several items including a nanlla 
envelope centalnix-g materials Merritt represented as having 
come trash at IPS*

envelope and its contents 'were taken by SA Tucker 
to the KFO. Certain of the items contained in the envelope 
were examined and oney a copy of a speech given sometime 
earlier, was Xeroxed. No inventory was made of the contents. 
Hothi ng which had obviously been taken from or intended for the 
mails was included. Crumpled pieces of paper and other non­
descript items were included which would have indicated that 
the materials could have come from the trash. Shortly after 
SA OtConnor returned to work, the envelope and its contents 
were returned to Merritt. He was told to return everything 
to the trash at IPS if that was where be had obtained it, He 
assured the Agents that this would be done and, shortly there­
after, stated that it had been done.

It is noted that for the period January 26-30, 1971, 
Herritt was paid a total of flO.OO for-, information furnished 
•pertaining to 1*3 and a criminal matter.

Several statements might be made with regard to the 
above: .

1)' That SAs 0*Connor and Tucker injio way caused 
Merritt or anyone else to wrongfully enter IPS and/or to . 
wrongfully take anything therefrom, Merritt had, in fact, 
been specifically instructed never to do anything which could 
be construed as illegal at IPS or anywhere else.

Similarly,. neither SAs 0* Connor nor Tucker evex~ • 
requested Merritt to open mail which came from IPS or anyplace 
else. •
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( 2) SAs O’Connor and Tucker know of no efforts on 

the part of any source of the HPD to wrongfully enter IPS ■ 
and take documents therefrom* ’

3) If an illegal entry of IPS and theft of material 
therefrom .did occurs it could well have bean done by Marritt 
without th? ki^wlcdgo of end .cox::.;'ary La cpoclfic wurnicga by 
SAs CsCo;\nor and Tucker* It is further popeible that if 
Merritt did cor^it such an act he was thereafter either found 
out by IPS or (he felt that he was suspected of such ah act 
causing him to furnish the ebove-rsentionsd affidavits in order 
to cast the blame for these acts front himself*

United States Secret Service Inquiry Regarding 
Merritt ’

On December 6, 1972, SA Roy Cook, Washington Field 
Office (WFO), U. 5* Secret Service (USSS), WEC, telephonically 

contacted ^0. FBI, recuestir.g ary background i!i£or/;r.tio.i whic 
WFO, FBIs night have concerning a person whose ti-ua name was 
Earl Robery Merritt, Jr* SA Cook advised that the USSS was 
Interested in such infomation because i5nre.sti.gat ion by the 
USSS had indicated that Merritt had opp.“re",t1y furnished false 
infomat ion conccrairg -persons who were, rccordi"g to ...irritt, 
a threat to the life of Vice President Spiro Agnev?* The USSS 
was conducting investigation to detemine whether Meri'itt 
hinself might be a threat to the Vice President because 
experience had shown that persons furnishing false information 
might themselves become a threat* It should be noted that 
certain background information located in the’ files of WFO,, 
FBI, was telcphonically related to SA Cook by SA Terry T. 
O’Connor later on that same date*

This document contains neither 
recommendations nor conclusions of 
the F£I. It is the property of 
the FDi end is loaned to your agency; 
it. end its contents ere net to be 
distributed outside your agency.

r
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TO

FROM

SUBJECT:

UNITED STATES GC iRNMENT

Memormdum
Mr. Clevelan

E/ L. Recer

EARL ROBERT MERRITT. JR

1
1
1
1

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT

■ By form letter dated 
of the Deputy Attorney General 
been received from Earl Robert 
Merritt has requested that any

date-. March 14, 1975

- Mr. Cleveland
- Mr. Recer 
- Mr. Nelson 
- Mr. Mintz

(Attn

March 4, 
enclosed 
Merritt,

Mr. McCreight)

Assoc. Dlr.___  

Dep. AD Adm. 
Dop. AD |nv. _

Admin.________  

Comp. Syst.___  
Ext, Affairs ___  

Files & Cpm. _
/ G^prfnv.  

- - - -
/laspaction_____

•tfAnUll

Laboratory__ .
• Plan. & Eval, _

Spec. Inv._____  
Training - -

Legal Coua.____  

Telephone Rm.__ 
Director Sec*y__

1975, the Office 
a letter which had 
Jr., in which

"investigatory files"
maintained by the Bureau relating to him be made available 
for his inspection and copying under the Freedom of Infor­
mation Act. A copy of Merritt’s letter is attached.

General 
the law

The Bureau was directed by the Deputy Attorney 
to comply with the request or deny it, based upon 
and existing regulations.

subject
It is noted that in 1970 and 1971, Merritt was the 

of an interstate transportation of stolen property
■ investigation in which prosecp±i$n was.^declined. . .f s 

GuG J* /; /
- In addition to the ITSP matter, Merritt is a 

former Bureau criminal informant, and for this reason, the 
Freedom of Information Act Unit of the Office of Legal 
Counsel has requested our comments concerning this request

On October 1, 1971, Merritt presented himself<wTo
Agents of the Washington Field Office and advised that he <>31975 
wished to furnish, and be paid for, information regardin'g^1^ 
criminal and "New Left" activities. He was opened as a ___ - —•

. potential criminal informant at that time. On November 30, 1971,
he was converted 
operated as such 
having furnished 
to May, 1972, he 

' expenses.

to an approved criminal informant and was
until June 
unreliable 
was paid a

8, 1972, when he was closed for 
information. From October, 1971, 
total of $1,960 for services and

I-/ 1 Enclosure
r..

’• (CONTINUED OVER)
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E. L. Recer to Mr. Cleveland ' I
Re: Earl Robert Merritt, Jr. 7 I

f
■ ' ■ I

After being closed, Merritt disclosed his former |
relationship, with the Bureau to representatives of the media. |
He made some untrue statements, including the allegation that ?
WO Agents had threatened his life in an attempt to insure 
that he never reveal his role as an informant. I

The proper response to Merritt’s request is, of I
course, a matter to be determined by the Office of Legal ;
Counsel. It would appear, however, that the material in J
the informant file is not “investigatory” in nature, and ;
the operation of an informant is not,.in and of itself, an i
investigation. Other than the aforementioned ITSP case, the j
only investigation of Merritt which is reflected in the (
informant file is a check of appropriate local criminal i
agencies when he was opened as a PCI. ;

Merritt provided information in matters within i
our jurisdiction, but these of course do not relate to him t
as a subject or suspect, and would not^jpear to fall within :
the scope of his request. . j

It is further noted that in regard to those 
investigations in which he provided information, his ;
assistance was in the form of an investigative technique, ;
which we are not required to disclose under Section b(7) ’
of the Act. }

RECOMMENDATION: ■

Unless the.Office of Legal Counsel is of the 
opinion that we must furnish material from Merritt’s 
informant file, it is recommended that by appropriate 
communication, he be advised that the information 
contained in that file is being denied him.



i t 2? rl 73
HTY

. ™ • AKOr ^TRAL

Office of the Deputy Attorney General 
United States Department of Justice 
Washington, D. C. 20530

Gentlemen: • .

'pursuant to the Freedom of Information Act, 5 
U.S.C. § 552.. as amended, and 28 C.F.P.. § 16.3, I here­
by request that you make available for inspection and 
copying any investigatory files maintained by the Federal 
Bureau of Investigation, either in ims office at the seat 
of government or in its Washington Field Office, relating 

■ toc^L^W ^^K;-nSU§ject of course to the exceptions
• enumerated in 5 U.S.C. § 552(b)(7), as amended by P.L. 

93-502.

• Sincerely yours,
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UNITED STATES G /^NMENT

Memorandum

fe

1 -
1 -
1 -
1 -

DATE:

Mr 
Mr. 
Mr. 
Mr.

W. Moore, Jr.
3 Dep. AD Ayr

W. R. Wannall . Dop. aEJjw-
R. L. Shackelf or D.'i' 

Adm in J.
T. J. McNiff Comp.vSyst.___

3/28/75
Ext. Affairs ___  
Filas & Com.__TO :Mr. W. R. Wannall

PURPOSE:

Spec. Inv._____  
Training

Legal Coun._____ 
Telephone Rm,__  
Director Scc’y___

Gon. Inv 
Ident. _ 
Inspect 
Intell^ 

Laboratory_____ 
Plan. & Eval.__

To advise of article appearing in 3/28/75 edition of
"The Washington Post,” to the effect that information furnished
.by captioned 
metropolitan 
[informant is

individual to both the FBI and Washington 
Police Department (MPD) while acting as an 
mostly irrelevant.

DETAILS:
v

"The Washington Post" edition of 3/23/75, on page 
C-l contains an article (attached), captioned "Informant’s 
Data Mostly Irrelevant," which refers to approximately 50 
pounds of material compiled by Earl Robert Merritt for the 
combined time he served as an informant for both the . ' 
Washington MPD and the FBI. The article contains no 
allegations against the FBI, but highlights the super­
ficiality of information accumulated by Merritt during the 
late 1960s and early 1970s. Merritt claims he was paid 
approximately $1,500 by the MPD covering the period April 
to October, 1971, and then he became an informant of the 
FBI until June, 1972, collecting-another $3,000. •

' ' Review of Bureau files indicates that Merritt,
an admitted homosexual/ was a paid criminal informant of^ 
the Washington Field Office (WFO) from October 17~1'^ 
until he was discontinued June 1, 1972j~as doubt"" had been 
cast upon ’his““cre3HEnTtyT^TRirxn g"^hat period, he was_ 
paid for, information furnisliGTcp'on^E^^ “fota 1.
•ef- $1,570. flHTxIVl^Cdntact^/i^ was made as he was known
rtr'be an associate 
of U.S. Capito

of John/Rankin Davis, a CAPBOM (bombing 
spect, and .because it wag believed

7 0 APR [ 0197§\

APR 4 1975

Enclosure 
137-23143

TJMVbmf/

CONTINUED - OVER
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Memorandum to Mr. W. R. Wannall 
Re: Earl Robert Merritt 
137-28143 ■

he was in contact with Weatherman fugitives. From January, 
1972, to May, 1972, he reported on conversations he reportedly 
had with Weatherman associates. On 5/30/72, however, he 
reported^on a-conversation he was supposes to have had with 
Davis in Washington, D. C., on the same date that Davis was 
being -interviewed by Bureau Agents in another part of the 
country. Further, during the latter interview, Davis 
described Merritt to Bureau Agents as an individual he 
believed to be an informant. Services of Merritt were then 
discontinued. ■

In 9/74, Merritt related to a news reportei- that 
he had carried out, for the Bureau, tactics described in 
the then recently released COINTELPRO report, nearly a 
year and a half after the program was ordered halted, and he 
made several allegations of improper conduct on the part of 
handling Agents. All of the allegations were vehemently 
refuted by involved personnel,and the news reporter was 
furnished full facts concerning the matter. Details con­
cerning this incident were set forth in my memorandum -to 
you dated 11/21/74, captioned above.

OBSERVATIONS:

The above article appears to be prefaced upon 
another attempt by Merritt to obtain notoriety. As the 
article contains no allegations against either .the Bureau 
or its personnel, no additional action is deemed nec­
essary by this Bureau. . .

RECOMMENDATION:

None. Above submitted for information.

:’NW'S&-2-62" DoGld!^2989698t^Page^'l5»- ■ - —r"^ ",



v-u mev. 1-JO-M/ Dep. AD Adm._  
Dep. AD Inv.__

Asst. Dir.:
A.dmin. ________  
Comp. Syst. ____ 
Ext. Affairs____  
Files & Com. __  
Gen. Inv.  
Ident. _____ '
Inspection
Intell. _________ 
Laboratory  
Plan. & Eval___  
Spec. Inv.  
Training
Legal Coun.  

Telephone Rm. __  
Director Sec’y ___

Informants
Data Mostly
Irrelevant
/

By Paul W. Valentine 
Washington Post Staff Writer

Art Roscoe is righthanded, has a re­
ceding hair line—long dark brown hair, 
long shaggy beard with some gray— 
black rim-glasses, gold ivedding band on 
left hand —H: 5-11—W: 175.'

This description of author and com­
munity activist Arthur I. Waskow, com­
plete with the misspelling of his last 
name, is part of almost 50 pounds of 
assorted documents and files main­
tained by former FBI and D.C. police 
informant Earl Robert Merritt during 
the antiwar days of the late 1960s and 
early 1970s.

The files, consisting primarily of an­
tiwar tracts, leaflets, flyers, mailouts, 
news clippings and other publicly avail­
able documents, have been described 
by both Merritt and his superiors in 
the intelligence division of the D.C. po-
lice department as “mostly junk.”

Merritt estimates the FBI and D.C. 
police paid him a total of S4.500 in sal­
aries and expenses for his efforts for a 
14-month period between April, 1971, 
and June, 1972. Both police and FBI 
have verified that he worked for them?"

Merritt made copies of his files s 
available to The Washington'Post after | 
D.C. Police Chief Maurice J. Culli­
nane issued- a report earlier this I 
month acknowledging that the intelli- -• 
gence division collected thousands of 
unevaluated and irrelevant files on 
local political figures and organiza­
tions.

The detailed physical description of 
Waskow is one of the few independen­
tly developed reports made by Mer­
ritt—written in September, 1971, after 
Merritt attended a prison reform meet­
ing chaired by Waskow.

Yet; police acknowledge its value is 
virtually nil: it describes a man who 
already was well known to the police 
and who was a familiar public figure 
in the antiwar and civil rights move­
ment of that time.

Merritt says his control officers in 
the intelligence division specifically in­
structed him to include detailed physi­
cal descriptions, including the racial 
and ethnic appearance of individuals 
he monitored.

The control officers. .Christopher

The Washington Post .1--------  
Washington Star-News---------------  
Daily News (New York)-------------  
The New York Times----------------- 
The Wall Street Journal-------------- 
The National Observer---------------  
The Los Angeles Times------------

Scrapper, now a sergeant in the first 
police district, and Charles Robinson, 
now an investigator for the General 
Services Administration,, deny they 
gave such instructions.

The meeting was held at the Insti­
tute for Policy Studies, then at 1520

enclosim
„NW Qojcld;3298963§.’ Page 92
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By Larry Morris—The Washington Post (j k

The files’ of Earl Robert Merritt:- Almost 50 pounds of papers, leaflets.

■’New Hampshire Ave. NW, an inde- 
• pendent public policy research “think 
tank” that police had asked Merritt to 
infiltrate. The institute had attracted a
number of leftist activists during the 
antiwar movement.

Merritt’s report notes that 80 per­
sons attended, including “35 females, 45 
•men, 8 Negroes, 6 Negro men, 2 Negro

•/women, 8 foreign, as of German de- 
- scent.’

Also, it said the “majority of whites 
looked to be Jewish, some Spanish and 
small percentage of Irish, etc.”

Included in Merritt’s files was. a 
rough sketch showing the ground floor 
•plan of the Institute for Policy Stu-’ 

s dies.
1 Waskow, a senior fellow at the insti­

tute, recalled the prison reform meeting 
and said that with the exception of the

. spelling of his name, Merritt’s descrip- 
•.tion of him was “essentially correct.”

Merritt, 30, who “surfaced” more 
than 18 months ago and has spoken 
publicly several times about his under- 

. cover activity, has been, characterized 
■_ by police as an inefficient and unrelia­

ble intelligence gatherer.
t An acknowledged homosexual; Mer­
ritt came to Washington from the hills 
of West Virginia and became a crimi­
nal informant for the police depart- 
ment in,, 1970, .helping with narcotics

and other vice-related surveillance in' 
the Dupont Circle area.

With the increase in antiwar demon­
strations and' the advent of the massive
Mayday disruptions in the spring of 
1971, he said, he was switched to politi­
cal intelligence, although he had little
knowledge of the antiwar movement 
and its underlying philosophies.

Given the code name “Butch,” he 
worked for the police department’s in­
telligence division from April to Octo­
ber, 1971, at $50 a week, plus expenses, 
grossing about $1,500, he says, before 
he switched to the FBI where he was 
paid about $75 a week plus expenses 
until June. 1972, collecting another $3,- 
000.

He also was in periodic contact with 
the Treasury Department’s Alcohol, 
Tobacco and Firearms Bureau and was 
given $150 in April, 1971, to accompany 
Mayday organizer Jack Davis to New 
York City. An ATF spokesman con­
firmed that the bureau give $150 for 
the New York assignment to a confi­
dential source known onlY as “Butch.” 
Merritt said ATF wanted to determine 
if any firearms or explosives were be­
ing brought in for Mayday. Merritt 
said he found none.

Both police and FBI officials say 
they were dissatisfied with Merritt and 
fired him. They, acknowledge that the 
quality of informants varied widely, 
but Merritt was inferior to most others 
used during the antiwar movement.
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Mxsesi

Mr. Earl Robert Merritt, Jr
. 1145 23rd Street 
.Washington, D. C

Dear Mr. Merritt:

May U6, 1975

REGISTERED RETURN RECEIPT

1

N. W.
20037

1

Mr. Cleveland 
AttN: Mr. Riley 
Mr. Gebhardt
Attn: Mr. Mohr 1

>
j 
j

to
CD ■
CD 
t—I

, ca
• Hr

mswwjwsswk i

’ Enclosed
^records pertaining

are several pages of material from 
to your Freedom of Information Act

our
request

r
These documents were derived from (1) an invest!

gation involving forged checks drawn on an 
outside the state in which the checks were 
'a confidential source file. *

Other documents contained within

account located 
passed and, (2)

these two files
/are not being disclosed based on the following statutory 
' provisions:

1. The documents relate to internal practices of 
this Agency, the disclosure of which would adversely affect 
a significant agency function. Title 5, United States \ ; 
Code, Section 552 (b)(2), that function being development, i 
evaluation, direction and remuneration of confidential \ J 
sources. . * • ,11

*

I

Assoc. Dir._____
Dep.’AD Adm. „ 

! Dep. AD Inv. .

• J* f ***

2. Certain documents involve privileged infor­
mation and are protected, by Title 5, United States Code, 
Section 552 (b)(4). The privilege asserted in this instance 
is th® lawyer-client relationship between Department of 
Justice attorneys serving as legal advisors to Federal ■ 
employees sued in tort in theirA^rsonal capacity on

°£fiCial aOtiOK!” REC-7 /37-
I 3. Some of these documents erm j-^fw^^iuatidns 

and recommendations requested by superiors of subordinates sub-

k

; Admin. -. .
| Comp. Syst.____ 

Ext. Affairs --- ..
! Files & Com. _ 

Gen. Inv.
Ident._________
Inspection_____  
Intel!. _________  

Laboratory__ - -
I Plan. & Eval.__

Spec. Inv._____  
Training _

Legal Coun.__  
Telephone Rm. ___

sequent 
the'Ebi 
source.

to adverse media publications and involving
which pelaitis directly to you as a confidential 
These dddw.ents are exempt from d-feseAckCuxe -under

P -
O

2 - The 
Att

TELETYPE UNIT

Attorney General 
tion: Susan M. Hauser 

Quinlan J. SheaT" Jr
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Mr. Earl Robert Merritt, Jr.

Title 5, United States Code, Section 552 (b)(5) as release 
•would inhibit the interchange of suggestions, recommendations 
and proposed policy changes within the Executive Branch of ' 
the Government.

’ 4. Certain information furnished by yourself as 
a confidential source was disseminated to other law enforce­
ment agencies investigating matters within their jurisdiction. 
It is not feasible for the FIJI to confirm the current status 
of each of these investigations. As release of data concerning 
these cases might interfere with enforcement proceedings, 
denial is based on Title 5, United States Code, Section 552 
(b), (7) (A) . Furthermore, the FBI has s continued interest 
in certain matters within its jurisdiction also protected 
from disclosure under (b)(7)(A).

. 5. Many documents contain references to third
parties which did not originate with you, disclosure would 
be an invasion of. privacy as to these persons; therefore, 
denial is predicated upon Title 5, United States Code, . 
Section 552 (b)(7)(C) and (D). .

' 6. As to information which did originate from
you, the FBI asserts Title 5, United States Code, Section 552 
(b)(7)(0), specifically ths phrase, ”confidential information 
furnished only by the confidential source.” The interest 
protected by this clause of provision (b)(7)(D) is not that 
of the informant, but of the Government. Release to you 
may be construed as release to the public and preclude an 
assertion of confidentiality as to a request from anyone 
©Ise for the same information. . .

• 7. In addition, the FBI asserts Title 5, United
States Code, Section 552 (b)(7)(E) as to certain documents 
which pertain to our investigative techniques and procedures. 
Our reasons are the same as those asserted in the paragraph 
marked 1 above. • .

You have thirty days from receipt of this letter 
to appeal to the Attorney General from any denial contained 
herein. Appeals should be directed in writing to the Attorney 
General (Attention: Freedom of Information Appeals Unit), 
Washington, D. C. 20530. The envelope and the letter

' ■ ' * - 2 - ‘ ■
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Mr. Sari Robert Merritt, Jr. ■ , . •v,^.

;V \ \ 
i ‘i

should be clearly marked ’’Freedom of Information Appeal” br<- - \ 
’’Information Appeal.” Follovziag the Attorney General’s ' \ 4 
decision, judicial review is available in the district of ,v ' 
your residence or principal place of business, or in the 
District of Columbia, where the records are situated.

Sincerely yours, .4'
%

- ■ C. M. Kelley . . . .;

Clarence M. Kelley ;; 1
Director • ;

Enclosures (6) • 4

NOTE: Earl Robert Merritt, the requester, is a former 
confidential source of the FBI whose source file was 
closed upon determination he had furnished false information 
to Bureau Agents. Subsequently, Merritt made false and 
malicious allegations to the news media regarding the FBI 
and the Metropolitan Police Department, WDC, regarding .the 
direction and tasks he performed as a source. Some of these 
allegations constitute the basis for certain causes of 
action alleged in Institute-for policy Studies, et al, 
v. John N. Mitchell, et al4 Civil Action No. 74-316 
U.S.D.C. District of Columbia.

The Bufiles involved with this request are 137- 
28143 and 87-111347.

By prior memorandum, Special Investigative Division 
concurs with the FOIA section regarding release. The initial 
disclosure contemplated has been significantly narrowed to 
include only descriptive information, closing serials and 
certain newspaper articles. As for the 87 case, disclosure 
has been limited to a serial revealing, .the prosecutive opinion.

This response is being posted by registered mail, 
return receipt requested with the instruction, "Deliver 
Only to Addressee."

NW 68262 DoGld,32989698- Page 96



Two Lift Curtain on Undercover W
Tell of Successes, Failures as Infiltrators of Antiwar Gr

yheir digc 1 osure.s also pro­
vide some glimpse of the 
contrasting kinds of people 

It he FBI uses for informants. 
The two men are: ‘‘ ■

’ Earl Robert Merritt, tim­
id. 29-year-old, small-town 
West. Virginian who never r*—। . ———J 
finished high school and 
says he “didn’t even know 

j what a Weatherman was” 
| |until FBI agents told him. 
E iHe is a self-described homo- 
j sexual.

• J.A. Barrett, a beefy, ag­
gressive, 36-year old urban 
Irish Catholic ethnic with a 
one-time penchant for vio­
lence who saw the police­
radical street clashes of the 
antiwar movement as a 
“cultural war between work­
ing class grunts ... and 
spoiled upper class WASP 
and Jewish kids.” .

Each informant said he 
was caught in a web of fi­
nancial or political circum­
stance compelling him to 
continue covert surveil­
lance of people and institu­
tions long after his original 
zeal to do so had ceased.

Each says he did not know 
the other was ap-undervover 
operative at the time,

By Paul W. Valentine 
Washington Post Staff Writer

Two men who infiltrated 
the antiwar movement here 
for the FBI and D.C. police 
from 1970 through 1972 have 
described their operations, 
parting the curtain momen­
tarily on the tangled world 
of the political undercover 
informant.

In interviews with The 
Washington Post, they de­
tailed their successes, fail­
ures, a few absurdities, but 
most of all the personal con­
fusion, ambivalence and ag­
ony they said they endured 
in doing such work for the 
country.

Much of their work, they 
said, was superficial and pe­
ripheral, and in the long run 
they provided little they 
could judge as being of real 
consequence.
iThe FBI, in keeping with 

time-honored tradition, doe;. - - - ‘ * • * •
not officially acknowledge 
that either man worked for 
the agency. But it has been 
independently determined 
that both were utilized as 

istreet-level FBI informants 
'—one on a S50-to-$75-a-weck 
salaried basis, the other pri­
marily as a volunteer on an
expenses-only basis. One- 
man also worked for the 
D.C. police department.

Many of their alleged acts 
' of surveillance could not be 
corroborated, but sources 

/within the FBI confirmed 
that details of pay arrange­
ments and other transac­

tions with the FBI dcsqri>tpd 
by the-mon'ire authentic.

though they both conducted 
surveillance of antiwar dem­
onstrations in 1970 and 1971 
and then almost simultane­
ously penetrated the Insti­
tute for Policy Studies 
(IPS), a governmental policy 
research organization here.
• • Merritt worked first for 
the police department and 

Athen the FBI, each time on 
a salaried basis, he says. 
Barrett, "working more as 
a volunteer than anything 
else,” he says, was utilized 

Aby the FBI only and was 
'paid expenses but no salary.

Merritt’s identity was first 
divulged by the Daily Rag, a 
small activist community 
newspaper here that pub­
lished a carefully worded in­
terview with Merritt in its 
Oct. 5-12 issue. The text had 
first been cleared and ap­
proved by Merritt’s attor­
ney, David B. Isbell, of the 

rh,,,, r. . < —r.
. Washington law firm of Cov­
ington a Burling.,—w—»’

Shy. hesitant, baby-faced, 
Merritt agreed to a subse­
quent interview by The Post 
but only in the presence ofj 
his attorney.

. In contrast. Barrett spoke 
■freely with this reporter ini 
both formal and informal 
conversations during the 
last several months. His 
Identity has not been previ-
ous5y-dieeie4ed.

cwH OSH®
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“My motto was ‘let’s rin 
'gnTOTTaiid do sombtnTng~io 
'em,’" says• Barrett, recall­
ing how he first entered 
antiwar demonstrations here 
in the late 1960s as a free­
lance observer and occa­
sional street fighter who 
.would trip, punch and jab 
demonstrators during me­
lees with the police. It was a 
habit he took with him 

(when he joined the FBI in- 
• Vormant ranks in 1970, but 

he says he has since repdi- 
ated it.
: “At first, I-thought my an­
tagonism toward the left 
was an ideological one,” 

' Barrett said, “but now I know 
it was cultural.

“Fm working-class Irish 
Catholic ... These upper 
class WASP and Jewish kids 
of the new left were the 
sons and daughters of the 
people charging me 36 per 
cent on a -loan ... They 
owned the slums and the 
tenements. They paid only 
$1.25 an hour for hard work.

“Those kids really held us 
In contempt-—us, the work­
ing class slobs, the beer 
drinkers, the hard hats, the 
pigs, the grunts—the people 
who fight the wars and po­
lice the streets of this coun­
try, who keep, the nation 
moving while they piddle 
around with their intellectu­
alism.”

’ Thus, said Barrett, when 
he became an informant, “I 
had joined the army of the 
Lord."
*. Three years later, Barrett, 
tjie one-time GOP ward­
heeler in Maryland and 
hard-nosed Young Ameri­
cans for Freedom (YAF) ac- 
.tivist, is not so sure. Three 
years in the trenches with 
the new left had taken a cer­
tain toll.

’ <T had a hell of a time 
knowing where I began and 
where my role ended," he 
taid. “I was very confused.

. “I felt T was lying .on. a 
jungle island surrounded by 
fever swamps recovering 
from the withdrawal symp­
toms of a true believer.”

He said, “When I started, 
I could give you an operat­
ing definition of Tight’ and 
‘left,’ but there’s no way in 
God’s world'I could do, it 
now."

Barrett still has not re­
solved questions about 

Whether current FBI sur­
veillance practices are., mor­
ally correct.

“If the government hears 
that a group is trying to 
blow up the Capitol or kill 
the President,’’ he said, “it 

• has a right to find out if it 
is true and stop it through 
surveillance ... But, if they 
find out it is not true, how 
do you pull ’em back? How 
do you keep surveillance 
within limits? That’s the 

■problem, as I see it.- Once 
the surveillance ball starts 
rolling, it’s hard to stop it.”

Because so' many police­
men and other law enforce­
ment officers are “working 
class ethnics” with a heavy 
infusion of Catholic conserv­
atism, they are naturally an­
tagonistic toward the “smart 
middle-class airs" of the 
new left, Barrett said.

•He described the FBI as a 
“bunch of- Fordham boys 
watching Harvard boys.”

While Barrett' perceives 
himself as a person strug­
gling to comprehend the cul- 
'tural gap between the right 
and the left. Merritt said his 
fundamental lack of educa­
tion in the realm of politics 
of either the left or the 
right made it difficult for 

I him to penetrate the anti­
war movement with any real 
activist credibility.

Uninitiated in radical left 
literature or rhetoric, he 
was unable to participate in 
political • discussions and 
never tried to insinuate him­
self into the movement’s ad­
ministrative hierarchy, de­
spite police requ£sU_t^at he 
do scniegrald."

“But there were,, .other 
peopfertinn'^, too, who were 
just as naive and ignorant 
as I was,” he said, “so I 
didn’t stick out like a sore 
thumb.”

Merritt first entered the 
world of undercover surveil­
lance when he was recruited 
by the Washington police 
department to do criminal 
narcotics work in the Du­
pont Circle area in mid-1970.

With the build-up in prep­
arations for the massive an­
tiwar Mayday protests the 
following spring, however, 
he was switched to the po­
lice intelligence division. He 
was assigned the code name 
“Butch” an'd control number 
16. •

■The police department 
confirmed his identity but, 
|like the FBI. would not dis­
cuss details of his job.

Merritt said police intelli- 
genee-feefuiters specifically 
sought him because they 
wanted a “white gay male" 
to cultivate antiwar gay ac­
tivist Jack Davis who was 
reputed to be organization­
ally close to Rennie Davis 
(no relation), longtime war 
protester and a chief archi­
tect of the planned Mayday 
disruptions.

But Merritt did not get 
far. “I tried to get close to 
both of them,” he said, “but. 
just impossible ... They 
were too busy moving 
around,” and he relayed no 
important information on ei­
ther of the Davises to police.

Soft spoken and clean sha­
ven with short red hair, 
Merritt said he Tried to 
blend into the antiwar 
crowd at organizational 
meetings by playing the role 
of “just another activist."

Paddling about from one 
antiwar office to another in 
downtown Washington, he 
said, he did odd jobs as a 
“volunteer" whilemoting au­
tomobile tag numbers and 
the names and addresses of 
activists and phoning them 
tn regularly to thejmljge in- 
tcUigence division.

The police “asked me to 
j oi lYTTrtTTAiaydayjr-Triai^h al 
training, too,” he said, “but 
I couldn’t get into it'.... I 
was too spread out.”

As the tempo of surveil­
lance increased in the weeks 
just before Mayday, “I was 
asked to call in (to 
intelligence) every hour .. .
I called in up to 16 times on 
Mayday itself,” giving first 
hand street reports of activ­
ity.

■ The Mayday protest ac­
tion—which triggered the 
arrest of more than 12,000 
persons, along with inten­
sive barrages of police tear 
gas and the brief occupation 
of portions of the city by 
federal troops—also brought 
on what Merritt says was 
his first disillusionment 
with the law enforcement 
establishment.

The. mass arrests and 
what he described as brutal­
ity by police “disgusted me,” 
Merritt said, and he began 
questioning police proce­
dures, including intelligence 
gathering.
. Heretofore, he -*  said, he 
had believed police surveil­
lance “was the right thing to 
do because I believed (the 
antiwar movement) was a 
communist attempt to over­
throw the government.” 
Now his perspective was 
changing, he said.

• *T knew I was no longer a 
YAFer, but I didn’t want to 
get into the left culture. «]i- 
tlief: x

Though he wanted -to ex­
tricate himself from infor­
mant work, he said, there 
also “was the matter of 
some (bad) checks” he had 
written earlier in West Vir­
ginia and he feared the po­
lice might threaten him 
with arrest for the checks if 
he stopped working for 
them. :

So he continued on the 
police payroll, he says, 
drawing $50 a week salary 
plus expenses of $25 to $35 a 
week.

He went through a 
“limbo" period for the next 
two months as antiwar 
street activity dwindled af- 
ter Mayday, he satdr* ' "" 1

--- --------------------------- «



Then on July 16, 1971, he 
said, the ihlcllig'cnCe WHvi- 
sion asked him to 
“concentrate" on the Insti­
tute for Policy Studies at 
1320 New Hampshire Ave. 
NW.

“I didn’t even know what 
it was." he said. “They told 
me it was a communist 
think tank."

(The IPS, a frequent tar­
get of criticism by conserva­
tive political figures, is de­
scribed by its co-directors 
Marcus Raskin and Richard 

- J. Barnet as an independent 
center for research and edu­
cation in alternative con­
cepts of public policy in 
such areas as foreign aid, 
education, military budget, 
and health services. The pri­
vately funded institute sup­
ports 17 full-time fellows 
and a research staff of 
about 50 persons.)

Merritt said police Inter­
est in IPS was apparently 
whetted by announcement 
that a series of weekly 
Marxism-anarchism semi­
nars were to be held there, 
led by Marxist scholar 
Alfred Henley -and Karl 
Hess, one-time Goldwater 
speech writer turned an­
archist theoretician and ex­
aminer of alternative life 
styles.

“My job was to go to the 
classes and count how many 
people were there,” Merritt 
said.

In addition to any names 
he could obtain, he said, po­
lice asked him for an attend­
ance breakdown as to males 
and females, blacks and 
whites, “Jews, Germans and 
people of eastern European 
extraction."

He said, "I was told to 
look for Europeans in look 
and dress . .. They told me 
to look for certain clothing 
styles (and) physical appear­
ances, like high cheek 
bones. High cheek bones 
were supposed to be Ger­
man or Russian or some­
thing ... Yes, accents, too. I 
was supposed to report for- 
sign accents."

He said he told police that 
"most people at H’S were 
Jewish.” Asked how he dis- 
inguished Jews from non- 
lews. >. „ said ho ’•
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• •‘vagueiy/'then added that 
his" police’ mentorsT*-1*;!? a 
rather facetious manner, 
used Arthur Waskow as a 
comparison model."

Waskow, a hefty bearded 
man, is an IPS fellow and 
veteran activist in antiwar 
and Jewish affairs here.

In addition to monitoring 
the Marxism-anarchism sem­
inars, Merritt said, police 
asked him to seek a job as a 
research assistant to one of j 
the IPS fellows. i

Merritt voiced concern 
that he was not education­
ally equipped for such a 
role.

“I questioned my ability 
tq do, it,” he said, “but the 
police seemed to think it 
would be (the job of) a glori­
fied errand boy.”

Half heartedly, he said, he 
applied for the job but 
never got it.I

In the meantime, Merritt 
was “terminated” by the po­
lice department (the wave 
of dramatic antiwar street 
demonstrations had subsided 
by mid-1971, he' said, and 
the intelligence division was 
running out of money to
pay informants). ' . |

With the recommendation I 
of his police superiors, he I 
was hired by the Washing- J 
|ton field office of the FBI at J 
'$50 to S75 a week and con- i 
tinned his work at the IPS. *

He was by this time so 
disillusioned with the law 
enforcement establishment, 
he said, that he was deliber- . 
ately cutting down on the ' 
amount of information he 
reported. He said he main­
tained the guise of the in­
former, however, because “I 
needed the money” and be­
cause of the continuing pos­
sible threat of arrest for the 
checks in West Virginia.

I His FBI control agents ad­
ditionally instructed him, he 
said, to watch for “Weather 
fugitives" entering the IPS, 
a reference to a dozen re­
puted members of the vio­
lent underground Weather­
man organization wanted in 
connection with the bom­
bing of numerous public 
buildings. inchiHbv -p--

M««wU-.said he renoded 
no Weather people entering 
the IPS and in fact told 
Jack Davis, alleged by po­
lice to have above-ground 
contact with the Weather or­
ganization, about what he 
was doing.

Likewise, Barrett said the 
(FBI asked him to watch for 
“couriers" at IPS delivering 
money to Weather fugitives. 
Supplied with photographs 
of six or seven suspected . 
couriers, Barratt said he 
sighted one and reported his 
presence immediately. He

I said he does not know if the 
IIFBI took any action.

Merritt says he became so 
distraught with his - IPS 

; work that by September, 
| 1971, he told Robert E. Herz- 

stein, an IPS board member 
and attorney in the firm of 
Arnold & Porter about it, 
and in _J)gcember, 1971, 

• made a similar confession to
Arthur Waskow.

Yet, for another six 
months, until June, 1972, he 
continued calling in low- 
grade intelligence reports to

I the FBI field office, he said.
• When he could stand it no 
longer, he said, he deliber­
ately falsified a report on 
Jack' Davis’ whereabouts. 
pBI field agents quickly de­
termined through other in­
formants that the report 
was incorrect, Merritt said, 
and he was fired.

' He has since tried to drop 
out of sight, refusing to di­
vulge his home address or 

: place of employment.
'i Barrett says he was first 
4 Utilized by the FBI in the 
| spring of 1970, after he and 
I a. companion offered the 
| agency some film they had 
I taken of street demonstra- 
' tions in Washington.

Thereafter, he said, he 
monitored demonstrations 
regularly, phoning in street 
actions and plans to the 
field office. He also contin­
ued to shoot moving film of 
demonstrators and was 
reimbursed for his camera 
costs, he said.

He said he was also askd 
to ‘“check out" Ktsrt^Tfesj 
who by 1970 had turned 
away from Goldwater cor 
servatism and became active 
in the antiwar movement’
living in a houseboat 
off Buzzard Point in

colon;; 
South;

west Washington. I <
“They wanted to know

what he was doing," Barrett 1 
said. “There were rumors hei 
was messing with some! 
pretty heavy people.” ‘

Barrett pursued Hess spo-i 
radically at first and did not; 
begin to “zero in” on him i 
until the summer of 1971, he ’ 
said, when Hess and Henley I 
began their Marxism-anar- I 
chism seminar at IPS. ‘ '

Though he devoted most 
of his time to Hess, Barrett 
says he circulated generally 
through IPS, coming to 
know many of its research 
fellows, exchanging political 
views with them and 
“playing the role of resident 
redneck.”

“I evert joked about the 
fact that I was an infor­
mant,” he said. “I refused to 
play the game of being sym­
pathetic to the new left. I 
spoke and acted exactly the 
way I felt... The only thing 
was they didn! really, know



that I was,, in fact an infor­
mant. “—*

Hess recalls Barrett as a 
•“very thoughtful,' smart 
guy” who liked to write and 
who “made some really inci­
sive criticisms of the new 
left's misunderstanding of 
the right in America."

Barrett for his part said 
he never observed Hess do­
ing anything worth report­
ing to the FBI.

In fact, he said, 
“everything I saw at IPS 
was completely legitimate. 
They (IPS research fellows) 
probably won’t like it, but 
their operation there, with 
its emphasis on individual 
decisions and decentraliza­
tion of power, reminds me 
of a sort of 1943 Robert Taft 
workshop.”

’’ In addition to monitoring 
Hess and the presence of 
Weather “couriers at IPS, 
Barrett says he attempted to 
determine.if any of the se­
cret Pentagon papers di- 
vtilged by antiwar activist 
Daniel' Ellsberg had been 
copied at IPS. He said he 
was also asked to find out 
details about a “delegation” 
of IPS members going to 
Paris in 1972 to meet with 
the Hanoi entourage at the 
Vietnam peace talks.

He said he found no evi­
dence that the Pentagon pa- 

•pers were copied at IPS and 
determined only the 
“approximate departure 
times’’ of two IPS flights to 
Paris.

(IPS co-director. Raskin 
says only he and fellow co­
director Barnet went to 
Paris, each on separate 
flights and each “primarily 
on a journalistic assign­
ment” for major U.S. news­
papers. He said they met 
and talked with both the Ha­
noi and National Liberation 
Front (NLF) delegations in 
thatxxaKwetion.) •

Barrett says his derision 
to'quit'informant work oc­
curred at the 1972 Republi­
can National Convention in 
Miami Beach where he had 
volunteered to film demon­
strations and monitor street 

tactions for the FBI.
I During the last night of 
the convention when police 
and demonstrators clashed 
violently and tear gas was 
sprayed into the crowds, “I 
saw this VVAW (Vietnam 
Veterans Against the War) 
guy on crutches who had 
stumbled down and couldn’t 
get out of the gas ... I 
'picked him up and carried 
him as far as I could. I’ve 
got a lot of respect for most 
of those VVAW neople. .- •

. . They’ve paid their 
dues. Why should they get 
this treatment just for pro- 
testing the government, 
when it’3 the spoiled kids 
from Yale and Harvard that 
set off the police? It wasn’t 
the vets. They’re a very dis- • 

•ciplined group."
Barrett stressed that he 

always maintained his inde­
pendence from the FBI be­
cause “I was never salaried 
like some of these other 
guys. I wanted it that way.”

In interviews, Barrett re­
fused to specify his control 
agents, his code name or de­
tails of .his financial ar­
rangements.

Unlike Merritt, Barrett 
^says his FBI superiors ex­
plicitly instructed him not 
to violate any laws or insti­
gate sabo! age or violence. 
Though he acknowledges 
ripping down Vietcong flags 
and “punching out a few 
people” during street dem­
onstrations, the actions were 
not requested or sanctioned 
by his bosses, he said.

On the other hand, M-er- 
|ritt said his FBI control 
agents encouraged him “to 
take anything” from the
IPS, “but they would never 
say exact'y what or how. 
They would never be spe­
cific .on .something. like 
that”-------

He acknowledged stealing 
orib paper bag flttetk^vith 
mail from IPS and giving it 
to D.C. police. He also says 
he broke into the Commu­
nity Bookshop, 2028 P St. 
NW, in late May, 1971, at po­
lice suggestion and stole a 
quantity of antiwar petitions 
containing names and ad­
dresses of activists and sup­
porters.

In 'addition, he said he 
fashioned three false identi­
fication documents using an 
alias. One was a Social Secu­
rity. card which he said he 
fashioned before becoming a 
police informant. The other 
two were a draft card and a 
D.C. public library card 
made at the request of po­
lice, he said.

Merritt said he also en­
gaged in disruption and sab­
otage during street demon­
strations. The actions in­
cluded giving protesters 
false information about 
places and .times of demon­
strations and yanking the 
wires and tubes from two 
sound systems at the May- 
day encampment in West 
Potomac Park in early May, 
1971.

Such is the varied life of 
the political informant.

“Who knows?” says Bar­
rett with a brief laugh. “I 
might still be with the 

/(FBI), throwing up some 
kind of smokescreen right 
now to obscure some other 
cning.. You- neve?“Khow.“

"---------” I
I
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Informers
For Police 
Exposed ]

By Paul W. Valentine 
Washlneton Post Staff Writer .

Recent disclosures by an ac­
tivist community newspaper of 
police informant activities 
within Washington’s o n c e - 
flourishing antiwar movement 
have jeopardized political in­
telligence gathering opera­
tions, D.C. police officials said 
yesterday.

The disclosures, part of an 
ongoing campaign by the anti­
establishment Daily Rag news­
paper, are “definitely a threat 
to our operations,” acknowl­
edged Capt. George Sutter, 
acting director of the police 
department’s intelligence di­
vision.

Sutter confirmed the identi­
fication of two one-time infor­
mants named in front-page 
stories in the last two issues 
of the Daily Rag.

The first story named Ann 
Kolego, 20, also known as 
“Crazy Annie,” as a paid po­
lice informant who infiltrated 
the D.C. offices of the Peoples 
Coalition for Peace and Jus-| 
tite (PCPJ) and National 
Peace Action Coalition 
(NPAC) from early 1971 to 
June 25 of this year.

Sutter rated her as an-'‘ex­
cellent" intelligence source. '

The second story named Earl 
Robert Merritt Jr., known to 
police as “Butch," who worked 
as a paid informant for about! 
five months around the time; 
of the massive Mayday disrup­
tions here in the spring of 
1971.

Merritt was quoted in the 
Ragas saying he later did in- 

/formant work for the FBI. FBI 
press spokesman Jack Her­
rington would not ’ comment 
on that claim, but another 

/source close to the FBI con­
firmed that Merritt performed 

•“voluntary” work for the 
agenev and may have been 

l:9§fi390^8ltPagq TMTmXJi

Daily Rag staff workers say 
they—are-" considering addi­
tional disclosures of activities 
by other informants.

Merritt came directly to the 
paper with his acknowledge­
ment of spy work after being 
“turned off” by the job, ac­
cording to Rag staff worker- 
Chris Simpson. 1

The disclosure of Miss Ko­
lego as an informant was 
leaked to the Rag by a Wash­
ington-based - organization 
called the Committee for Ac- 
tion/Rcsearch on the Intelli­
gence Community (CAR1C).

CARIC spokesman Winslow 
Peck said his organization is 
“working on a couple of other 
people now,” and their names 
should be revealed 'suun?

A.sked ho.w CARIC is abl.e^td 
discover and. identify infor­
mants, Peck said, “We have 
contacts within the metropoli­
tan police department and 
other intelligence groups in 
the city.” ' '

Capt. Sutter of the police in­
telligence division said he 
does not think the information 
is being leaked from his own 
organization, but is not over­
looking the possibility.

Staffers at the Daily Rag, 
which despite its name is a 
weekly paper located at 2416 
18th St. NW in the Adams- 
Morgan section of the city, 
have questioned the legality 
and authorization for some of 
the informant work done by 
Merritt and Miss Kolego.

They note, for example, that 
Miss Kolego made frequent 
out-of-town trips to assorted 
antiwar conclaves and ques­
tioned her authority to go be- 
yontWAG. police jurisdiction 
at public expense. • ........../

i Vernon S. Gill, police de­
' partmeni general coifnsOi, said 
lie knows of no law prohibit­
ing such activity "in an inves­
tigation of legitimate matters 
concerning the metropolitan 
police department."

Sutter said she made the 
j out-b-fnowrr" trips both to 
j “maintain her cover” and to 
।obltaiiiiinfor^iation on possible 
| illcgal'action's planned by anti- 
I war gorups in Washington. . 
| Miss Kolego could not bei 
i reached for comment. Merritt 
'alsq .could pot be jccajcbc^- .



By Jared Stout and , 
Toni House , t

Star-News Staff Writers ,• \

District police intelli­
gence operatives were 
keeping watch on the city’s 
antiwar community and 
other activists as recently 

j as June, according to a 
| former paid informant. The 
. surveillance began at least 
: two years ago, the informer 
| said.
: Police said reports based 

on informers’ information 
’ were given regularly to the 
jfFBI. Some information may 
; have been passed to the 
i White House. One informer 
i said his tactics included 
S burglary and disruption of 

protests.
While police officials con­

firmed the identity and in­
formant assignment of two 
persons, one of whom was 
interviewed by^he-St^r- 
News, they declined to say 
jtow many informants may 
"be assigned to keeping 
Chief Jerry V. Wilson in­
formed on possible protest 
demonstrations.

AMONG NATIONAL 
groups attracting police 
attention were the Ameri­
can Academy of Political 
Science, the American Civil 
Liberties Union, and the 
Coalition on National Prior­
ities and Goals, whose mail 
solicitations for members 
were signed by Sen. William 
Proxmire, D-Wis.

Among local groups were 
the American Nazi party, 
the Black United Front, the 
D.C. Statehood party and 
the Institute for Policy 
Studies, a “think tank" on 
radical alternatives to U.S. 
foreign and domestic policy, 
which is located at 1520 New
Hampshire Ave. NW.

. Police ^confirmed thatCW
’ Robert E. M(irrittl~2&~mld

I Ann Kolego, 20,' have been 
I police ■nrtelligencC'nriform- 

ants, but they and the FBI 
:would not give details of the 
; undercover work.
I Merritt and Miss Koiego’s 
i former roommates' descri b­
i ed the activities in inter- 
t views. . .
( Merritt, who went from 
- work with the police to work 
» with the FBI, is a Challes- 

•. ton, W.Va., man who came 
I to Washington in January 
I 1963 and works as a drug 
‘ company cashier.
: Miss Kolego grew up in 
; the Washington area and, 
■■ until recently, was a wait- 
j ress in a Connecticut Ave- 
j nue restaurant.- She began 
’ police recruit training 
: Wednesday. •

. MERRITT SAID he de­
cided to disclose his under­
cover role after other ef 
forts to br.eak off the work 
failed, after his apartment 

was ransacked three times 
Teccntiy and after he was 
threatened twice by offi­
cials.

He said he did not know 
how groups or persons were 
selected for police atten­
tion. ’

Police intelligence offi­
cials described their job as 
one of keeping “the chief of 
police informed of potential 
problems and disorders 
which might occur in the 
District, . . and require 
police action." ■— 1 • —*'

The official said the de­
partment has no written 
guidelines for intelligence 
surveillance. One official 
said, "It’s really left up to 
the intelligence division."

Merritt said a sergeant in 
police intelligence suggest­
ed two break-ins after May 
Day 1971. One of them at the 
Community Bookstore, 2028 
P St NW, .was completed 
TheotHerTMerritt saidTwas
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aflhe Sth Street office of the 
Georgetown University le­
gal interns. It was called 
off.

MERRITT SAID he 
gained entry to the book­
store after closing hours by 
taping open the lock on a 
foyer door. He took antiwar 
petitions, pamphlets, meet­
ing notices, and other mate­
rials and give them to police 
contacts who told him they 
would be a source of names 
of persons and groups in the 
protest community, Merritt 
said.

According to Merritt, 
stealing the petitions was 
one means his contacts used 
to disrupt the petitioning 
part of the protests.

There was no police re­
port of the break-in at the 
bookstore, which features 
the writings of revolution 
ary theorists andpractition- 
efsTBufpersons al the shop 

recall .such an incident .in 
late May 1971 ancTsaidno 
one attached any signifi­
cance to it at the time.

Before and after the big 
May Day 1971 antiwar pro­
test, Merritt said, he visited 
the offices used by groups 
largely responsible for the 
protest: the People’s Coali­
tion on Peace and Justice, 
Vietnam Veterans Against 
the War, and the Lanier 
Place residence used by 
some demonstration plan­
ners.

AT POLICE request, 
Merritt said, he supplied 
telephone numbers and 

'■ floor plans for these offices.
“I thought at the time it was 
a check on whether 1 was 
going to the places they 
asked me to,” he said. Mer­
ritt did not know how police 
may have, used this infor 
mation.he'said -—  ■■

During \1^ demonstra- 
tidHT-Mufrif continued, 'he 
telephoned reports to police 
up to 16 times a day and 
joined with some law en­
forcement offices in at­
tempts to disrupt activities. 
These included spreading 
false information .about 
meeting times and places 
and sabotaging one of the 
protestors’ public address 
systems, he said.

After May Day 1971, Mer­
ritt said, police asked him 
to concentrate on informa­
tion gained by using an ali­
as to solicit mail from about 
200 groups. He said he re­
ceived materials which de­
scribed the programs of the 
groups and he turned it over 
to the police.

In October 1971, Merritt 
said, he was fired by police 
because “they said they did 
not have enough money to 
keep me on a full-time ba­
sis.” He said he had been 
receiving $50 a. week and 
expenses. His contacts in- 

| troduced him to two FBI 
agents in the Washington 
field office for whom he 
subsequently went to work, 

! he said.

; BY MERRITT’S, account, 
his FBI assignments be-

i tween October 1971 and 
May 1972 centered on the

•. Institute for Policy Studies. 
,I The FBI wanted him to get 
i a job there and supply them 
j. with the names and license 

tag numbers of persons at 
j institute meetings, he said, 
j Merritt said one of the 
' lists he supplied was from a 
i meeting on prison abolition 

at which a civil rights law-
; yer, Philip J. Hirschkop, 

spoke. He said he followed
.. Hirschkop after one of the 
J meetings at FBI request 
j and reported the lawyer’s ' 
; movements and contacts.

Merritt said he worked 
f for the FBI until May 1972, 

: a month after his mother 
• died. He said the death 
l “really put me down” and, 
• together with a belief that 
; the persons he was told to 
: watch did not seem as dan- 
I gerous as they had been 

portrayed by his contacts, 
I he'dccided to quit1.- .....

| his FBI contacts
reacted by “telling me they 
had too much time and

- 1 money invested ■. . . that I 
j had become familiar with

• • the political community and 
« I I Wasrrained the* Waythey 
• i
• i wantpd^One of them tol.d 
, : me to use the work as a way 
! : to get my mind off my moth- • ■ 
1 j ® er's death.

' IN MAY, however, he de-
• liberately filed a false re­

port as the last step in a 
pattern that had begun four 
months earlier of giving as 

' little information to his con­
tacts as he could, Merritt 
said. It worked, he said, and 

| the FBI agents let him. go 
with verbal threats against 
revealing his role.

Merritt said one of the 
agents warned him against 
speaking out by saying, 
"We’d sure hate to have 
someone find you in the 
Potomac wearing cement 
galoshas.” He was also told 
he had been doing "national 
security-type work,” the 
disclosure of which would 
be improper, he said.

I
 Merritt said that when the 

agents , stopped coming 
around, his former police 
contacts reappeared. He 
decided then to get legal 

< help in his effort to end as- 
' sociation with law enforce- 
| ment agencies and contact- 
: ed Washington lawyer Da- 

vid Isbell, he said.
Merritt said a second 

threat came from one of his 
police contacts when the 
contact learned Merritt was 
considering public disclo­
sure as a means of keeping 
police away from him. He 
said the officer told him, "If 
you try to badmouth us or 
anypther agencies, you’ll 
really meet your maker.”

ACCORDING to the rec­
ords' Merritt kept and dis­
played of his associations 
and assignments, the last 
threat came in July 1973. He 
did not know how his former 
contact had learned of his 
plan and has had no direct 
coptact with police since, he 
saicT ' " *'



MeuxUt., a self:acknowl- 
ddged homosexual, said lie 
had been recruited in April 
1971 the day after he had 
lost a job. He disputed the 
private assessments of 
some police sources who 
said he had been fired "be­
cause he didn't produce” 
and was angry at those who 
had let him go. "My con­
tacts told me my work was 
good,” Merritt said.

Ann Kolego was describ­
ed by police officials as a 
police buff ‘‘who was ex­
tremely good” in supplying 
information on the'activities 

of antiwar and other protest 
f’TUUpST'*' «---- :—

“She had to be to stay 
under cover for so long 
without being burned,” one 
official said.

According to her former 
roommate, Carol Cullum, 
Miss Kolego was known as 
‘‘Crazy Annie” to the activ­
ists and posed as a dropout 
from George Washington 
University with a huge infe­
riority complex and willing­
ness to do the menial jobs of 
the protest movement- 
stuffing envelopes, handing 
out pamphlets and running 
errands.

MISS CULLUM said she 
first remembered Miss Ko­
lego during the May Day 
1971 protest. Between then 
and now, she said, Miss 
Kolego was a regular part 
of the Washington Peace 
Action Coalition, the Peo­
ple’s Coalition for Peace 
and Justice, the Anti War 
Union, and the Miami Con­
vention Coalition.

According to Miss Cul­
lum, Miss Kolego was “al­
ways around” and rarely 
had to be invited to a meet­
ing. “She was always there 
Miss Cullum said.

•Miss Cullum said she con­
fronted Miss Kolego at a 
luncheon late last month 
after learning Miss Kole- 
go’s real job.

At the lunch, Miss Cullum 
said Miss Kolego apologized 
for having used their_frj£fld- 
shifrbtirSaid it was her joo.

.Miss Cullum attributed 
disclosure of Miss-ltotugb’s 
identity to the underground 
newspaper The Daily Rag 
and the Committee for 
Action/Research on the In­
telligence Community — a 
local group studying how' 
police and other govern­
ment agencies seek to keep 
watch on activist political 
groups.

MERRITT SAID his con­
tacts had often had high 
praise for “Informant Ann” 
and in conversations during 
and after May Day 1971 had 
said she was the police 
source closest to Rennie 
Davis, one of those acquitted 
in the Chicago Seven con­
spiracy trial.

Miss Cullum said Miss 
Kolego was last seen by her 
friends in the activist com­
munity in August 1973 at a 
birthday party for Norrine 
Banks, the third person wlio 
shared an apartriient with

Miss Cullum- and Miss.Kn.le- 
gbr Pblfce records show 
Miss Kolego was appointed 
a police officer June 25, 
1973.

Police officials denied 
any connection with a 
break-in at the Cullum 
apartment in August 1972 
when tapes of talks with 
North Vietnamese envoys in 
Paris were stolen and a tel­
evision set left behind. They 
also denied Merritt was 
asked by police to do any­
thing illegal.

Miss Kolego was not 
available for comment. 
There is little information 
available about precisely 
what she reported to police, 
but her roommate said Miss 
Kolego had had access to 
much of the planning of 
most of the protest activity 
in Washington during the 
past two years.

She was also known to 
have gone with other activ­
ists to ’the Republican con­
vention at Miami Beach last 
year-—*•

W THE TRANSFER of in­
formation from D.CYHTform- 
ants to the White House was 
unknown to Merritt or any 
of the-other informants with 
whom- the Star-News 
talked. But in the Water­
gate committee testimony 
of John W. Dean III, Dean 
recalled receiving intelli­
gence reports from District 
police. Merritt said he had 
collaborated with an agent 
from the Alexandria office 
of the Alcohol, Tax and 
Firearms Division of the 
Treasury who, like Merritt, 
was gathering intelligence 
on May Day 1971 activities.

According to Merritt, the 
■agent told him his unusual 
assignment to intelligence 
duties stemmed from a Jus­
tice Department order for 
all federal agencies and 
some local police to provide 
reports on protests or plans. 
The unit usually deals with 
violations of alcohol, tax 
and firearms law.

Department officials 
close to the intelligence 
units of May Day 1971 de­
clined comment: However, 
one.source said estimates of 
the numbers and plans of 
protesters had been passed 
regularly from Justice to 
the White House and Dean. 
The source said he did not 
know where the information 
came from and had as- ( 

| stlrnetriiivas from the FB17""

I 
i
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-AA x
Inforinan^l 
Says Police 
Urged Theft j

By Paul W. Valentine’ j 
and Lee A. Daniels ; I

Washington rost Staff Writers ’ 

A former D.C. police inform* 
ant -contended yesterday 
that he was instructed by his 
supervisor to steal mail, break. 
into buildings and disrupt le­
gitimate demonstrations of the 
antiwar movement here in the 
early 1970s.

His assertion contrasts with 
those in a D.C. police depart­
ment report released Wednes­
day that said informants 
“were instructed to engage in 
no illegal activities” and no 
■such activity is known to have 
occurred.
> The inforsnant^askliaheri 
RfcuiU„30, says he was a $50- 
to-$75-a-week “special cm- 
ployee” of the police depart­
ment’s intelligence division 
and infiltrated antiwar groups 
from 1970 through 1972.

In addition to monitoring 
and reporting routine activi­
ties of antiwar groups and in­
dividuals, Merritt told a re­
porter that on instructions 
from police, he:

•Broke into the Comma 
nity Bookshop, formerly at 

,2028 £ St., NW, 'nr1'Ma%
'IVTyTrnd- stole a quantity of 
ntiwar petitions containing 

names and addresses of activ­
ists and supporters.

• Stole a paper bag filled 
with mail from tlm Institute 
for' Policy' Studies, an inde­
pendent public policy research 
center that has att: acted a 
number of leftist scholars.

• Helped disrupt several 
street demonstrations by giv­
ing protesters false informa­
tion about times and locations 
of rallies. He also yanked out 
the wires and tubes from two 
sound systems at the Mayday 
encampment in West Potomac 
Park in early May, J97I. Be 
said.. I t

Police Chief Maurice Jjl'ut-. 
linaiie could not be reached

HtcddOT?- Zander^—srira ^has 
headed a rekent house clean­
ing of intelligence division 
records, refused to comment.

Merritt, who “went public” 
in mld-1973 and has spoken, 
previously about his under: 
cover activity, has been con­
firmed by police officials as ’a 
one-time informant.

Zanders said he did not 
want to comment on Merritt’s 
present claims because of 
pending litigation between tho 
police department-and the In­
stitute for Policy Studies.

The Institute last year sued 
| two FBI agents, former Attor­

ney General John N. Mitchell 
and “unknown" employees of

J the D.C. police department for 
I alleged illegal infiltration of 
i the institute. Merrill is a key 
‘ witiaso-fe^ the liti getter—y 

; Police officials <"tnciCTrng . 
('Zanders and Cullinane gener­
ally have declined to elaborate 
on an extensive report issued 
by the department Wednesday 
on activities of the intelli­
gence division from 1967 to. 
the present.

The report described in gen- ’ 
eral terms undercover opera­
tions by both police officers 
and paid civilian informants 
and included acknowledge­
ments . that police borrowed 
electronic equipment, cars and 
men from the Central Intelli­
gence Agency on some occa­
sions.

In one of his few detailed 
discussions of the report, Zan­
ders described how three po- 

slice officers who were cn- 
| rolled in local colleges con-.

lu A------

^ducted surveillance of campus 
pntKvar'activity.

He stressed that the officers 
already hart independently de­
cided to enroll a:, full-time stu­
dents and entered through the 
regtilm admiss: »ns process 
when lac police department 
asked them al..o to monitor an-. 
t»war ..roups. Zanders did not 
specify which universities 
they attcndi .1.

Zanders said the officers re­
ceived c’edlt for the courses 
takyj). wen hah' rcpTlkx»sala-

(
ks—ffi^ile attcndlm^sdii-'ol 
nd had their tuition paid 
rom the department’s confi­
dential fund.

Officials of area universities 
contacted said they did not 

•Know whether undercover po- 
Uice officers had operated Zin 

, their campuses.
! The officials said they were 
I not approached by' anyone 
(from the Washington police 
! department regarding such 
[placements.

William Ahistrom, an Ameri­
can University vice ’president, 
said, “We weren’t approached, 
and we wouldn't have ap­
proved such an operation if 
we.were. It would be antitheti­
cal to the spirit of the univer­
sity. and of a free societyt”

Ahistrom added, however, . 
that it would probably be im­
possible to determine whether 

।undercover agents did operate 
Ion the campus because of the 
•fluid nature of the university 
(community.
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The National Observer---------------  

The Los Angeles Times------------
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AUG 5 - 1975

■ Assoc. Dir........—• [
F Dep.-A.D.-Adm— |
I Dep.-A.D.-Inv.-----|
I Asst. Dir.: 8
| Admin._______ I

Comp. Syst. ------ |
Ext. Affairs __ J 
Files & Corn. — [
Gen. Inv............ |
Went---- ----------  f
Inspection ------- s '
Intel!....... . .......... t
Laboratory .........>

Mr^Earl Robert Merritt. 
1145 23rd Street., N.W, 
Washington, D. C. 20037

Dear Mr. Merritt:

• This is in further response to your pending ad­
ministrative appeal under the Freedom of Information 
Act frost the partial denial by • Director" Kelley of tae 
Federal Bureau of Investigation of your request for access 
to investigatory files concerning yourself.

* “After careful consideration of this appeal, I* 
have decided to modify the action of Director Kelley in 
this case. In addition to the records already made avail­

. . able to you, you will be furnished with copies of finger­
. print and other laboratory reports prepared in the course . 

of the investigation of you for allegedly forging andcash- 
Iing bad chocks. In addition, you will be furnished with 

twenty-seven additional pages containing information, or 
summaries of information., provided by you to the Federal 
Bureau of Investigation in your former capacity as a paid . 
Bureau informant. No excisions will be made in any of 
this material other than purely administrative mdrki&gsi2 ;975 • 

; and the names of F.3.I. persCs^)^, / 3 7_ , j

■ ; * 'C^’4 IFX-106' In all other respects, I have'-Wdrerminod to affir£}ifAy
the action of Director Kelley. Other records within thef&y 

' scope of your request are exempt from mandatory releascx^y 
under the Act pursuant to one or more of the following M 
statutory provisions: 5 U.S.C. 552(b)(2) [certain internal 
agency practices]; 5 U.S.C. 552(b)(5) (certain inter- and 
intra-agoncy communications]; 5 U.S.C. 552(b)(7)(A) [inter­
ference with enforcement proceedings]; 5 U.S.C. 552(b)(7)(C) 
[unwarranted invasion of personal privacy]; 5 U.S.C. 552(b) 
(7)(D) [identity of confidential sources and/or confidential 
information obtained only from such sources] and 5 U.S.C. 
552(b)(7)(E) [sensitive investigative techniques and pro- - 
ceduresj. As to th© materials withheld from you, there are 

4AUG 15^975Federal Bureau of Investigation
* ’. , /Tt f+' IJ j I

► ‘ \
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no reasonably segregable non-exempt portions. None of 
the records which are exempt from mandatory release 
under the Act are considered by me to be appropriate 
for discretionary release. .

If you are dissatisfied with my action on this 
appeal, judicial review thereof is available in the ' 
United States District Court for the judicial district 
in which you reside, or in which you have your principal 
place of business, or in the District of Columbia, which 
is where the records which you seek are located.

Sincerely, .

Harold R. Tyler, Jr. . 
Deputy Attorney General



V

August 2.9, 1975

1 - Mr. Cleveland
' Attention: Mr. J. T. 

Reilly, Jr.
s

Mr. Earl Robert Merritt 
1145 23rd Street, N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20037

Dear Mx. Merritt:

. Reference is made to the letter of Deputy Attorney 
General Harold R. Tyler, Jr., dated August 5# 1975, to your­
self with a copy to the Federal Bureau of Investigation, 
directing release of twenty-seven pages (27) of.information 
provided by your.v If to the Federal Bureau of Investigation# 
Enclosed are those documents and two other, documents reflecting , 
examinations by the Federal Bureau of Investigation Laboratory / 
and Identification Division pertaining to an investigation
of yourv^lf for allegedly forging certain checks which traveled; 
in interstate commerce. . /

All excisions from the pages of those documents were 
explained in Deputy Attorney General Tyler’s letter to you* 
The excisions consist of administrative markings, names of 
Agents and material which you did not furnish to the Federal 
Bureau of Investigation. • ■

C, M. Kelley

' Clarence M. Kelley
Director

Sincerely yours, .

1
Dep. AD Adtn. _ 
Dep. AD Inv. — The Deputy Attorney General 

Attention: Susan M. Hauser

/37
j

.a^asgsua esssssisaa «Kascs3W* l

I 
f

Admin.   
Comp. Syst.  
Ext. Affairs   

Files & Com.---  
Gen. Inv. - - - 
Ident. .,, , -■■
Inspection......... 
Intel!.............—
Loboratory .
Plan. & Evol. — 
Spec. Inv._____  
Training

Legal Coun. - 
Telephone Rm.__

NOTE: The Bufiles from which these documents were taken are 
137-28143 and 87-111347. Release of these documents directed //.
by Deputy Attorney General Tyler, by letter dated 8/5/75 
following an administrative appeal under the Freedom of 
Information Act.
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VFFl.'a <>v the director

FED EH AL BULKAU OF INVESTIGATION .

WASHINGTO?;: D.C. 20535

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE ’ 
OCTOBER 31, 1975

Recently a number of allegations made'by ’Earl'Robert

Merritt/ Jr., charged FBI Special Agents Terry O'Connor and 

William Tucker with certain improper and possibly•illegal acts.

These charges have been publicized extensively in the news.. 

media. ■

The FBI initially felt constrained from commenting ■

on these allegations because, of certain pending civil litigation 

in which Merritt is involved as-a witness. Now, however, 

because of the apparent authority being gained by these- 

allegations through repetition in the media, and because of 

their effect on the two Agents involved and.their families, 

the FBI feels that it should respond to these allegations. In 

doing so, care is being taken to insure that this response will in 

no way interfere 'with a fair adjudication of the civil proceedings.

Specifically, the allegations are that Merritt committed

break-ins and thefts on behalf of the FBI; that there were- 

indications that Merritt vias encouraged to develop an intimate 

relationship with-another individual to obtain information;. that 

he was asked to testify improperly concerning the 1972 Pentagon 

bombing; and that he was asked to report gossip concerning • 

members of Congress. These allegations are fabricated and.- 

completely false. . -
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Merritt, initially contacted the FBI in October, ■ 

1971, indicating that he wished to furnish information to ‘the 

FBI and receive compensation for this-information.• No pressure 

was u.sed to influence Merritt as his activities were clearly 

voluntary. Merritt was never instructed, ordered or in any­

way encouraged to break into or otherwise illegally enter any 

establishment or to commit any thefts or any other illegal - 

’acts. ’ He was never requested by the FBI to be a witness in any 

fashion concerning the- Pentagon bombing, or to report rumors 

concerning members of Congress. Additionally, at no time was 

’ .. Merritt encouraged or instructed to .develop an intimate or 

improper relationship with anyone. . . . ■ ■

As a matter of fact, Merritt was specifically advised 

on several occasions that he was not to engage in any.illegal 

activities in his efforts to obtain information and.,, further, 

that he was not. to construe his furnishing, information to the 

FBI as a shield from prosecution for illegal activities.

Merritt was at no time an employee' of the FBI. He 

•was not regularity salaried but was paid oh a C.O.D. basis for .- 

information furnished. - His relationship with the FBI was 

.terminated in early June, 1972, when it was determined, that, 

certain information furnished by him was unreliable. ? ■

The FBI categorically denies that the activities of 

the Agents in contact with Merritt were at any'time improper

■NW-&S2fi2rDbcld:32J^ • '• • ' \



or outside the responsibilities and legitimate investigative

interests of the Bureau.
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INFORMATION CONCERNING 
EARL ROBERT MERRITT, JR., 

EXTRACTED FROM FILE RELATING TO 
BUREAU INVESTIGATION OF POSSIBLE 

INTERSTATE TRANSPORTATION OF STOLEN 
PROPERTY VIOLATION RELATING TO MERRITT
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1-336 -(Rev. 12-10-63) FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVEPBATION
Washington, D. C. 20537

REPORT
of the

IDENTIFICATION DIVISION
LATENT FINGERPRINT SECTION&-105

YOUR FILE o [
FBI FILE NO. 87-1113^7
LATENT CASE NO. A-22987

to: SAC, Pittsburgh

ITSP

REFERENCE: Letter 6/W70
EXAMINATION REQUESTED BY:
SPECIMENS: Three chocks, QI through Q3

The listed Q spocinons are described in a 
separate Laboratory report.

Ko latent prints of value developed on 
enclosed spec wens.

MAiLEQ 5 
JUL? - 1970

(3)

COMM-FBI

(5)

Tolson_______  
DeLoach -___ .
Walters..............  
Mohr...................  
Bishop ..............  
Casper............... 
Callahan........... 
Conrad...........
Felt...................  
Gale...................  
Rosen..... ____  
Sullivan........... 
Tavel .. 
Soyars 
Tele. Room_ i 
Holmes.^ULj 
Gandy

'inr t

^PRT IS FURNISHED FOR OFFICIAL USE ONLY

TELETYPE UNIT! I
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Recorded FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION
6/18/70 
sk

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE.

Laboratory Work Sheet
Recorded: 6-30-70, 9:40 AM ----------------

Re. EARL ROBERT MERRITT, ska James-Rr Mon

ITSP .
001 Pittsburgh

File # 7 “ z z 7 7
Lab. # D*700612058 BF

Examination requested by:

-Result of Examination:

Examination requested:

. LLC# A-22967

’ /u
Pittsburgh (87-15352) 6/10/70

Document * Fingerprint Date received: 6/11/70

/
Examination by: Davis

’ Gressens
Noted By:

Jxs (^/Tamed Subj ect:

' EARL ROBERT MERRITT, (AKA JAMES R. MONROE)

hJo C-^A-v^C^J

BANK

QI — $ 70.00 5/6/70 Kanawha
Valley 
Bank

James R. 
Monroe

National Savings 
and Trust 
Company, 
Washington, D. C.

Q2 032 $120.00 5/7/70 »» »

Q3 ... $ 35.00 5/4/70 ti it tt

Return evidence

Examination Completed

ice 71^0

~NW"W26^ Docld:^Wp6W PageUp- --



To: Director, FBF, (Bufile- ’
^J^^ttention: FBI Laboratory

Date 6^0/70

FromX^ PITTSBUR^J^8^L5352) (P)
E 
O

u 
V)
0) 
Q

w

u 
o

■ JO. 
a
to

DOB or approx, age FBI # or other identifying.number

Re: EARL ROBERT~MERRITT, aka
James R^Monroe,/\ 
Robert Octay.iQ ^Chevalier 
ITSP .
(00: PITTSBURGH)

Sex Race Height Weight

Build Hair Eyes u
t

Glasses Speech Dress ’

Include in details other descriptive information, e.g., scars 
&/or marks, tattoos, deformities, abnormalities and other 
general peculiarities as well as information on the modus 
operandi used in cashing check items.

. 70061205^.^
The following described checks are attached hereto for search in the National Fraudulent Check File.

Spec­
imen Check # Amount Date Payable To Signed Bank

Date & City 
Where Cashed

c

032

$

L

?

$70.00 5/6/70 Kanawha
Valley Bank

JAMES R.
MONROE 
1926 U St

National
Savings and
Trust Co

$120.00 5/7./70 ;

ru
5/4/70

«

H

'a 
.1- -€ i I

5/6/70 X 
Charleston 
W. Va. K t

by Mr. W.
Charleston

The above
D. YEAGER

W. Va.,

checks

NW 1, Washington 
Do C., phone 
202-338-3100

Washington,
D C

ti

M W

were furnished on
Vice President, Kanawha

5/7/70, 
Charleston-, ' 
W. Va. : ,

5/4/70,.- 
Charleston,> 
W. Va. wfe--

5/19/70, 
Valley Bank

who advised that all three checks were
returned by the National Savings and Trust Company 
Washington, D. C., marked ’’Account Closed./’

YEAGER*s attempts to locate MONROE led 
information that his true name is MERRITT as set 
and that he has also used the name CHEVALIER.

him 
out

to the 
above,

^Specimens: | Ki Return to Contributing Office | [Bureau Retain

2"/. Bureau (Registered Mail)
^-Washington Field 
?4Pittsburgh 
KCW/djb

t Examination



PG 87-15352 .

YEAGER advised that phone number 202-338-3100 
is that of a medical credit association for whom subject 
used to work, The association has not seen him for 
approximately two months and has received numerous 
complaints. YEAGER has also received information that 
the subject, a white male, age about 27, 6‘ tall, thin 
build, may have homosexual tendencies.

LEAD

WFO '

. ' AT WASHINGTON, D. C. .

Will contact National Savings and Trust Company 
to determine the status of the account of JAMES R. MONROE 
and attempt to identify MONROE. ,

Will contact the medical credit association, 
phone 202-338-3100, for information relating to subject.



t r

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
WASHINGTON, D. C. 20535

Fitt^wgh (87-15352)

KOoSRT MERRITT, aka 
- X.;Monroe, Robert.

* . *. -
Pittsburgh ' . -

Pittsburgh
guested by:

Letter 6/10/70

. Document -
‘guested:

Date; J13116 24,1970

Fingerprint

QI through Q3 will be returned to Pittsburgh with 
latent fingerprint examination results.

If further comparisons are desired with regard
* ROBERT MERRITT, it is suggested that numerous dictated 

^dictated handwriting specimens of this individual be
*“* if obtainable. Dictated- samples should be obtained

^''2 forms. • 5 V—.V.. ■.

"’.J REC-35
(2) (2 Lab .report)

^^"(ton Field Office Enclosure (Lab report)

’ !,



714b REPORT 
of the

I LABORATORY ___ *___

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION
' WASHINGTON, D. C. 

to: FBI, Pittsburgh (87-15352)

EARL ROBERT MERRITT, aka James R 
Monroe, Robert Octavio Chevalier
ITSP / .

20535
Dato:

• FBI File No.
Lab. No.

June 24,1970 . 
87-111347^1 
D-700612058 BF

. . Specimensreceived 6/11/70 . 
------ CHECK- amount -------SPECIMEN DATE PAYABLE TO SIGNED BANK

Qi $ $ 70.00 5/6/70 Kanawha
Valley 
Bank

James R 
Monroe

National Savings 
and Trust Company 
Washington, D. C.

Q2 032 $120,00 5/7/70 It M M

Q3
1

$ 35.00 5/4/70 tt u H

cn — 
3QCh 
srs —

. Result of examination: •
. • .'I .. -

, £1 through Q3 were searched in the National Fraudulent
Check File, with negative results. ' » ■

• ■ IS - ■ ■ ‘ ■■ / ' . v. * »
• '“A definite conclusion was not reached whether the

signatures on QI through Q3 were written by EARL ROBERT MERRITT 
FBI#3614058, as the result of a comparison with fingerprint 
card signatures, due to the lack of comparable text and because 
of variations which were not explained.
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Recorded 
6/18/70 

sk

• 1 •
federal bureau of investigation

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Laboratory Work Sheet

R EARL ROBERT JSRRITT, aka James R. Monroe, File # 
Robert Octavio Chevalier; ' Lab. *

ITS?
00: Pittsburgh ... "

NO LAB FILE

D-700612058 BF

Examination requested by: Pittsburgh (87-1535'J 6/10/70

Examination requested: Document - Fingerprilt Date received: 6/11/70

Result of Examination: • Examination by: Davis Al

* ' • * ’ .

- J'

■ V .. -A- - ••• ' ' .\ ■ ■

1 . ' ; ’ '-.A ' 1 ' ■ ■ '

■ ■’ - .Specimens submitted for examination

SPECIMEN CHECK # AMOUNT DATE PAYABLE TO SIGNED . BANK

QI --- $ 70.00 5/6/70 Kanavha James R. National Savings
Valley Monroe and Trutt

‘ Bank .. Company,

Q2 032 $120.00

. T' '■ Washington, D. C.

5/7/70 ” ”

Q3 — $ 35.00 5/4/70 “ " ' ”

Return evidence
. ... .

7; yruM^tZ■ Sl

: • -

. y/ y o
i" ’ ■

NW-88W^B<x:M:32M^»t~Rag^M^
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Examiner’s Name

Subsection Searched

D # .-7° 6

' Initial & Date

Checks-------------------------------------------------------------- -—:------

Money Orders ’ .

Others

Stolen Money Orders & Travelers Checks Section: . . ■ ...

Travelers Checks . . . . ’ .

. . '.Type ' . ’ " • ’ ’ # From . . To #

Money Orders

Remarks:

NW 68262 Oocld:32989698 Page 121



0-42 (Rev* 11-13-69) ’
OPTIONAL K>tM HQ. 10 ' 
mat i nr iditjoh 
GM GtH. »to. MO. 27

'MlO-tOt

UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT

Memorandum

FROM : □ J. H. Gale .

TO : Mr. Walter;

subject: Earl Robert Merritt, aka 
James R. Monroe

Robert Octavio Chevalier

DATE: Q-15-70

LATENT EXAMINATION INVOLVED

Communication: '
Agency Submitting:

BOTH CIVIL & CRIMINAL FILES

□ SEND OVER ALL CARDS

Please search the name of the individual through the records of the Identification Division and return this memorandum with a 
notation of your findings to - .
□ Employees Security and Special Inquiry Section, Rnam_ _ , Justice Building. (In SGE and UM cases, if a record of arrest is

found, please enclose, in addition to file copy, 1 copy of the Identification Record for each state in which arrests occurred.)
ffTffLaboratory, Att.: Vj S______________________ „,Ext. , re D * - __ _____________________________

The following identifying data are listed for your assistance (Att.: Special Investigative Division only - in addition to the name or 
names and the Government agency appearing in the title):

Sex

r 1 Male I Female

Race Height Name and aliases (For use of Lab 
(1)
Sari Robert Merr

oratory) )
(2) O7 

itt .
(3) ■

Date and place of birth Age

' ( Send Over)
-

Military Service * CSC »

Last known address
•

Previous Government employment '.

Date SGE security form received
* . - -

Other pertinent identifying data (Att.: Lab., * ■ -x_

including PD»s and location) * '
-.

- ,

• ’■

*

■ ■ ‘

Identification Division Reply .
F I Based upon information furnished, no record located. .
r i A noncriminal fingerprint record which IS or MAY BE Identical was located. This record was searched through the criminal files 

and no criminal record found. '
IS or MAY BE identical with the record of the employee, applicant, or subject.





FD-263.(Rev, 12-'19-67)

" FEDERAL ftlREAU OF INVE^IGATION .

REPORTING OFFICE

PITTSBURGH
OFFICE OF ORIGIN

PITTSBURGH
DATE

9/28/70
INVESTIGATIVE PERIOD

5/19 - 9/16/70

TITLE OF CASE 
CHANGED A
EARL ROBERT! MERRITT, JR., aka
Earl Robert Merritt,
James R. Monroe,
Robert Cochran,

} Robert Octavio Chevalier,
James Chandler,
Robert Chandler,

REPORT MADE BY

A. LOUIS DI PIETRO
TYPED BY

nju
CHARACTER OF CASE

ITSP
>

^\Butcn
Title marked CHANGED to reflect full name of subject 

as EARL ROBERT MERRITT, JR. Previously carried as "EARL ROBERT 
MERRITT, aka."

vicinity 1722 19th Street

REFERENCES; Pittsburgh FD-196 to the Bureau dated 6/10/70.
Bureau letter to Pittsburgh dated 6/24/70.
Bureau letter to Pittsburgh dated 7/7/70.

•
Washington Field letter to Pittsburgh dated 7/31/70

-P- 7 - /

LEADS;
I ♦ ’"**• ' J— ” *

SEt BXt • -
‘ WASHINGTON FIELD Ar. ~ 1

AT WASHINGTON, D.C.
(1) Conduct investigation

ACCOMPLISHMENTS CLAIMED O NONE ACQUIT- 
TALS

CASE HAS BEEN:

PENDING OVER ONE YEAR I |y ES | |nO 
PENDING PROSECUTION

OVER SIX MONTHS | | Y ES | |nO

con via AUTO. FUG. FINES SAVINGS RECOVERIES

APPROVED IN CHARGE DO NOT WRITE IN SPACES BELOW
CORZ^Tbi ADE:

^1^4 Bureau (87-111347)

1 - USA, Charleston, W. Va.

2 - Washington Field (87-18178)

2 - Pittsburgh (87-15352) -

X- 85

6 OCT 2 1970 r-u

, * . -o wi \\
Dissemination Record of Attached Report

COVER PAGE

Agency ' ' r'r- ,
Request Reed.

1
Date Fwd. IV
How Fwd.

t A.
By I 1— S - 'Su

^NWW®-BocM:3»8»8M3ag»JaL------ *2—1

* GPO : 1968 O - 299-885
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N.W., Apt. 205, Washington, D.C., phone 483-8823, to locate, 
interview, and obtain handwriting samples from the 
subject.

(2) Conduct credit and arrest checks on subject 
under true name and known aliases in effort to obtain back­
ground data, locate and interview, and obtain handwriting 
samples from subject. . .

(3) Will check employee records at D.C. General 
Hospital (given by subject’s mother) and other major hospitals, 
if feasible, for possible location of subject.

(4) If above leads prove to be unsuccessful, will 
send original signature cards to laboratory for comparison 
with checks previously submitted by the Pittsburgh Division.

PITTSBURGH

AT CHARLESTON, W. VA. (KANAWHA COUNTY)

(1) Same lead as number two, above.

(2) Will also maintain contact with subject’s relatives 
in effort to obtain information concerning his present whereabouts 
and also attempt to obtain recent photo of subject to present to 
witnesses.

ADMINISTRATIVE: : ’

Investigative period is lengthy due to unsuccessful 
attempts to locate subject for interview.

Referenced Washington Field letter dated 7/31/70, 
indicates that 1926 M Street,NW, Washington, D.C., was determined 
to be a downtown urban redevelopment area. However, investiga­
tion should have been made at 1926 U Street, NW, Washington, 
D.C., as interview with W. D. YEAGER indicates that this is the 
address used by the subject when cashing the checks.

-B*-
COVER PAGE



"FD-204 (Rev. 3-3-59)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

Copy to: 1 - USA, Charleston, W. Va.

Report of: A. LOUIS DI PIETRO °«ice: Pittsburgh, Pa
Date: 9/28/70

Field Office File #: 87-15352 Bureau File #: 87-111347

Title: EARL ROBERT MERRITT, JR.

Character: INTERSTATE TRANSPORTATION OF STOLEN PROPERTY

Synopsis: Subject, using alias JAMES R. MONROE, cashed three
checks totalling $225 at Charleston, W. Vao Checks were drawn 
on a Washington, D.C., bank. Subject had opened account at 
this D.C, bank one month earlier. Efforts to locate subject 
at Charleston, W. Va., subject’s home, and Washington, D.C., 
where subject has been working recently, have met with negative 
results. ✓

-p-

This document contains neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the property of the FBI and is loaned to your agency; it and its contents
are not to be distributed outside your agency. *
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DETAILS;

This case was instituted upon, receipt of information 
from W. D. YEAGER, Vice President of Kanawha Valley Bank, 
Charleston, W. Va., regarding three checks which were returned 
to his bank marked, ’’Account Closed.”

-2-

• /
NW 68262 Docld:329896p /Page 127



ERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

1
Date. 6/4/70

Mr. W. D. YEAGER, Vice President, Kanawha Valley 
Charleston, W. Va., furnished the following described- 
, all drawn on the National Savings and Trust Company,

Bank, 
checks 
Washington, D. C.

Check Number:
Amount:
Date:
Payable To:
Signed:

Bank:

Date and City 
Where Cashed:

None 
$70.00 
May 6, 1970 
Kanawha Valley Bank 
JAMES R. MONROE, 
1926 U Street Northwest 1, 
Washington, D, C., phone 
202-338-3100
National Savings and Trust 
Company, Washington, D. Ca.

May 6, 1970 
Charleston, W. Va.

Check Number:
Amount:
Date:
Payable To:
Signed:

Bank:

Date and City 
Where Cashed:

Check Number:
Amount:
Date:
Payable To:
Signed:

------------------ Bank:------------------------

5/19/70 Charleston* W

032 
$120.00 
May 4, 1970 
Kanawha Valley Bank 
JAMES R. MONROE
1926 U Street Northwest 1, 
Washington, D, C., ohone 
202-338-3100
National Savings and Trust 
Company, Washington, D. C.

May 1970, 
Charleston, W. Va.

None 
$35.00 
May 4, 1970 
Kanawha Valley Bank 
JAMES R. MONROE 
1926 U Street Northwest 1, 
Washington, D. C., phone 
202-338-3100

-National- Savings and -Trust---------

Va. Pittsburgh 87-15352

On____________________at Fil. #____ _________________________________*

SA EDWARD C. WATKINS /djb 2 n 5/19/70
by___________________________________ [___________________ t_____ J Data dictated_________________________  . —
This document contain, neither recommendations nor conclusions of the FBI. It i« th. property of th. FBI end Is loaned to your agency:

It and its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency*



PG87-15352
2 ' : '

Company, Washington, D. C.
Date and City ,
Where Cashed: May 4, 1970,

. - Charleston, W. Va.

YEAGER advised that all of these checks were 
returned by the National Savings and Trust Company of 
Washington, D. C., marked “Account Closed.”

YEAGER recalled that on May 4, 1970, he received 
a telephone call from a woman representing herself to be 
a customer of the bank named COCHRAN. She said that her 
nephew was in town and wanted to cash a check. YEAGER told 
her that this would be okay, however, he requested that she 
endorse the check. ~

A short time later,a white male, 5*9" - 5*10” tall, 
170 pounds, age about 28, came to the bank with the first of 
the above described checks. It had not been endorsed by 
COCHRAN; however, the man did have a savings statement for 
COCHRAN and YEAGER decided that this would be satisfactory. 
COCHRAN approved the check for payment and did the same for 
'another check on May 6, 1970. YEAGER does not know if he 
would recognize this individual again or noti. After these 
checks and one other were returned, YEAGER called the 
phone number listed on one of the checks by MONROE 202-338­
3100. He found that this was listed to a medical credit 
association for whom MONROE worked at one time. This 
firm has received numerous complaints about MONROE. This 
firm’s employment record shows that he gave a previous 
address as C. P. FRISBY, 5729 Midland Drive, Charleston,” 
W. Va., phone 925-5313.

YEAGER also talked to a Mr. OSCAR L. COCHRAN, 
5729^ Midland Drive, who is a brother tp WILLIAM JOSEPH 
COCHRAN. OSCAR L. COCHRAN knew of no one by the name of 
JAMES R. MONROE, but he does have a nephew of EARL ROBERT 
MERRITT who has worked in Washington, D. C., and who has been 
in trouble before. •

YEAGER believes that WILLIAM J. COCHRAN, their 
customer, is now a teacher in Mississippi. He received a
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phone call from WILLIAM COCHRAN or perhaps his wife and 
she advised that MERRITT also uses the name ROBERT 
OCTAVIO CHEVALIER. This individual also furnis hed a phone 
number of 483-8823 and an address 1722 19th Street Northwest, 
Apartment 205, Washington, D. C., 20009, for MERRITT.

I 5



FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

5/25/70
Dot* , —

PATRICIA DIDAS, teller, Kanawha Valley Bank, 
advised that she cashed checks for 'JlAMES R. MONROE 
on May 4, 6 and 7, 1970.

The checks which were handled on May 4 and May 6, 
were approved by Vice President W. D. YEAGER. DIDAS did 
not get YEAGER’s approval for the check cashed May 7, 1970. 
DIDAS recalled that on May 7, MONROE deliberately waited 
until she was available to cash his check when he could 
have gotten faster service by going to one of the other 
tellers.

She described MONROE as a white male, age 27, 
6* tall, weighing 160 pounds and a thin build. He had 
medium brown hair and a thin face. She believes he was 
wearing a dark checkered coat. He had a red complexion.

For identification he showed a savings statement 
from the Kanawha Valley Bank which he said belonged to his 
grandmother. He was always alone and DIDAS believes that 
she would recognize him if she saw him again.

5/19/70 Charleston, W. Va. Pittsburgh 87-15352

On____________________ot_______________________ ——____ _ F<U #— ----- -— -----------------------------------—

SA EDWARD C. WATKINS /djb / Q 5/21/70
by • Dateidictated
Thi. document contain, neither recommendations nor conclusion, of th. FBI. It I. th. property of th. FBI and I. loaned to your agency: 

it and it. content, ar. not to b. distributed outside your agency. ,
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On June 24, 1970, the FBI Laboratory advised as 
follows: • •

Ql Check in amount of $70, dated May 6, 1970,
payable to Kanawha Valley Bank, signed JAMES R. 
MONROE, bank National Savings and Trust Company, 
Washington, D.C.

Q2 Check number 032, in the amount of $120, dated
May 7, 1970, payable to Kanawha Valley Bank, signed 
JAMES R. MONROE, bank National Savings and Trust 
Company, Washington, D.C.

Q3 Check in amount of $35, dated May 4, 1970, payable
to Kanawha Valley Bank, signed JAMES R. MONROE, 
bank National Savings and Trust Company, Washington, 
D.C.

RESULT OF EXAMINATION:

Ql through Q3 were searched in the National Fraudulent 
Check File with negative results.
•

A definite conclusion was not reached whether the 
signatures on Ql through Q3 were written by EARL ROBERT 
MERRITT, FBI Number 361 405 8, as the result of a comparison 
with fingerprint card signatures due to the lack of comparable 
text and because of variations which were not explained.

On July 7, 1970, the FBI Identification Division, 
Latent Fingerprint Section, advised as follows;

Three specimens, Ql through Q3 (three checks)

No latent prints of value developed on Ql through Q3.
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FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

1 7/1/70
DOtW - - n- -

OSCAR L. COCHRAN, 5729> A, Midland Drive, Charles­
ton, West Virginia, was interviewed in regards to three 
checks payable to JAMES R. MONROE, which were negotiated at 
the Kawha Valley Bank in May, 1970.

Mr. COCHRAN furnished the following information:

Mr. COCHRAN stated that he had received a telephone 
call from a Mr. YEAGER, Kanawha Valley Bank, in .regards to 
the negotiation of three checks. He stated that he told 
YEAGER that his nephew, EARL ROBERT MERRITT, had resided in 
Washington, D. C., and had been in trouble previously.

Mr. COCHRAN advised that his brother, WILLIAM 
JOSEPH COCHRAN, presently resides in Huntersville, North 
Carolina. He stated that his brother had had a savings 
account at the Kanawha Valley Bank at one time.

Mr. COCHRAN advised that his nephew, EARL ROBERT 
MERRITT, was the son of REBECCA (MERRITT) FRISBY, nee REBECCA 
COCHRAN, and EARL ROBERT MERRITT, SR. He stated REBECCA 
(MERRITT) FRISBY resided at 5729j B with her present husband, 

• CARL FRISBY. He advised that he believed EARL ROBERT MERRITT, 
SR., currently resided in Hopewell, Virginia. COCHRAN in­
dicated his nephew had resided in Washington, D. C., recently. 
He stated, however, that EARL ROBERT MERRITT, JR., was present 
in the Charleston, W. Va., area during the months of April, 
May, and June, 1970. He advised that EARL ROBERT MERRITT, 
JR., had been treated at the Charleston Hospital in May, 
1970. He indicated that to his knowledge EARL '/ROBERT MERRITT, 
JR., did not have an arrest record, but had been involed in 
several minor scrapes within the COCHRAN family, that is, 
taking things from his parents home and pawning them. COCHRAN 
Stated that he believed EARL ROBERT MERRITT, JR., was a com­
pulsive liar. He advised EARL ROBERT MERRITT, JR., had in­
dicated to him that he had worked in a hospital in Washington, 
D. C.

6/23/70 Charleston, West Virginia e, Pittsburgh 87-15352
On____________________ at_________________ _________________ __________File #____ _ _________________________

SA EDWARD R. Il^EARY/cpo ‘ 6/24/70
t>y *S' Dote dictated . -

This document contains n.lthor r.comm.ndations nor conclusions of the FBI. It is the prop.rty of the FBI and is loaned to your agency: 

H and Its contents are not to be distributed outside your agency* ’ •

NW682B2-DtiCld:32989&98^PBlge-133—



TG 87-15353 
£

Mr. COCHRAN furnished the following description
Of EARL ROBERT MERRITT, JR.: •

Name 
‘ Alias

Race 
Sex 
Age 
Height 
Build 
Hair 
Complexion 
Place of Birth 
Marital Status 
Military Service

EARL ROBERT MERRITT, JR.
BUTCH
White
Male
25 - 28 years 
6’
Thin
Blond, curly
Light
Charleston, West Virginia, area 
Single
None ”

Mr. COCHRAN advised that he did not know the present 
Whereabouts of EARL ROBERT MERRITT, JR.

.NW 68262 Docld:3298g6?8 Page.134
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: ; FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION

1 — 7/1/70

PEGGY L. COCHRAN, nee HOPKINS, 5729J A, Midland 
Drive, Charleston, West Virginia, -was interviewed in regards 
to three checks made payable to JAMES R. MONROE, which had 
been negotiated at the Kanawha Valley Bank in May, 1970.

Mrs. COCHRAN furnished the following information:

She indicated that her nephew, EARL ROBERT MERRITT, 
JR., son of REBECCA (MERRITT) FRISBY, nee COCHRAN, who resides 
at 5729J B, Midland Drive, had used several different aliases. 
She indicated that EARL ROBERT MERRITT,'JR., had been in the 
Charleston area as of about June 15, 1970. She advised that 
she had returned a telephone call, which she had received from 
EARL ROBERT MERRITT, JR., to Charleston, W. Va., telephone 
number 342-1597, early in the month of June, 1970.

Mrs. COCHRAN advised that sometime during 1969, 
she had received a telephone call from a Mrs. MORRISON, whom 

. she believed had been employed by the Credit Department of 
the telephone company in Washington, D. C. She stated that 
Mrs. MORRISON had indicated to her that EARL ROBERT MERRITT, 
JR., was wanted by the Washington, D. C., Telephone Company 
for incurring several bad debts for long distance telephone 

. calls. She stated that Mrs. MORRISON had requested that she 
contact her at Washington, D. C., telephone number 638-6730 
if she could furnish any information regarding EARL ROBERT 
MJuXVtvXXX j vh«

Mrs. COCHRAN advised that she did not know the 
’ present whereabouts of EARL ROBERT MERRITT, JR.. She furnished 

the following description of EARL ROBERT MERRITT, JR.:

Name 
Aliases

EARL ROBERT MERRITT, JR.
JAMES R. MONROE
ROBERT COCHRAN
ROBERT OCTAVIO CHEVALIER 
JAMES or ROBERT CHANDLER 
BUTCH

Race 
Sex

White
Male

On 6/23/70 nt Charleston, West Virginia fh.> Pittsburgh 87-15352

SA EDWARD R. LEARY/cpo 1° 6/24/70
by _______________________________________________ Dot. d i ctoted

Thl. document contain, neither recommendation, nor conclusion, of th. FBI. It I. th. prop.rty of th. FBI end i. loan.d to your a9ency: 

It and its contents ars not to be distributed outsida your agency* . s

NW-6062-Qocl
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Height 
Weight 
Build 
Hair

6* .
175 pounds
Medium to thin
Medium length, blond, and curly 
(has worn or owns a brown wig)

i

I
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On July 31, 1970, the Washington Field Office advised 
as follows: .

Investigation to date in this case indicates that 
subject opened a bank account at the National Savings and 
Trust Company on 15th and H Streets, N.W., Washington, D.C., 
on June 27, 1966, and another account at the branch bank of 
National Savings and Trust Company located on 18th and K Streets 
N.W., under the name of JAMES ROBERT MONROE on April 15, 1970.

Mr. T. EDWARD MORRIS, Assistant Vice President at 
the main branch of National Savings and Trust Company, 15th and 
H Streets, N.W., and FLORINDA SARIEGO, Assistant Cashier,who 
opened the account for the subject under the name of MONROE at 
the K Street Branch of National Savings and Trust Company, 
could recall no identification or anything of pertinence 
pertaining to the subject.

VICTOR BAER, Office Manager and Secretary of the 
Medical Credit Association, Washington, D.C., where the subject 
was employed under the name of MONROE, stated that MONROE had 
been fired due to the fact of his poor working habits and his 
constant repeated absence from work. BAER further added he 
recalled MONROE associated with a deaf mute but could not 
recall this individual’s name. BAER advised that he recalled 
MONROE’s description as;

Height: 5*10” •
' Weight: 170-180

Hair: Blond curly, of medium length
Facial Charac­

teristics; Sloping, ski-type nose

On June 29, 1970, Mrs. JANET LAMARRE, Assistant 
Personnel Manager at Group Hospitalization, Inc. (GHI), 
Washington, D.C., stated that subject had worked there under 
the name of EARL ROBERT MERRITT from June 27, 1966, to August 4, 
1966, and had been released due to the fact that he was not 
dependable. LAMARRE further stated her records indicated that 
MERRITT listed his father only as residing in Richmond, Va., 
and gave the address of his mother, REBECCA MERRITT, as 5729J 
Midland Drive, Charleston, W. Va.

The home address given by the subject using the 
name MERRITT of 1801 Newton Street, N.W., is now occupied by 
one KENNETH FLIGSPEN, who advised that he knew nothing 
concerning the subject. Also, the address of 1926 M Street, 
N.W., given as home address under the name of JAMES ROBERT 
MONROE, is in a downtown urban area that is being redeveloped.

-19­NW 68262 Docld:32989698 Page 137 . . . *. . _ . .



PG 87-15352
-♦ . :

Records of the Check and Fraud Squad, Metropolitan 
Police Department, negative concerning the subject under name 
of MERRITT or any aliases.

An attempt was made to locate and interview subject 
on July 8, 1970, at 5729^ Midland Drive, Charleston, through 
Mr. OSCAR L. COCHRAN.

Mr. COCHRAN advised the subject’s current whereabouts 
were unknown to him; however, he would contact the Charleston 
Resident Agency should he learn anything concerning subject’s 
whereabouts.

On September 16, 1970, OSCAR L. COCHRAN, 5729g-A 
Midland Drive, Charleston, W. Va., was recontacted but advised 
that he still had no additional information concerning the 
subject’s present whereabouts.

■ On September 16, 1970, Mr. and Mrs. WILLIAM COCHRAN,
5729 Midland Drive, Charleston, W. Va., advised that they 
are the grandparents of the subject; however, they had no 
information concerning his present whereabouts. Mr. WILLIAM 
COCHRAN stated that he has not seen his grandson for approxi- 

• mately two or three months and that the last he heard his 
grandson EARL was living in Washington, D.C.; however, he had no 
idea as to the exact address.

On September 16, 1970, DAVID MERRITT advised that he 
is home on furlough from the U. S. Army at Fort Leonard Wood, 
Mo. DAVID MERRITT advised that he does not get along well 
with his brother EARL and that if he had any information 
concerning his brother’s present whereabouts, he would advise 
the FBI. DAVID further advised that his brother EARL has 
always been the favorite in the family and was raised by his 
grandparents. He stated that in their eyes, EARL could do no 

. wrong. DAVID stated that his best guess as to where his 
brother EARL would be at the present time would be in 
Washington, D.C.; however, he does not know where in 
Washington. DAVID MERRITT furnished the following information 
regarding his brother EARL: .

Name: EARL ROBERT MERRITT
Date of Birth: June 20 or 21, 1944
Height: 6*1” .

. Weight: 175-185
Hair; Blond; however, is often dyed
Eyes: Unknown
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Records of the Check and Fraud Squad, Metropolitan 
Police Department, negative concerning the subject under name 
of MERRITT or any aliases. . ’

An attempt was made to locate and interview subject 
on July 8, 1970, at 5729£ Midland Drive, Charleston, through 
Mr. OSCAR L. COCHRAN.

Mr. COCHRAN advised the subject’s current whereabouts 
were unknown to him; however, he would contact the Charleston 
Resident Agency should he learn anything concerning subject’s 
whereabouts.

On September 16, 1970, OSCAR L. COCHRAN, 5729^-A 
Midland Drive, Charleston, W. Va., was recontacted but advised 
that he still had no additional information concerning the 
subject’s present whereabouts.

■ On September 16, 1970, Mr. and Mrs. WILLIAM COCHRAN,
5729 Midland Drive, Charleston, W. Va., advised that they 
are the grandparents of the subject; however, they had no 
information concerning his present whereabouts. Mr. WILLIAM 
COCHRAN stated that he has not seen his grandson for approxi- 

•mately two or three months and that the last he heard his 
grandson EARL was living in Washington, D.C.; however, he had no 
idea as to the exact address.

On September 16, 1970, DAVID MERRITT advised that he 
is home on furlough from the U. S. Army at Fort Leonard Wood, 
Mo. DAVID MERRITT advised that he does not get along well 
with his brother EARL and that if he had any information 
concerning his brother’s present whereabouts, he would advise 
the FBI. DAVID further advised that his brother EARL has 
always been the favorite in the family and was raised by his 
grandparents. He stated that in their eyes, EARL could do no 
wrong. DAVID stated that his best guess as to where his 
brother EARL would be at the present time would be in 
Washington, D.C.; however, he does not know where in 
Washington. DAVID MERRITT furnished the following information 
regarding his brother EARL: ,

Name;
Date of Birth:
Height:
Weight:
Hair:
Eyes:

EARL ROBERT MERRITT 
June 20 or 21, 1944 
6’1” .
175-185 
Blond; however, is often dyed 
Unknown

•13-
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PG 87-15352
4

Address: Has resided in Washington,
D.C., for the last four years, 
except for brief periods when 

- he returned to Charleston.
Education: Completed 11th grade (was

expelled from high school just 
- a few weeks prior to graduation

because of poor attendance)

DAVID also stated that his brother has never been in 
the military. DAVID stated that if he received any informa­
tion regarding his brother, he would notify the FBI. DAVID’s 
permanent military address is DAVID MERRITT, Serial Number 
225-76-0603, B-31 Company, Fort Leonard Wood, Mo.

On September 16. 1970, REBECCA (MERRITT)' FRISBY, , 
nee REBECCA COCHRAN, 5729$-B Midland Drive, Charleston, 
W. Va., advised that she is the mother of the subject, EARL 
ROBERT MERRITT. REBECCA FRISBY stated that she did not 
believe her son would write any bad checks because he has 
always been an honest boy. She also stated that she has 
not seen her son or heard from him since June, when he left 
Charleston and stated that he was going to Columbus, Ohio. 
However, she has not heard from him and cannot verify whether 
he ever went to Columbus or not. She stated that in the past 
her son has done work in hospitals as an orderly or doing 
clerical work. She stated that she last knew him to be 
working at D.C. General Hospital in Washington, D.C. Mrs. 
FRISBY stated that she did not have any way of getting in 
touch with her son since she no longer has a telephone and 
she has not received any correspondence from him. She stated 
that if she heard from her son,she would advise him that he 
was being sought by the FBI for questioning regarding three 
checks•

On September 16, 1970, KENNETH SHUMAKER, Postmaster, 
Rand, W. Va., advised that he knows the subject and his 
family and has not seen him in town since about June. 
SHUMAKER stated that if he did see the subject, he would 
notify the FBI. ,

/t > • , /

* -14*- .
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DFTIONAL FORM Na 10
• .-MAY 1002 EDITION

OSA FFMR <11 CF A) 101-11.0 _ «

• UNrTED STATES GOV^pMENT

Memorandum
a

: DIRECTOR, FBI (Buttle 87-111347) date: 9/30/70TO

'AC, WFO (87-18178) (RUC)

IARL 1 
TSP

00: PG

aka

Reference Laboratory report to Pg., dated 6/24/70 
and WFO letter to Pg., dated 7/31/70.

g

£ 5

Enclosed for the laboratory is one original signature 
card #492 324 9, filled out by subject under name of MERRITT 
on 6/27/66 at the National Savings and Trust Company’s main 
office located at 15th and "H" Streets , N. W., Washington, 
D. C., and one original signature card filled out by one 

’ JAMES ROBERT MONROE, #SC 850-878-0, filled out at the 20th 
•and ”K” Streets branch of the National Savings and Trust 
Company on 4/15/70.

- A Enclosed for Pittsburgh are copies of the two above 
described signature cards,

'The FBI Laboratory is requested to compare the hand- 
writing*'and signature appearing on these cards with other 
specimens submitted in this case.

No further investigation being conducted by WFO

When examination Is completed, the Bureau is re­
quested to return the original signature cards to WFO in
order that they may be returned to the National Savings 
and trust Company

JCB:job

WIO-tO*

HnW-682&-0ocM:3Z

2 -
1 -

O 3 I * /
Bureau (87-111347 M^cl
Pittsburgh ’(87-I9OO5) (Enols. 2) 
WFO (87-18178)

- A’**’

Buy U.S. Savings Bonds Regularly on the Payroll Savings Plan



lABOSATORT ----- a----  ■

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION
WASHINGTON, 0. C. 20535

to: FBI, Washington Field Office Date: October 13, 1970
(87-13173}

Re: EARL ROBERT, aka A

its? r\ b^'l02 (
(00: Pittsburgh)

, - * * . FBI File No.
L.ab. No.

Examination requested by: O££XC0

Reference: 9/30/70

Examination requested: . • . t » * , ,

Remarks: . -

- » • » •

MAILED 12 •

OCT 131970

COMM-FBr .
------ - .en^'zrv
Enclosures (4) (Q4, Q5, 2 Lab report) '

»

5 John Edgar Hoover, Director

87-111347- /
D-701002015 BP

S

Q. -
____  2 - Pittsburgh (87-19

Mohr_____________ 
Bishop ____  , ...
Brennan, C.D. 

cX“____ DBDlplb (6)
/

Gale_____________ /
Roaen----------------- t
Tavel____________ vz1 A
Watters__________ A J < A jt-»
Soyars----------------- S » * *
Tele. Room - " I
Holmes__________ "J ADM
Gandy___________ MAIL ROOMED TELETYPE .UNJlT

... 5 50CT15«j?rt ..

005) Enclqgux^s 4.2' Lab report)

■ '

j^ISTRATlVE PAGE £c



FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATIONRECORDED
10/6/70 UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
plb

Laboratory Work Sheet LAB FILS

Re: EARL ROBERT, aka 
ITSP
(00: Pittsburgh)

File #
Lab. # 87-111347

D-701002015 BE

Examination requested by: Washington Field Office (87-18178)
Date received:Document

Result of Examination:

Examination requested:

Q4

Q5

Signature card 
dated 6/27/66,

Signature card 
dated 4/15/70,

Specimens submitted for examination

9/30/70

10/1
Examination by

for the National Savings and Trust 
in the name "Earl Robert Merritt.

Company 
Jr."

for the National Savings and Trust 
in the name "James Robert Monroe"

Company

RETURN EVIDENCE

2 - Pittsburgh (87-19005)

>0^7
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(00: Pittsburgh)

RECORDED 
10/6/70 
plb

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION
UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

1 Laboratory Work Sheet NO LAB FILE

Re: EARL ROBERT, 
ITSP

aka File # 87-111347"7
Lab. # D-701002015 BF

Examination requested by: Washington Field Office (87-18178) 9/30/70

Result of Examination:

Examination requested:

Specimens submitted for examination

Q4

Q5

Signature card for the National Savings and Trust Company, 
dated 6/27/66, in the name "Earl Robert’Merritt, Jr.”

\ 
Signature card for the National Savings and Trust Company, 
dated 4/15/70, in the name ’’James Robert Monroe”

*

RETURN EVIDENCE

2 - Pittsburgh (87-19005)

-NW.68262 .Docld:32388698. .Ragg-WI------ ---------------------„



REPORT 
; a of the : ।

FEDERAL BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION 
WASHINGTON, D. C. 20535

FBI, Washington Field Office
Re. (87-18178)

" EARL EOBEST, aka
ITS?

Specimens receiveWi/zo

fbi File no. October 13, 1970
Lab. No. 87-111347

D-701002015 BF

Q4 Signature card for the National Savings and T^ust Company,
' dated 6/27/SS, in the name ‘'Earl Robert Merritt, Jr.”

Q5 Signature card for the National Savings and Trust Company, 
dated 4/15/70, ia t he name ’’James Robert Conroe”

Results of examination:

It was concluded that the miscellaneous hand printing 
on Q4 and Q5 was prepared by the same individual. A definite 
conclusion was not reached whether the James Robert Meares 
signature on Q5 was written by the writer of the Earl Robert 
Merritt, Jr. signature on Q4 due to minor variations and 
because of the lack of comparable text; however, significant 
handwriting similarities were noted.

It was concluded that the James R. Monroe signatures 
on QI through Q3 were written by the writer of the James Robert 
Monroe signature on QS.

Q4 and Q5 are returned herewith. Photographs were 
made.

Tolson----- 
Sullivan --
Mohr_____________
Bishop ■ 
Brennan, C.D.____
Callahan_______ _
Casper ■■ ______
Conrad - 
Felt_____________
Gale-------------------
Rosen  — 
Tavel_____  —
Walters _ _________  
Soy ar s___________
Tele. Room 
Holmes — 
Gandy___________

DBD:plb (6)

mailroomCZZ teletype unitezo

J^VMMZ.DwIAiaaf^ 145 ____
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OFTIONAL FORM NO. 10 -
MAY IHZ EDITION ,
OSA FrMR (41 CFR) 101-11.« '

UNITED STATES GC JrNMENT

Memorandum
: DIRECTOR, FBI (87-111347) date: 2/25/71

.FROM >AC, PITTSBURGH (87-15352) (C)

^subtect* EARL ROBER^IERRITT, <JRo • aka^UBJBCT. al ’ ’

ITSP
(00: PITTSBURGH)

Rerep of SA A. LOUIS DI PIETRO dated 9/28/70, at 
Pittsburgh, and Washington Field letter to Pittsburgh 
dated 11/18/70.

On 2/23/71, AUSA ROBERT B. KING, SDWVA, declined 
prosecution of this case noting that the amount of money- 
involved and the evidence currently available does not 
justify further investigative efforts to locate and 
intervievz subject. \

AUSA’s opinion being confirmed by separate letter 
and this letter is being placed in a closed status.

- Bureau
1 - Washington Field
1 - Pittsburgh
ECW:lgh
(4)

(87-18178)

P/79 -
ar5 tan

. Buy U.S. Savings Bonds Regularly
N^W62..'Dqc1c1:32989698 Page 147 .. . „

on the Payroll Savings Plan



May 16, 1975

REGISTERED RETURN RECEIP

■ r ’ ’ ' ' 1 - Mr. Cleveland
/Mr. Earl Robert Merritt, Jr. AttN: Mr. Riley

.■ 1145 23rd Street, H. W. ’ 1 - Mr. Gebhardt
Washington, D. C. 20037 . Attn: Mr. Mohr

-

. j..-bear Mr. Merritt: • ■ i
' / !

f /•. Enclosed are several pages of isaterial from our
/.records pertaining to your Freedom, of Information Act request.

' •
/ / . These documents were derived from (1) an invest!-
/ / gation involving forged checks drawn on an account located
f •' outside the state in which the checks were passed and, (2) 

a confidential source file. ~

•/, ' / Other documents contained within these two files
( //are not being disclosed based on the following statutory 
// ’ J provisions: .

1. The documents relate to internal prcictices of 
this Agency, the disclosure of which would adversely affect 
a significant agency fuixction, Title 5, United States 
Code, Section 552 (b)(2), that function being development, 
©valuation, direction and remuneration of confidential 
sources. • '

■ 2. Certain documents involve privileged infor­
mation and are protected by Title 5, United States Code, 
Section 552 (b)(4). The privilege asserted in this instance 
is the lavzyer-clicnt relationship between Department of 
Justice attorneys serving as legal advisors to Federal
employees sued in tort in their personal capacity on

A^soc. Dir. - -
Dcp. AD Adm. _ 
Dcp. AD Inv.__

account of official action

Co«»p. $y»t. ____

Attention

MLHxms^(8)

MAIL ROOM

Training
Lnyof Coun.__  
FeUphonc Rm.

tntelL_________
Laboratory ...
Plan. & Evol.__

FiUs & Com. __
Cen. Inv. _ „ 
Went. _ —.

Some of these documents
by superiors of suboi

3, 
and resomen

involving
wnxen
Tht

•corney General 
Susan M

'flW682£2 'Dt5crci:329896!J8 Page 148 '



Mr* Earl Robert Merritt, Jr. ' :

Title 5, United States Cod®, Section 552 (b)(5) as release 
would inhibit the interchange of suggestions, recommendations■ 
and proposed policy changes within ths Executive Branch of 
the Government. .. . ■ ■

- 4. Certain inforsiaticn furnished by yourself as
a confidential source was disseminated to other law enforce­
ment agencies investigating matters within their jurisdiction. 
It is not feasible for the FBI to confirm the current status 
of each of these investigations. As release of data concerning 
these cases might interfere with enforcement proceedings,

’ denial is based on Title 5, United States Code, Section 552 .
(b) (7) (A) . Furthermore, the FBI has a continued interest 
in certain matters within its jurisdiction also protected 
from disclosure under (b)(7)(A). , ■

. 5. Many documents contain references to third
parties which did not originate with you, disclosure would

• be an invasion of. privacy as to these persons; therefore, 
denial is predicated upon Title 5, United States Code, . 
Section 552 (b)(7)(C) and (D). ‘ '

' 6. As to information which did originate from
* you, the FBI assarts Title 5, united States Code, Section 552 

(b)(7)(D), specifically the phrase, "confidential information 
furnished only by the confidential source." The interest 
protected by this clause of provision (b)(7)(D) is not that

’ of the informant, but of the Government. Release to you 
nay be construed as release to the public and preclude an 
assertion of confidentiality as to a -request from anyone 
else for the same information. ■ •

. 7. In addition, the FBI asserts Title 5, United
States Coda, Section 552 (b)(7)(E) as to certain documents 
which pertain to our investigative techniques and procedures.

• Our reasons arc the same as those asserted in the paragraph 
marked 1 above. *

You have thirty days from receipt of this letter 
to appeal to the Attorney General from any denial contained- 
herein. Appeals should be directed in writing to the Attorney 
General (Attentions Freedom of Information Appeals Unit), 
Washington, D. C. 20530. The envelope and the letter

- 2 -

» . .to-T .— — -r—. , -..T . ’
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Mr. Earl Robert Merritt, Jr. ’ ‘

should be clearly marked-“Freedom of Information Appeal” 
"information Appeal. ” Following the Attorney General ’ s 
decision, judicial revievz is available in the district o: 
your residence, or principal place of business, or in the 
District of Columbia, ■where the records are situated.

■Sincerely yours, :

- * : C. M. KelleS ' -

Clarence M. Kelley . •'
Director - ;

Enclosures (6) * • > . J

NOTE: Earl Robert Merritt, the requester, is a former 
confidential source of the FBI whose source file was 
closed upon determination he had furnished false information 
to Bureau Agents. Subsequently, Merritt made false and

• malicious allegations to the news media regarding the FBI 
and the Metropolitan Police Department, WDC, regarding the 
direction and tasks he performed as a source. Some of these 
allegations constitute the basis for certain causes of 
action alleged in Institute for policy Studies, et al, 
v. John N. Mitchell, et al, Civil Action No. 74-316 
.U.S.D.C. District of Columbia.

• The Bufiles involved with this request are 137- 
28143 and 87-111347.

By prior memorandum, Special Investigative Division 
concurs with the FOIA section regarding release. The initial 
disclosure contemplated has been significantly narrowed to 
include only descriptive information, closing serials and 
certain newspaper articles. As for the 87 case, disclosure 
has been limited to a serial revealing the prosecutive opinion.

This response is being posted by registered mail, 
return receipt requested with the instruction,. "Deliver 
Only to Addressee." .

NW 68262 Docld:32989698 Page 150
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1

UNITED STATES ^RNMENT

FROM

U1N11EU Ol/liLO ........... -

Memorandum
> Atsoc. Dlrl 
VXsst. Dtr.i e

Mr. E. S. Miller^'

L. Shacke If or d /}

1
1

DATE:
1
1
1

- Mr, Franck 
- Mr. Mintz

- Mr. Miller
- Mr. Shackelford
- Mr. Gerblick

SUBJECT: EARL ROBERT MERRITT, JR 
(FORMER WF 4015-0)

JOSEPH ANTHONY BARRETT

Comp. $y*t. _____ 

Exf. Affolrt____  
Filet & Com. .
Gen, Inv.  
Ident. — \_____

Ins pe q *on

Laboratory___ _ 
Pion. & Evol. __
Spec. Inv.______  
Training

Legal Coun. _____ 

Telephone Rm. _ 
Director Scc*y ___

i

PURPOSE:

To answer the Director’s■question of Mr. Miller 
"any untruths in this story?" referring to a "Washington 
Posr" newspaper story by staff writer Paul W. Valentine, 
which appeared in the 11/26/73 edition of the "Washington 
Post" and which dealt with statements made by captioned 
individuals to the "Washington Post."

BACKGROUND:

individuals acknowledged their roles 
Washington Field Office (WFO) of the

as informants for th 
FBI and outlined a

number of their activities as informants, including 
assigned to them, methods of payment for their work
reasons 
of this

why they ceased their informant activities 
article is attached. ‘

and
A copy

Earl Robert Merritt, Jr., who is mentioned in the
article, was a criminal informant of WFO from 10/71 until he 
was discontinued in 6/72. Merritt ’was targeted against the 
Institute for Policy Studies (IPS) after it vias learned some
of the Weatherman fugitives reportedly had visited IPS.
Merritt, who is a self-admitted homosexual, was discontinued 

■ as an informant after it was determined he was unreliable. ।

’ f‘ '■ / < /
^37-28143 (Earl Robert Merritt,’Jr.). 
^$^^20322 _J Joseph Anthony Barrett) 
’1 --100-447935 (institute for Policy Studies) 
Enclosure/ .

22 DEC1973

JWG:mcm Jt 3)

■

‘f ’
CONTINUED - 
- - -j;

OVER

Q

o
O 
W

J.
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Memorandum to Mr. E. S. Miller 
RE: Earl Robert Merritt, Jr. 

137-28143

Joseph Anthony Barrett

IDENTITY 6^ ipFoSMhMT AS
Joseph Anthony Barreto, who is mentioned in the 

article, was a security informant of WFO from 10/70 to 6/73. 
He originally contacted WFO in 5/70 and volunteered his 
services. He was approved as a potential security informant 
in 10/70 after which he reported on demonstrations by 
Vietnam Veterans Against the War (WAW), National Peace 
Action Coalition and Peoples Coalition for Peace and Justice 
He reported on the activities of IPS personnel who were 
involved in Students for a Democratic Society (SDS) and he 
reported on the planning for mass demonstrations in 
Washington, D.C., by Rennie Davis. Barrett traveled to Miami
and reported on the activities of dissident groups and K
individuals at the Democratic and Republican National Conventions-?
in the Summer of 1972. He subsequently provided information

>

abot the demonstrations at the Presidential Inauguration in 
1/73. In 6/73 he was discontinued as an informant at his 
own request when he advised he was attempting to obtain a 
second job and would not be able to obtain information for 
the FBI and he had also developed great'animosity for the 
people such as those at IPS about whom he was reporting and

1c

so

i therefore, could not provide competent coverage 8
• IPS, which is mentioned in the article, was the ' ■'

subject of a preliminary inquiry by the FBI in 11/68 . .
after information was received indicating a possible connection

. between IPS and SDS. The investigation was expanded in 1971 
after it was determined that IPS planned to embark on a five year 
plan for the radical reconstruction of American society and 
had circulated to radical groups around the country a document 
calling for brigades to descend on Washington, D.C., and close 
down Government agencies. The current investigation of IPS

• is directed toward those areas in which violations of Federal 
statutes may be developed in view of the activities of IPS 
personnel involving the Middle East and the Arabs,

. North and South Vietnam, Tanzania and the Pan-African Movement and 
contacts with subversive organizations and individuals in the 
United States.

CONTINUED - OVER
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Memorandum to Mr* E. S, Miller 
RE: Earl Robert Merritt, Jr. 

137-283 43

..Joseph Anthony Barrett

OBSERVATIONS:

In answer to Mr. Kelley's question "any untruths 
in this story?" the following should be noted:

Merritt's claim of having performed illegal 
acts for the FBI has been denied by the Special Agents who 
directed him.

Merritt’s claim that -he was hired by WFO at $50 
to $75 a week is inaccurate. He was paid, on a c.o.d. basis, 
*in varied amounts between $20 and $30. which were paid on 
various dates two to five times per month beginning in 10/71 
and ending in 5/72 for a total amount of $1,570.

dp-lnp&q
Barrett’s claim that he-* decided to quit as an 

informant while at the Republican National Convention after 
seeing a WAN member on crutches stumble and unable to get 
out of the tear gas is questionable, 'since he continued to 
furnish information for several months thereafter for which he 
was paid both services and expenses.

Barrett's claim that he was paid only expenses but no
I salary is not totally correct. While not paid a salary, Barrett
I was reimbursed for his expenses and in addition was paid more tha
I $2,500 on a c.o.d. basis for services,

। . It should also be noted that WFO advised at the
I time Barrett was discontinued as an informant he advised he
I still had the greatest admiration for the FBI and agreed
I wholeheartedly that he would not reveal his work, written or 

oral, with the Bureau.
*__ ___ __________________________ ______ —_____ —____ ___________ —__ ______________________________________ K -

RECOMMENDATION:

Dodd:32989698 Page 153



MAY K32 COiriQM * 
GJ A' GIN, t(G. MO. If

UNITED STATES C^^^NMENT

Memorandum
Ascoct Dir, .-----
An*. Dir.:

Admin. —
Comp. Sys*. —

Tr-»" 2 r 
•rites & Cem. _

TO Mr. Callahan DATE: 10/4/73

FROM : R. R. Franck \ L

Ident. 
Inspection____ -
Intel!, __________
Lobofotory _-----  
Plan. & Eval,

SUBJECT:'EARL ROBERT MERRITT, JR.
Training ___ 

Legal Coun. _ 

Telephone Rm. 
Director Sec’y

On 10/2/73 .JAd-S.to.utjofJ:heJLWash,m^^^ called
Herington and said that Merritt had furnished the paper information concerning 
his prior informant status, claiming to have been a paid FBI informant from - 
October, 1971, until May, 1972, at which time he was discontinued because he 
furnished us false information about Jack Davis. He claimed his assigned task 
was to monitor the Institute for Policy Studies, 1520 Nev; Hampshire Street, 
Northwest, Washington, D. C., and to keep an eye on Jack Davis, who was , 
associated with the Institute. He said that he had been a police department < 
informant prior to working for the FBI and Stout said that this had been con­
firmed by the police. Merritt said that he had been handled by Washington 
Field Office Agents William Tucker and Terry O'Connor, and that when he • ' / 
was discontinued in May, 1972, Tucker had threatened him by saying, "We ‘ ’ 
would hate to have someone find you in the Potomac with cement galoshes." / 
He also alleged that Tucker threatened to have him prosecuted on three old bad 
check charges in which Merritt was involved. __ •■■■"J ) , .

Herington told Stout that he would have to get back in touch with 
him later. Bureau files reveal that Merritt was a criminal informant

from late 1971 until he was discontinued by Washington Field '• 
letter dated 6/8/72. He was targeted against the Institute for Policy Studies 
and Jack Davis mainly because Davis was considered a Weatherman fugitive 
support person and because we had information that some of the Weatherman 
fugitives had visited the Institute. Merritt also furnished other valuable 
criminal information. Merritt is a homosexual and was determined to be
unreliable, at which point he was discontinued. Although he has not been 
identified by name, we believe he is responsible for allegations which resulted
in the attorney for the Institute for Policy Studies claiming the FBI and the 
Metropolitan Police Department (MPD) were engaged in illegal surveillance .• 
OTlTis activities and other illegal conduct. We conducted a preliminary civil ej 

. rights investigation on these allegations in August, 1973, and the results havez.
_ __  • •- ' M '

• , •„ „ , REC-2 ■■ - a7/< -- ' '1 - Mr. Franck • A-'nrT
- Mr. Cleveland '

K ,z l^Mr. Miller . ^(CQNTINUED-OVER) --------—
• Mr. Herington

’ Bureau File 137-28143 Qp '
JEH:asg (5) : ’’ . ■ r
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Memorandum to Mr. Callahan . ’
Re: Earl Robert Merritt, Jr.

* -K • J

been furnished to the Civil Rights Division of the Department. Agents who 
handled Merritt deny any improper conduct or any improper instructions to \ 
him. • .- . I

t

■ Herington called Stout back today and told him that as a matter of
policy we simply could not identify individuals who had furnished confidential ‘J 
information to the FBI in the past and, accordingly, there was nothing at this 
time that we could say about Merritt's allegations. Stout said that he under- j
stood and that actually his story was mainly about allegations made by Merritt ;
claiming MPD misconduct and that very little of the story would pertain to i 
the FBI. He said that he knew that the Intelligence Division of the MPD was not | 
terribly sophisticated in its handling of informants. He said also that he knew j 
that Merritt was a homosexual and that he did not consider him really reliable. i 
Some of his allegations have not checked out at all in further inquiry by Stout. ;
Herington also pointed out to Stout that neither/the allegations alleging threats i
against Merritt could be interpreted as threats-even if the statements had been |
made. He was told that we always caution our informants against disclosing ।
themselves because we are aware that some people might want to exact retribu- I 
tion against them for having helped the FBI. The statement that we would hate j
to .have Merritt found in the Potomac with cement galoshes is the type of thing I
that would be an admonishment against his self-disclosure becauseSome of i 
his friends might seek revenge. Herington told Stout that it was ridiculous । 
to believe that any FBI Agent would threaten to kill a former informant. It was i
also noted that with regard to the second allegation about the prosecution on I
checks, this does not necessarily have to be interpreted as a threat either since I 
it was obvious that Merritt’s surfacing himself with a lot of publicity might | 
cause the victims of those checks to urge a current prosecution. I

. Stout said that he took everything Merritt said with a grain of salt. ।

■ Stout, of course, was formerly with the Police Foundation and says ’ [ 
he knows Mr. Kelley personally. He has generally been pro law enforcement in ‘ 
our limited dealings with him During this conversation he said that he ?
sympathized with the law enforcement's position in dealing with informants : 
but that he had been assigned to write a story, which he would have to do. He 
said he didn't really think that what he wrote would hurt the FBI and indicated 
that the story should be forthcoming within the next several days. :

- 2 - (CONTINUED-OVER)
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Memorandum to Mr. Callahan
Re: Earl Robert Merritt, Jr.

Herington also talked to Washington Field about this inquiry. They 
'had been alerted by the MPD. that a story would appear in the near future in 
the "Star. "

RECOMMENDATION ‘

For information.
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Mr. VI. R. Wannall

Mx*. R. L, Shackelford

I — Hr. J.B. Adams
2 - Hr. J'k. Mints

-• (1-Mr. Hotis)
— Mr. W.R. Vannail
- 11/7/75
— Hr. R.L. Shackelford

<T^Mr. W.O. C: 
Mr. L.E. B.

1 - Mr. J.P. McMahon

U. S. HOUSE SELECT COMMITTEE 
ON. INTELLIGENCE (IISC)

PURPOSE:

To recommend that Legal Counsel Division consult
with the Department to seek guidance as to th© manner in 
which the Bureau should respond to IISC requests for materials
in Bureau files relating to organizations and individuals 
currently involved in civil litigation with th© Bureau, and 
to ascertain how Bureau personnel should respond to similar 
inquiries while giving testimony in either Executive or 
public sessions. ■ . ■

DETAILS: . . ' ■ ‘ ■ ■

In September and October, 1975, the IISC requested
among other items, information from Bureau files concerning 
a number of individuals associated with the Socialist Workers 
Darty (SVP) and information from the filo on the Institute 

, for Policy Studies (IPS) , as well as the file of former
Bureau informant Earl Robert Merritt, Jr. , . .

■ On 11/5/75, Bureau representatives Hr. W. R. Wannall, 
Mr. R» L. Shackelford, and Mr. D. Ryan furnished dopes it ions 
to the HSC concerning numerous matters including Bureau 
investigations of 5 individuals 'affiliated with the SVP . 
and this Bureau‘s investigation of the IPS, HSC representatives 
indicated at that time, that these topics will be the sub­
ject of testimony scheduled for public session 11/1S/75. 
With regard to HSC Inquiries concerning the 5 SVP individuals, 
the thrust of the inquiries centered around this Bureau’s . 
authority to investigate the SVP and its members, which is ■ 
one of the main issues to be resolved in a pending civil 
suit which the ShP has brought against th© Bureau. With • 
regard to the IPG, IISC inquiries centered around this 
Bureau’s authority to investigate this organization, as ■ 
well as public charges made against this Bureau by • 

1 - 02-116464 (IISC) 1-100-447935 (IPS) ’
1 - 100-16 (SWP) 1 - 137-28413 (Merritt) •

JPMibmf (12) CONTINUED - OVER
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Memorandum to Mr. W. R. Wannall ‘ /
'Ro: U. S. House Select Committee On Intelligence (HSC)

■ ■ ' i . ■• I
Sari Robert Merritt, Jr., a former Bureau informant “who

• furnished information concerning the IPS.- Charges by
• *. Merritt have been publicly refuted by this Bureau. It 

is noted that the - IPS is also currently involved in 
civil litigation with this Bureau charging illegal 
wiretapping and breaking and entering.

Additionally, on 11/5/75, 2 Bureau Agents, 
against whom Merritt has levied his unfounded charges, were 
deposed by HSC members at which time the Agents were 
accompanied by the Departmental Attorney who is handling 
this litigation. --- ■■■. •

OB^RVATIONS: ' . ‘ ‘ ’ V-

Xn view of the pending HSC request for material 
relating to IPS, as well as information pertaining to 
Bari Robert Merritt, Jr., who is to be a pi’incipal witness 
in the IPS civil litigation, and because th© HSC 
representatives have indicated that the questioning of 
Bureau officials scheduled for the HSC public hearing on 
11/18/75 will involve matters directly related to the 
Government's actions in the defense of the civil suits

• regarding both tho IPS and SWP, it is felt that Departmental 
advice should be sought prior to this Bureau responding

- to or engaging in further response to tho HSC in these areas.

■ ATIOHS: h

j 1) That Legal Counsel Division consult with the 
. Department to obtain advice as to how the Bureau should 
X'Gspond to HSC requests for materials concerning IPS and 
Merritt, and advise the Intelligence Division by memorandum, 
of the results.

■* ’ . !

2) Legal Counsel Division should determine from 
the Department, the parameters to which Bureau representatives 
should confine their testimony in either Executive ox* public 
sessions concerning IPS and STM? and advise the Intelligence 
Division by memorandum.

I' • ~2-
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